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Overview

We are a leading service provider in all sectors
of the marine industry and a specialist supplier
of engineering services to the nuclear industry
in the UK and abroad.

Strategy

Our strategy is to concentrate our core
expertise of marine engineering and
operational skills into growing marine service
businesses which are focused on the fast
growing global marine markets.

Our global presence

Visit our website
www.james-fisher.co.uk




Highlights of the year

e Strong organic growth key profit driver

e Strong cash conversion 105%

» Gearing reduced to 75% from 85% in 2010
* Marine Services revenue increased by 23%

* Major contract wins — submarines (URF),
oil and gas (Angola), renewables (Walney)

Revenue Underlying profit before tax*

£307.6m £30.0m

+15% +11%

Underying difuted earnings per share*  Final dividend per share

48.4p 10.74p

+16% +11%

Statutory profit hefore tax Statutory diluted earnings per share

£29.8m 48.0p

+15% +21%

* Undertying profit throughout this report excludes costs meurred in making acquisvions and
the amortisation of acquired intangbles
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Operations overview

We are constantly developing the scope of
our services to provide the highest quality
across the marine sector and in high integrity

environments.

Specialist Technical

World leader in fendering, marine equipment
and load monitoring services

The hire and sale of large scale pneumatic fenders and related
equpment, the design and supply of systems for monitoring strains
and stress in structures and equipment, non-destructive testing, and
the provision of design, engineenng and manufactunng services to
the nuclear decommissioning Industres

Revenue Underlying profit
£141.5m £19.8m
2010: £116.6m 2010: £18.5m
Margin Return on capital
14.0% 20.3%
2010: 15.8% 2010: 20.4%

Highlights of the year

= Contract in the offshore renewable sector to fit messenger
cables to 51 wind turbines in the Insh Sea,

* Contract for radiological detection for the Olympic Delvery
Authonty,

= New support base at Lyness in the Orkney Islands and
at Great Yarmouth established to support the wave and
tidal industry,

» Tension monrtonng system supplied to ol platform off the
coast of Brazl
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Offshore Qil

Services and equipment supplied globally to
offshore, subsea and windfarm applications

The design, construction, rental and sale of specialst equipment, and
the provision of related specialist labour, such as cranes, winches and
pumps to the offshore sector, windfarms and to subsea operations

Revenue Underlying profit
£71.2m £12.8m
2010: £58.5m 2010: £11.0m
Margin Return on capital

18.0%

2010: 18.8%

11.5%

2010: 13.1%

Highlights of the year

= Weak link ol ng safety devices supplied to Norwegian
Naorth Sea ol ngs,

» Further investment in offshore well testing equipment,

= Market for electronic submersible pumps developed
further into Far East and South Amenca,

« Scanlech Offshore established in South America,
Australia and West Afnca




Group revenue by division Group profit by division

Defence Marine Oil
Providing services to 16 Navies around Coastal delivery of clean petroleum product in
the world North Western Europe
Focused on the design, construction and operation of submanne Engaged In the sea transportation of clean petroleum products and
rescue vehicles, remotely operated vehicles and the operation of wharf operations
surface ships
Revenue Underlying profit Revenue Underlying profit
£28.Im £55m £66.8m £1.1m
2010: £21.3m 2010: £5.3m 2010: £71.9m 2010: £0.7m
Margin Return on capital Margin Returmn on capital
% 23.2% 1.7% 2.5%
1 9-6 0 E | O L] o ] 0
2010: 24.9% 2010: 23.8% 2010: 1.0% 2010: 1.5%
Highlights of the year Highlights of the year
* Contract worth £11 million to carry out a full refit of the = Increased profitability in tough shipping market,
Swechsh Navy's rescus submersible, ¢ Further scaled fleet by three vessels to
* Successful completion of exercise Black Canllon 2011 meet demand,
supporting the Royal Australian Navy, » Higher returns at Plymouth port

* Launch of the Swimmer Delivery Vehicle at
DSE (Defence and Secunty Equipmeant Intemational)
axhibrion in September 2011
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Chairman’s statement

Since 2002 the Company has been transformed
from a traditional coastal shipping company
into the UK’s leading marine service business.

Tim Hams, Chairman

“James Fisher made excellent
progress in 2011, with double-
digit growth rates in both
revenue and profit.”

2011 2010 changa
Group revenue £3076m  £2683m +15%
Undertying operating profit £36.1m £325m +11%
Undertying profit befora tax £30.0m £271m +11%
Undertying ciluted
gammngs per share 48.4p 419p + 16%
Proposed final dvidend 10.74p 968p + 1%
Statutory profit before tax £29.8m £259m +15%
Statutory diluted
eamings per share 48 Op 397p +21%
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Introduction
James Fisher and Sons plc has had ancther exceflent year in 2011 with
the mamn financial measures mproved by between 1% and 16%

Cash conversion was also strong at 105% and net geanng was
reduced to 75% at 31 December 2011 from 85% at the previous year
end This was despite an nvestment of £176 milion N new equipment
to generate further organic growth

Strate

Ower the last five years James Fisher has pursued a consistent manine
service strategy focused on the world's growang regions rather than

on the more mature markets of Europe and North Amenca Thess
manne servica skills consist of specialist engineenng and operational
capabilibes which charactenstically command net margins in excess

of 10% and retums on capital employed of at least 15% pre tax and are
cash generative In 2011 over 60% of the Group's revenue Is denved
from outside the UK compared to 35% five years ago

The advantages of our strategy are as follows

= The growing manne service markets on which we are focused
are vast, fast growing and with less mature competiton Thisis
particularly true n the Asia Pacific region.

s We do relatvely Iittle business in North Amenca and Continental
Europe and have therefore been more sheltered from therr
economic problems,

» Tha growing proportion of non UK opsrations has helped reduce
our effective tax rate, now less than 20%, although recent UK tax
reductons have also helped

The Group also benefits from a strong dmisional executve team,

most of which has been in place for five years, Its entrepreneunal skil,
together with the caprtal and commercial support from the centrs, has
helped drve srong organic growth Increasingly Group companies are
working togsther to win larger contracts, mainly overseas, which is an
rnportant strategic focus for our management team going forward

Underlying diluted earnings per share {p)

1 484
10 419
0g 370
08 354
o7 326




Specialist Technical
2011 underlying profit £19.8 million
(2010: £18.5 miillion)

Specialist Techrical enjoyed a strong second half with profits up 22%,
due to robust organic growth Annual profit growth was good, up 7%,
particuarty pleasng considering the strong comparator in the first

half of 2010 which expenenced an exceptonally strong ol contango
market, benefitng our ship to ship ofl transfer business Dvsionzal
Tnargns at 14 0% were shghtly down on 2010 (15 8%), but this refiected
a greater use of chartered-in vessels for specific projects rather than
any undefiying mangin erosion Agood example 1 the recent BP
Angola contract, the award of which we announced in February 2012
We shal be managing the ol offtake operations from an FPSO (floating
production, storage and officading) unit with three chartered tugs, as
well as provicing a number of refated dving and maintenance services
This contract also ilustrates how the Group dvisions are Increasingly
working together to win larger contracts Among the decisve elements
" our offer were

* BP's long relationstyp wath James Fisher and Fendercare,

* The Group's established base in Angola, onginally developed for
Scan Tech Offshore, and

* James Fisher's long history and expenence m operating coastal
tankers through James Fisher Everard

James Fisher Nuclear (JFiN} 18 also ncluded in this dwvision and
produced a significantly better result in 2011 with the potential for
more mprovement to come  JFN 18 beginning to benefit from the
investments made in pnor years and from an mcreasing recogniton
of its core capabilites of non-destructive testing and remote handing
In the complex contractng ermvironment prevalent in the nuclear
industry JFN also worked closely dunng the year with James Fisher
Defence (JFD) and Scan Tech in Norway, parmanty using its remote
handiing skails

The prospects for further crganic growth in this dvston remain
excellent and we shall continus to support it with suitable
caprtal rvestment

Case study
Renewable energy services

To support wind, wave and tidal energy developers we have
established a bass at Lyness, Orkney Islands and at Great
Yarmouth, UK to hetp improve the procasses of build, mstallabon
and test as well as ongoing mantenance In August 2011, James
Fisher completed a project off Walney Island, Cumbna, to provide
a vesse! and dving support senvices to a wind turbine confractor

Offshore OQil
2011 underlying profit £12.8 million
(2010: £11.0 million)

Drasional revenus for the full year grew by 22% compared with 2010
and dvsional profit by 16% There was a shght neduction in margin
reflecting a growing proportion of the business coming from services,
as opposed to straght rental which enjoys higher margins owing to its
greater use of capital This strong performance was the result of two
positve features — strong organic growth in the new oil provinces of the
wonld and the continued recovery of North Sea markets, supported by
the capital iInvestment we have madse, and continue 1o make

The dvision’s growth iInto new markets 1s pnmanly being led by our
Scan Tech Offshore and RMSpumptools brands  Scan Tech Ofishore
Is now an established suppler to the offshore mdustry in South
Amenca, Australia and West Ainca and dunng 2011 RMSpumptoos,
which sells worldwide, set up anassembly base in Singapore to
support its Asian coverage

The positve trends which helped the 2011 result, appear set to
continue, supperted by the world's proven dermand for off Qur
specialist brands are ncreasingly winning business and gaining
recognitton wordwide and we shall continue to support them with
further mvestment
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Chairman’s statement
continued

Defence
2011 underlying profit £5.5 million
(2010: £5.3 million)

while dvisional revenue in 2011 grew by over 30% to £281 mition,

the dmsional profit remamed flat ak £5 5 miion mainly because of
aextra expenditure on Subsea business development and sales

James Fisher won a number of sigrificant projects dunng the year
including the modermisation contract for “URF", the Swedish Nawvy's
submanne rescue vehicle — which was announced in May and 1s now
wel underway —and the continued development of our “swimmer
delivery” vehicie which 1s well advanced We revezled the prototype in
Septernber at the DSE (Defence and Secunty Equipment Intermational)
exhibiion n London and tt attracted much intemational attention Our
existing submanne rescus contracts in Singapore, Australia and the UK
performed well and met therr operational and financial targets in 2011

Developrments on the surface ship side were less encouraging in 201t
The Govemment so far has favoured other pnonties to surface ship
outsourcng At Foreland Shipping Limited, we commentsd ak the half
year on the uncertainty over the charter rate at which two of its rofl on-
roll off vessels would be fixed The vessels were chartered in January
20112 and current market rates are lower than the previcus charter Our
share of Foreland’s resutt 1s likely to reduce by around £15 milion per
year as a Conseguence

We have great confidence in the prospects for our Subsea operatons
which have a growing intemational reputation and outreach and into
which we are investing to ensure they meet their potential We are
less postve about the prospects for surface ship outsourcing We
have the skils needed and wil participate if there 1s a realiskc prospect
of success
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Marine Oil
2011 underlying profit £1.1 million
(2010: £0.7 million)

Marnne Ol is the dmvsion most exposed to the UK and Europe's current
sconomic problems and this 1s reflected in the results which were only
slightly better than in 2010 Thera s stll overcapacity and a weak spot
markat in Europe  However, James Fisher Everard, unlike most of world
shipping today, 15 profitable and cash generative although clearty the
overall retumn 18 shil unacesptable Our policy 1s to match fleet capacity
to our long term customers’ contractual requirements which have been
declining, parhcularty to Ireland To this end, we have sold mv Audacity
(3,000 tonnes) and negotiated earty cessation of the charters for mv
Pernbroke Fisher (15,000 tonnes) and mv Chartsman {6,000 tonnes)
We now only have 16% of the Group's assets in this business and our
target s to reduce this to less than 10% However, it remans refevant
that Tankships Is the ongin of our manne service skills and is a strong
proof pornt of manne competence, as the BP Angola contract win
demonstrated

Case study
Papa Terra, South America

Strainstall Manne and RBMSpumptools have secured contracts

to supply key technology for a Tension Leg Platform ol field
development off the coast of Brazil Strainstall Manne supplied a
Tendon Tension Monitonng System (TTMS) which 1s safety cntical
technology with each load cell designed to bear 1,200 tornes
RMSpumptoois 1s supplying high power religbility penetrators,
using its expertse N electncal submersible pumps




Board and staff

Anthory Cooke retired from the Board and his role as sentor
non-executive director and chairman of the audit commttee on

31 December 2011 after ten years' service He has been replaced as
senior non-executive director by Charles Rice and as charman of the
audit committee by Malcolm Paul ! would ke to thank Anthony for his
good advice dunng a very successiul penod for James Fisher and for
the Board

Simon Hams resigned from the Board and from his role as chaiman
of James Fisher Defence UFD) on 13 February 2012 after exght years
on the Board | would ke to recognise and thank Smon for his role in
buiding up the JFD team into the world leading organisation i s today

The Group 1s growing fast and this throws up challenges and
opportunities for manty throughout the Group every day It is gratfying
to see us ncreasing our smployment of young people, partcularty
young graduates when the background economic cirmate 1s so
uncertan 'would like to recognise and thank all staff for ther
contributon to the Group's success In a service company ke James
Fisher pecple will always be the key asset which makes the difference

Financial

The Group contnues to recenve strong support from s bankers and
has been able to renew facfites and obtan new ones on competitve
terms In November it agreed a new facity with DBS Bank of
Singapore, refiecting our strong focus on the Asia Pactfic region

The curent low interest rate environment 1s detnmental to the
calculation of pension fund deficts becauss of the low discount rates
used to calculate future obligatons Dunng 2011 this effectively meant
that, despite £4 5 milion of cash contnbution dunng the vear, the
reported deficts at the year end effectively remaned unchanged

As an export onentated company James Fisher benefits from a strong
Dollar Balance sheet US Dollar exposure 1s hedged

Case study
Swimmer Delivery Vehicle

James Fisher Defence 1s developing a range of specialised
underwater vehicles. These vehicles uititse proven technology
from our submanne rescua vehicies, n order to provide a cuting
edga capabfity wth minimum development nsk

Summary and outlook

QOver the last five years James Fisher has pursued a consistent manne
service strategy focused on the world’s growing regions rather than

on the more mature markets of Europe and North Amenca As aresult
the Company's growth record has been strong, with organic growth
the key component, and we have avoided much of the downside from
the economic challenges witnessed since 2008 We have stable and
axpenenced senior and dvisional managerment teams whuch have
been responsible for the successful execution of this strategy

Our largest dvsions, Specalist Techrical and Ofishore Oil, have strong
growth records and will continue t0 be the pnme focus for future
investment n new eguipment and bolt-on acquisthons

JFD's Subsea actvities are promising and we are nvesting in more
business development expendiure to Increase sales and penetration
worldwide They have the potential to become a significantly larger
business The prospects for managament of surface stups s less
promising, partly due to the profracted and costly bidding process
nvolved We have ndicated a detenoration in Foreland's profit of
around £1 5 milion n 2012 but would expect to compensate for it
elsewhere The prospects for James Fisher Everard, our tankship
business, remain unchanged and dependent, to a large degres,
on the state of the UK and BEuropean economies it wal improve
when the current tonnage overcapacity urmwinds but overall this
dvision 15 of decreasing importance to the Group performance

Trading for 2012 o date has been to management expectations and
we continue to be well placed to provide further growth and valus for
our shareholders

Tim Harns
5 March 2012
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Review of operations
Marine Services businesses
increase revenue by 23%.

Group results

The 15% mcrease in Group revenue comprsed a 23% ncrease from
the Marine Services bustnesses (Specialist Technical, Offshore Oil
and Defence) and a 7% decline at Manne Oil, which operated fewer
vessels In 2011 The Group's operating margin dechined shghtly from
121% in 2010 to 11 7% Each dvision iIncreased profitability on the
previous year but as described in the Interm Report, the Manne
Services dmision 1s beginrung to supply significantly larger contracts
which have a higher proportion of sub-contract content Operating
margins within Manne Services reduced from 17 2% to 15 8% inthe
year but profitability ncreased by 10%

2011 2010
Revenue (£m) 3076 2683 +15%
— Manne Services 240.8 1964 +23%
—Manne Ol 66.8 719 )%
Underiying operating profit (£m} 3641 325 +11%
- Manne Services 381 348 +10%
-~ Manne Ol 11 07 +57%
—common costs (3.9 B30 +3%
Underlying operating margin (%) 1.7 121
— Marnne Serices 15.8 177
—Manne Cil 1.6 10

The proportion of the Group's revenue that was derved from outside
the UK increased to aver 80% in the year and non-UK revenue grew
by 20% n the year

Undertying profit before tax, which excludes costs incurred making
acquistions and the amortisation of acquired intangible assets,

increased by 11% to £30 0 milion (2010 £271 mullion) Statutory profit

beafore tonnage and income tax was 15% higher at £29 8 milion
(2010 £259 milior) Undertying diuted eamings per share increased
by 16% to 48 4p per share (2010 418p) Statutory diluted eamnings
per share was 48 Op, (2010 39 7p) representing an NCrease of 21%
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over previous year The total profit for the year atinbutable to ordinary
shareholders after taxaton was £24 1 milion (2010 £19 & millon)

2011 2010

Undertying profit before tax (£m) 30.0 27 +11%
Statutory profit before tax (Em) 29.8 259 +15%
Undertying diuted earnings

per share (p) 484 49 +16%
Statutory diuted earnings

per share (p} 48.0 397 +21%
Drndends per share () 16.08 1472 +9%

In 2011, the Group amended s accounting for defined bensfit
pension schemes such that the unwinding of the discount on
pensien liabilbes and the return on schema assets 1S now shown
wathin finance costs on the Income statement rather than within
adrmintstrative expenses There 1s no net Impact on reported profit
befora taxation but comparatives for finance costs and administrative
expenses have been restated accordingly

Interest

Net finance costs increased by £0 7 milion n the year to

£61 millon {2010 £5 4 milion) Net pension costs were unchanged
at €14 millon Interest on bank loans Increased by £0 4 million as
faciibes In place prior to 2009 expired and new facilities carry higher
margins The remainder of the increase relates to interest capitalised
i 2010 in relation to the Group's Norway praperty

Acquisitions

0On 1 January 2011 the Group acqurred an additional 5% interest N its
Nigenan based jomnt venture Fender Care Nigena Limited (FCN} for a
consideraton of £1,201,000 Following the acquisiton the Group has
a 45% interest in this point venture FCN provides ship to ship transfer
services In the East and West Afnca region Geodwill of £721,000
arose on the acquisthon of this interest

On 8 November 2011 the Company acquired 49% of the issued share
capital of James Fisher Angola Lida for a consideration of £54,000
Jarnes Fisher Angola meets the cniena for recogniion as a subsidiary

Case study
Submanne rescue project for Swedish Navy (URF)

James Fisher Defsnce (JFD} 1s undertaking a comprehensive
modemisaton of the Swedish Navy's Submanne Rescue Vehicle,
known locally as URF, a contract worth around £11 milion JFD
1s conductng a full refit of the existing vehicle, which includes the
design, buid and integration of a senes of new systems, which
will make URF safer and extend its Iife for a further 12 years




Group revenue (£m)

b 3076
10 2683
09 24986
08 2336
o7 16820

on the basis of a shareholder agreement which enables the Group to
exercise control over the economic benefits ansing from the actvities
of the compary James Fisher Angola is engaged n the provision of
specialist services to the ol producton industry n Angola.

Taxation

The effective tax rate on undertying profit before tax was 19 0% (2010
227%) After the mpact of ntangible amortisation, acquisition costs
and grossing up for tax ncurred by jont ventures and associates, the
overall reported tax rate was 191% (2010 23 2%)

The rate is lower than standard UK rate of 26 5% mainly due to the
proportion of Group profit that 1s denved from overseas countnes
which have lower tax rates than the UK In addition, the Manne Oil
drasian falls under the UK Tonnage Tax regime and doss naot incur
corporation tax

Dividends

The Board are recommending an 11% increase to the final dvdend
for the year at 10 74p per share (2010 9 68p), which makes a total

for the year of 16 08p per share (2010 14 72p) This represents an
increase of 9% on 2010 The final divdend will be pad on 11 May 2012
to shareholders on the register on 13 Aprl 2012 Dmdend cover was
3 0tmes (2010 2.7 tmes) Approsamiately 25% of the Ordinary shares
are owned by the Sir John Fisher Foundation and certamn associated
trusts The Sir John Fisher Foundation s a chantable grant gvng
foundation that distnbutes s Income to a vanety of chantable causes,
including, and with a special emphasts on, causes based in, and
benefiing the people of, Barrow and the South Lakes

Cash flow and borrowings

The Group 1s focused on achieving a balance batween nvesting

for future growth exther orgarcally or from investment in new
businesses and maximising its cash generation Net borrowings
ncreased by €1 5 mdion in the year as £271 miion was generated
from operating acivities which was utiised on investing activiies

(€111 milkon), mterest paid {£4 8 million) and dividends to sharsholders
(£75 millon) At 31 December 2011, the ratio of net borrowings
{including guarantees) eamngs before nterest, tax, depreciation

and amortisation (EBITDA)} was 21 times (2010 25 times)

Case study
Waeak Link safety system

Tre GMC Weak Link systern is designed 10 meet the chalienge of
operating fioating drling ngs safely dunng complston, well testing,
Intervention and work over nser operatons Year round operations
in harsh weather conditons ncrease the need for safety systems
likes the Weak Link, specifically designed to avoid damage to
demck or oil ng traveling assembly equipment due to dnll sting
fatlure or misuse

Dividends (p}

" 16 08
10 1472
09 1345
08 1188
o7 1043

Net geanng, the ratio of net debt to equity was 75% (2010 85%)

The majonty of James Fisher’s borrowing 1s with a small group of
relationship banks that provide bilateral faciiies on an unsecured basis
over a 3-5 year term Dunng the year the Group agreed a £20 millon
42 month revolving credit facility wath DBS Bank of Sngapore and
renewed a £20 millon 49 month facility with Yorkshire Bank

At 31 December 2011, the Group had £38 6 millon 2010 £33 1 millior)
of undrawn facilites of which £32 3 milion (2010 £26 1 milion)
were committed

Pensions

The majonty of the Group’s pension arrangements are defined
contnbution arrangements where the company's habxlity 1s imited to
the contributions ¢t agrees on behalf of each employse Tha Groaup
has two defined benefit pension schemes and as a result of its long
history in shipping 1s required to contnbute to the Merchant Navy
Officers Pension Fund (MNOPF)

The defined benefit schemes compnse the Shore Staff Scheme
which closed to further accrual on 31 December 2011 and a small
scheme in Norway In relation to GMC Produkt AS The deficit at

31 December 2011 was £10 8 milion {2010 £91 milion) on the
pension schemes and £19 2 millon {2010 £20 7 milhon} n respect
of the MNOPF The Group’s annual instalment on pension schemes
n 2011 1s expected to be £4 8 millon (2010 £4 2 million)

Further details are gven i note 24 to thess accounts

Risk management framework and review

The Board s ultimately responsiole for the management of nsk in the
Group The Board determines the Group's policies on nsk, appetite
for nsk and levels of nsk tolerance and specifically approves nsk
management policies and plans, significant Insurance and/or legal
clams and/or settlements, major acquisitons, disposals and capital
expenditures, and the Group Budget and Three Year Plan The day
to day management of nsk 1s delegated to the executive directors and
the management tearm, who hava specific responsibiity for ensunng
comphance with and implementing poficies at corporate, dmsional
and business unit level There are stnict delegation of authonty bmits
that have been communicated throughout the businesses and are
well understood by the management team and business leaders
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Review of operations
continued

Principal features of the Group's risk management system
The Group’s nsk managerent arrangements and processes are
integrated with the management of the businesses and compnse the
following elements

* Rowview at Board level (as a formal agenda item each year plus
on an ad hoc basis),

» Review quarterly nsk management comrmittee mestings,
» Review of business nsk maps at quarterly business reviews,
= Insurance and nsk transference strategy,

* Risk mapping and assessment exercises, with a Group nsk register
dentifying nsk mitigation actions,

¢ Business continuity planning,
* Review of itgation by the Board,
* Internal audit programme, and

= Role of audit committee in monitoring financial controls and the
reporting of performance

A key aspect of cur nsk management system s the Company's
system of Internal control and the processes that have been put

in place to manage the associated financial, operational and
comphance nsks and keep them under review An important part

of the Internal contro! framework 1s the intemal audit service and the
role of the audit committes The mternal audit programme involves a
senes of plarned and surpnse audts dunng the year These have a
strong emphasis on financial controls but often nclude other aspects
of business nisks and controls The report of the audit committes,
including a descnption of its role, and the statermnent on internal control
are set out In the corporate governance report on pages 17 to 21

Principal nsks and uncertainties
A list of the principal nsks to the busimess that were discussed by the
Board dunng the year 1s shown on page 11

Treasury policies and objectives

Treasury activibes are governed by policies and procedures approved
and monrtored by the Board The Group operates a central treasury
funchon which manages and monitors extermnal and intemal funding
requirements and the following treasury nsks

* Credit nsk,
* Ligudity nsk, and
* Market nsk.

These nsks and the Group’s policies to manage them are set outin
note 28 to the financial statements

Key performance indicators
The Group’s key performance indicators are a standard set of
measures aganst which each business reparts on a monthly basis

10 James Fisher and Sons pic Annua! Report 2011

“The Board are recommending
a final dividend for the year
of 10.74p per share, making
a total for the year of 16.08p
per share.”
Stuart Kilpatrick, Group Finance Director

Operating margin / operating profit

Operating profit 1s the profit before Interest and taxation denved

from the normal operations of the business The Group focuses on
undertying operating profit which 1s defined as profit from operations
before costs incumed to acquire businesses and the amortisation

of acquired Intangibles Operating margin s the ratio of undertying
operating profit {o revenue The Group's undertying operating profit
was £361 millon (2010 £32 5 millon) in the year ended 31 December
2011 The Group's operating margin was 11 7% compared to 121%

n 2010

Return on operating capital employed

Retum on operating capital employed i1s defined as underiying
operating profit divided by average operating capital employed
Operating capital employed comprises tangible fixed assets,
intangible fixed assets, operating debtors net of creditors, less
provisions The Group's post tax retum on operating capital
employed was 13 0% (2010 118%) at 31 December 2011

Cash conversion

Cash conversion 1s defined as the ratio of operating cash flow

to underiying operating profit. Operating cash flow 1s defined

as underlying operating profit, adding back depreciaton and
amorhsation and adjusting for net movements N working capital,
pension payments and for the cash profits of associates The Group's
cash conversion was 105% in 2011 (2010 110%)

Debtor days

Debtor days Is defined as average trade payables dmvded by revenue
multiphed to the number of days to which the revenue relates Group
debtor days were unchanged at 58 days at 31 Decernber 2011

Gearing
Gearing 15 defined as the ratio of net borrowings to net assets The
gearing for the Group at 31 December 2011 was 75% {2010 85%)

Health and Safety

The Group places significant emphasis on health and safety across
its entire operations Given the naturally hazardous ervironment in
which they conduct ther businesses, particular attention 1s paid to the
Manne Oil and Ofishore Ol dmsions [In 2011 the number of injunes
amongst seafarers in the Manne Oil division, which injunes rasuited n
an indmdual not being able to continue wath thewr duties for a penod
of time, expressed as tha number of such injunes per 1 million man
hours, compnsed 000 (2010 000)

Employee tumover

The Group recogrises that as a service prowider a skilled and
motvated workforce 1s central to ts success, and as such it
monitors employee tumover The nurmber of erployees who have
left ermployment with the Group of therr own voliion durng 2011,
expressed as a percentage of the average workforce dunng such
penod compnsed 11 2% 2010 13 4%)

Nick Henry
Chief Executive Officer

Stuart Kilpatrick
Group Finance Director




Risks and uncenrtainties

This section sets out a number of

the risks which could affect the
business operations and results

of the Group.

Risk and description

Contractual

The Company 1s mcreasingly engaged n large and
complex contracts which, If not managed effectively,
rmay result in potentially adverse financial consequences

Recrutment and retention of key staff

The success of the Group 1s dependent, to a significant
degree, upon the skills and rmotivation of its workdorcs,
including its senior management team

Economic environment
A potential 'double dip’ recassion, and the continued
uncertainty over eurozone countnes

Reputational risk for operational incicdents
The Group's businesses are reliant on ensunng that
a good reputation is mantaned with all customers

Financial

The Group 1S exposed to interest rate and foreign
exchange nsk. The loan facdies entered into by the
Group also mclude a numiber of financial covenanis

Pensions

The Group contnbutes to a number of defined benefit
pension schemes including ndustry wide schemes,
pnncipally the Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund and
Merchant Navy Ratings Pension Fund There is a nsk that
changes in markst conditions for bond yields and equities
and in the actuanal assumptions (eg fife expectancy), may
result in an increasa N scheme deficits

Impact

Confractual disputes may result
In adverse reputational nsk and
lirgation

The fallure to attract or retain
personnel of the requisite calbre
could have an adverse impact
on the business

The implications on the banking
markets and the Group's ability
to obtan lending on swmilar
terms in the future

An adverse operatonal
incident would damage the
Group commercially as well as
reputatonally

A covenant breach constitutes
a default and could result

n borowings becoming
mmediately repayable

The worsening of the funding
postticn of the pension funds
would be detnmental to the
Group's balance sheet and
potentally a drain on the
company’s cash resources
Industry wide schemes cany
the nsk that as a defictt grows
the liability for the remaining
participants increases

Mitigation

All major cantracts are subject to Board
approval The Group uses intemal

and external expertise to ensure that
contract nsk 1s minmised

Succession planring, regular
appraisals and approprate
remuneration incentives Including the
extension of share schemes to kay
indmduals and the implementation

of skills development nbatives, are
designed to retain and motvate
indmiduals

The Group maintains relatonships

with a small key group of banks,
moenitors events and macro economic
developments and reviews the situation
at each Board mesting

The Group places a particular
emphasis on the health, safety and
secunty of its operations which are
regularty monitored and reported
to the Board

The Group manages mterest rate

and foreign exchange rate nsks
through hedging arangements where
appropnate It also stnves to mantan
good relationships with lenders Highar
interest rates and a waakening of the
US Dollar would reduce profits and
cash flows

The Group haises closely with the
Trustees of its own schemes, works
proactvely to de-nsk habilites and
partcipates N employer group
imbatves In industry widse schemes
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Board of directors

Timothy C Harris

Executive Chairman

{aged 64)

Joned the Board n September 2001 and
became Charman on 1 January 2002 Formery
Chief Executive Officer of P&0's cruise interests
and of PO Nedloyd Container Line Linmnited He
was the Non-Executive Chalrman of Clarksons plc
untf 2008 He was also President of the Chamber
of Shipping from March 1995 to March 1996

He Is also currently & Non-Executive Director

of Neptune Onent Line Limited

Charles J Rice

Senior Non-Executive Director

Chair of the remuneration and

nominations committee

{aged 58)*"

Joined the Board in April 2004 Ha has wide
expenence in commercial shipping havng held a
rnumber of commercial and cperational roles with
Overseas Contasners Lmited Dunng the 1990's he
was responsibie for P&O's Trans European Dvision
progressing to a main board director of P&Oin
2001 He s currently Chairman of the Transport
Research Foundation and Exscutive Director of
Geoenerge Bayern Gmbh and G Finanz Limited.

Maurice Storey

Non-Executive Director

{aged 68) **

Joned the Board in December 2003 Heisa
Chartered Enginser with wide expenence in
operational management of ships and manne
sarvices having been responsible for ships and
port operations as main board director for Stena
Line UK Limited For a number of years he held
the position of Chief Executive of the Mantme
Coastguard Agency He s currently Honorary
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Nichelas P Henry

Chief Executive Officer

{aged 50)

Joined James Fsher in February 2003 as
Managng Drrector of James Fisher Tankships
Lirnited, after working for 20 years for P&0 and
has extensive experence in shipping services,
including flest management He was appointed
Chief Executive Officer in December 2004

Malcolm Paul

Non-Executive Director

Chailr of the audit committee

faged 60) "1

Jomed tha Board in February 2011 He is afelow of
the Instiute of Chartered Accourtants n England
and Wales and was a fourder and former Fnance
Director at WSP Group plc between 1887 and 2009
Pnor to that he was a Pnncipal at the corporate
finance boutique Financal Decisions and an equity
partner at Longcrofts, Chartered Accountants He
currently holds a non exacutve position at IRCA
Holdings Pty Limited a mining professional services
business based in South Afnca.

Chaiman of Evergreen Marine UK Limited

He was President of the Institute of Manne
Enginesnng, Science and Technology from
March 2005 to March 2006 and President of the
Chamber of Shipping from March 2006 to March
2007 He s a Trustee of the Histonc Dockyard
(Chatham) and a member of the RNLI Council
and Techrucal Comimittes

Stuart C Kilpatnck
Group Finance Director
{aged 49}

Jomned James Fisher in July 2010 and was
appointed to the Board as Group Finance Director
on 1 December 2010 Formerly Group Finance
Director of Empresana Group Plc, Stuartis a
member of Institute of Chartered Accountants of
England and Wales and qualfisd with BDO Binder
Hamlyn He has previously held senior finance
roles with Vodafone Group Plc, Charles Baynes
ple and Elementis Group Plc

F Michael Everard

Non-Executive Director

faged 83) 1

Joned James Fisher n December 2006 foliowng the
acqusiion of F T Everard and Sons Limited in which
he held the postion of Charman from 1988 to 2006
He is a past president of The Balbc and International
Maritrne Council, the Chamber of Shipping, the
Institute of Chartered Shipbrokers and the Instiute of
Manne Engreers, Science and Technology He was
anon-executve director of PRO

* Audit committee
T Remuneraton and nominations committee




Directors’ report

The directors presant therr annual report and the Group audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 The
Chairman’s statement, the Review of operations, Board of directors, Corporate governance, Corporate social responsibility, Report

on directors’ remuneration and Statement of directors’ responsibilities sections of this annual report are each incorporated by reference
into, and form part of, the Directors’ report

The directors’ report conshtutes the management report for the purposes of compliance with the UK Listing Authonty's Disclosure
and Transparency Rules {DTR) |

Prnncipal activities, business review and future development

James Fisher and Sons plc 1s the parent company of a Group whose main activity is the provision of manne and specialist engineering
services to a global customer base The Group's cperations are orgartsed into four dmsions, Speciglist Technical, Offshore O,
Defence and Manne Qi The pnncipal operating substdianes are listed on pages 89 and 80

Thea Chairman’s staternent and Review of operations on pages 4 to 10 include a review of, and kkely future trends and factors that
might affect, the development and performanca of the Group A review of the Group’s nsk management framework as well as principal
nsks and uncertanties 1s set out on page 11, and policies on financial nsk are set out In note 28 Key performance indicators {(KPls)
used by the Board to assess performance aganst the Group's strategic objectives are descnbed on page 10

Results and dividends
The Group's profit for the financial year attnbutable to equity shareholders of the parent was £24 1 milion (2010 £19 8 midlicn)

The directors reccmmend a final dividend of 10 74p per share (2010 9 68p) making a total of 16 08p per share (2010 14 72p) for the
year The final dvidend, if approved, will be paid on 11 May 2012 to ordinary shareholders who were on the register on 13 Apnl 2012

Directors

Tim Hams, Anthony Cooke, Michael Everard, Simon Hamns, Nick Henry, Stuart Kilpatnck, Malcolm Paul, Chares Rice, and Maunce
Storey alt served as directors of the Company dunng the year Malcolm Paul was appointed to the Board on 1 February 2011 Anthony
Cocke, the senior non-executive director, retired from the Board on 31 December 20711 and Charles Rice became sentor non-axecutive
dwector on 1 January 2012 Simon Hams resigned from the Board on 13 February 2012

More information about the directors 1s provided on page 12
The following are the beneficlal interests of the directors in the share capital of the Company

Hokdings of Oreinary shares of 25p each

At 31 December 2011 At 31 December 2010
or date of resignation or date of appointment
No No
T C Hans 292,773 280,871
N P Henry 86,831 76,584
S C Kilpatnck 1,500 349
S A Hamsg & 44,224 39,582
AR C B Cooke @ 33,684 33,684
M Storey - -
C J Rice 5,000 5,000
F M Everard - -
M S Paul 5,000 -
{1) Simon Harrls resigned from the Board on 13 February 2012
(2} Anthony Cooke retired from the Board on 31 Decambar 2011
Notes
» Between 31 December 2011 and 5 March 2012, there were no changes to the holdings of serving directors other than as noted
above

¢ No director has an interest in the preference shares of the Company, or in the shares of any subsidiary undertaking

Mr C J Rice, Mr M Storey and Mr F M Everard retire at the Annual General Mesting (AGM) by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-slection All executive directors, other than the Charman who has a six month rolling service contract, have one year
roling service contracts with the Company The non-executive directors do not have service contracts with aither the Company or any
Group undertaking No contract in relation to the Group’s business in which the directors of the Company had an interest, existed at
31 December 2011 or at any time dunng 2011
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Directors’ report continued

Share capital
The structure and detalls of the Company's share capital are st out n note 21 on page 67

Ordinary shares

The Company's issued Ordinary shares are fully pad and rank equally in all respects Subject to nghis attaching to existing shares, any
share may ba Issued with such nghts or restnctions as the Company may by advisory resolution deterrnine, or If the Company has not
50 determined, as the directors may determine In addition to those nghts conferred by law the holders of Ordinary shares of 25p each
ara entitled to receve dvidends when declared, the Gompany's report and accounts, to attend and speak at general meetings of the
Company, to appoint proxies and to exercise votng nghts These nghts and obligations, are set out n the Company’s Articles of
Association (Articles), copies of which can be obtained from Companes House in the UK or from the Company Secretary Other than
those spectfic prowisions set cut in the Articles, there ara no restrictions on the transfer of Ordinary shares in the Company or on the
exercise of voting nghts attached to them except that

e Certan restnchons may from time to time be imposed by laws and regulations (for example, Insider trading laws and market
requirements relating to close penods), and

»  Pursuant to the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty whereby certain employees of the Company require the approval
of the Company to deal in the Cormpany’s shares

Preference shares

The 3 5% cumulative preference shares of £1 each carry a fixed cumulative dividend of 3 5% per annum, payable in prionty to any
dmidend on the Ordinary shares and payable half-yearly in arrears on 30 June and 31 December Tha preference shares carry one vote
for every £1 00 in nominal amount On a winding up of the Company the preference shareholders have a nght to recerve, in preference
to payments to ordinary shareholders, repayment of the capital paid up on such shares plus any accrued dvidend

The Company i1s not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may result 1n restnctions on the transfer of secunties or on
votng rights

During the year the Company did not purchase any of its own shares, however, dunng the year 62,136 Ordinary shares were 1ssued
in respect of options exercised under the Executive Share Option Scheme and Sawngs Related Share Option Scheme

The James Fisher Employee Share Ownership Trust, holds 329,615 Ordinary shares (2010 126,698) of the Company in trust for the
purposes of the vanous share incentive plans referred to in this Report The nghts attaching o these shares are controlled by
independent trustees, who may take nto account any recommendation by the Company

The Company operatas a Long Term Incentive Plan {LTIF), a Savings Related Share Option Scheme {SRSOS) and an Executve Share
Option Scheme (ES0S) details of which are set out on pages 73to 75

The powers of the directors are determined by the Company's Articles, the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by the
Company mn general meeting The directors are authonsed by the Articles to 1ssue and allot Ordinary shares and to make market
purchases of shares These powers are referred to shareholders at the AGM for renewal Any shares purchased may be cancelled or
held as treasury shares

The 2011 LTIP was approved by shareholders at last year's AGM and replaced the 2001 LTIP The 2011 LTIP allows il cost options
over shares to be awarded to nominated employees Awards have been made to the executive directors and other senior executives
dunng the year under this plan, the awards vest three years from grant only if the growth in diluted eamings per share In the
performance penod i1s between the RPI plus 9% and RPI plus 18%

The SRSOS and ESOS were each approved by shareholders at the 2005 AGM, both schemes ara UK HM Revenue & Customs
approved Under SRSOS eligible employees may be invited to apply for options after the announcement of results for any penod The
options granted to each indvidual are related to the monthly sum the ndividual agrees to save under the contract, not exceeding £250
per month for a penod of three, five or seven years Options are normally exercisable at the end of the related savings contract, but
early exercise Is permitted In certain crreumstances, for example if an ndvidual leaves employment for specific good leaver reasons

Under the ESOS, the remuneration committee has the discretion to select employees and directors of the Gompany and its subsidianes
for participation in the schema each time it 1s operated The far valua of the options granted in any year of operation 1s imited to 100%
of an option holder's annual base salary The oplions can be exercised following attanment of a performance target inked to the
Company's total sharehalder retum relative to a comparator group over a three year pencd Following approval by the shareholders at
the 2007 AGM the comparator group was amended to compnse companies forming the FTSE Small Cap index as a whole, excluding
mnvestment trusts
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Substanttal shareholders

As at 1 March 2012 thse Company had been notified in accordance with Rule 5 of the DTR of the following interests in its 1ssued
share capital

Orcinary shares Preference shares

Shareholdar No % No %
Rowland Fredenck Hart Jacksont! 8,895,763 17 82
Schroder Investment Management@ 7,646,937 1532
Therapia Investments Limited 3,539,550 708 100,000 100 00
Montanaro Investment Managers 2,964,216 594
M&G Investment Management 2,118,646 424
Legal and General Investment Management 1,800,859 361
Aviva Investars 1,555,438 312

28,521,409 5713 100,000 100 CO
Total number of shares In issug 49,925,431 100 Q0 100,000 100 00

{1) Non-beneficlal
(2} Includes indirect interest in 1,884,756 shares through Norges Bank,

Auditors

A resolution for the re-appomtment of KPMG Audit Ple as auditors of the Cormpany will be proposed at the AGM to be held on
3 May 2012

Each director in office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirms that
al sofar as he s awara, thare s no relevant audit mformation of which the Company's auditors are unaware, and

b} he has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit imformation
and to estabhsh that the Company's auditors are aware of that mformaton

Directors’ indermnities

To the extent permitted by section 236 of the Cormpanies Act 2008, and pursuant to the Articles, the directors have been granted
Qualfying Third Party indemnity Provisions by the Company These indemnities were in place throughout the year and remained in force
as at the date of preparation of this annual report Copies of these Indemnities are avafable for mspection at the Company’s registerad
office dunng normal business hours The Company also mamntans lability insurance for the directors and officers of the Company and
ils subsidianes

Political and chantable donations
During the year the Group made chantable donations of £597 (2010 £430) No poltical donations were made in the year (2010 £nil)

Palicy on payment of suppliars

It1s the Company's and the Group's policy to agree to terms of payment at the start of business with each supplier and to adhere
to thesa, subjact to satisfaclory performance by the supplier Where payment terms are not negotiated the Company endeavours
to adhere to suppliers' standard terms At 31 December 2011 the Group and Company had an average number of 43 days and
76 days purchases outstanding in trade creditors respectively (2010 Group 49 days, Company 58 days).

Employment policies

The Group Chief Executive Officer 1s the Board member responsible for employee matters and he 1 assisted by the Group Head

of Human Resources The Group values the diverse backgrounds of all its people and works to create an open atmosphere of trust,
honssty and respect Harassment or discnrmination, including that involving race, colour, religion, gender, age, disability, sexual
onentation or any other similarly protected status, 18 not acceptable The Group 1s committed to providing equal employment
opportunities for all of its peopls and all apphcants for employment based on indwidual qualfications and suitability for the role 1t s
Group policy to comply with all applicable laws goveming employment practices and not to discnminate on the basis of any unlawful
cntena Employment arrangements are intended to be far, equitable and consistent with the skills and abilities of the employee and the
needs of the business The Group also actively encourages the training of its employees through participation n industry training
schemes Additionally, both In-house and external traring s provided for staff The Group communicates with its employees principally
through regular presentations by senor management and by means of publication of a Company newsletter The Group also operates
a number of option schemes and long term incentive plans to encourage employees to participate in the ownership of the Company,
details of which are set out In note 25 on pages 73 to 75
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Directors’ report continued

Significant agreements
The Compary Is a guarantor of all of the Group's brlateral bank faciities which upon a change of contro! could be withdrawn

The following contracts may terminate upon a change of control of the Company, its relevant subsidiary, or associated undertaking

«  The Shareholders Agreement dated 22 June 2006 in relation to Foreland Shipping Limited, which is responsible for the provision
of sealift capability to the Ministry of Defence

e The Singapore Submanne Rescue Service Agresment dated 17 October 2008, mada between James Fisher Defence Limited and
First Responsa Manne PTE Ltd

e  The Export Tanker Support Services Contract dated 3 February 2012 made between BP Exploration (Angola} Ltd, and James
Fisher Angola Limitada

The rules of the LTIP, SRSOS and ESOS schemes set out the consequences of a change of control on the rghts of participants under
those schemes Participants are generally able to exercise ther opions on a change of control, provided that the relevant performance
condrtions have been satisfied

Except as provided above, the Company 1s not party to any agreements which take effect, alter or terminate in the event of a change
of control of the Company Furthermore there are no agreements between the Company and its directars or employees providing for
compensation for loss of office or employment {whether through resignation, purported redundancy or otherwise) that anse in the event
of a change of control of the Company

Environmental policy

The Group recogrises its responsibilibes towards the protection of the environment by operating a management system that upholds
the procedures necessary to ensure high standards and safe practices i all manne operations and to prevent damage to the
anvironment Further details are included n the corporate social responsibility secton of this report on pages 22 and 23

Going concern

The Group's business actvities, together with the factors likely to affect its future performance, the financial position of the Group

and a descnption of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties are set out in the review of operattons on pages 8 to 11 The Group's sources
of funding are a number of bilateral faciities with a cora group of banks These bilateral faciities, totalling £127 5 milion (2010

£120 0 million) at 31 Decermnber 2011 fall due for renewal over the next four years with approximately £10 0 million falling due for
renewal by 31 December 2012 Compliance with bantang covenants 1s reported quarterly and involves tests for net debt EBITDA,
interest cover and fixed charge cover No breaches in covenants were reported dunng the year

The Group uses cash flow forecasts derved from budgets, forecasts and medium term planning to identify headroom under the
covenant tests and having evaluated the ongoing trading of the businesses, the drrectors are satisfied that the Group has adequate
resources to continue to operate for the foreseeable future as a going concem As a result, tha directors continue to adopt the gaing
concem basis in prepanng these financial staterments

Additional information for shareholders

The Company's Articles may only be amended by a spectal resolution at a general meeting of the shareholders Directors are
reappointed by ordnary resclution at a general mesting of the shareholders The Board can appoint a director but anyone so appointed
must be elected by an ordinary resolution at the next general mesting Any director who has held office for more than thres years since
their last appontment must offer themselves up for re-election at the AGM

AGM
The AGM of the Company will be held on 3 May 2012 The Notice of AGM 1Is set out on pagses 91 to 85

Authonty to allot shares and disapply statutory pre-emption rights
The directors will be seeking to renew their authonties to allot unissued shares and to disapply statutory pre-emption nghts at the AGM

Purchase of own shares

At the AGM held on 5 May 2011, the Company was given authonty to purchase up to 2,493,164 of its Ordinary shares until the date of
its next AGM No purchases were made dunng the year by the Company The directors will be seelang a new authonty for the
Company to purchase its Crdinary shares at the forthcoming AGM

Further detalls regarding the authonty to allot shares and disapply statutory pre-emption nghts and the purchase of own shares are set
out in the Notice of the AGM

By Order of the Board

Michael Hoggan
Company Secretary

5 March 2012
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Corporate governance

Our approach to corporate governance

The Board 1s committed to ensurnng high standards of corporate governance and collectively responsible for ensuring that the
Company complies with the UK Corporate Governance Code ({the Code) 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council in June 2010 The
Board confirms that throughout 2011 the Company complied with the Code This report explains how the Company complied with the
relevant provistons of the Code and how it discharges its corporate govemance responsibilities

Leadership

The drrectors are collectively responsible for the long term success of the Company The roles of the Executive Charrman and Chief
Executive Officer are separate and clearty distinct Tim Harms, the Executive Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board and
ensunng Its effectiveness on all aspects of its role The Executive Chairman 1s also responsible for development of policy and strategy
and ensunng the effective engagement of all the Board members Nick Henry, the Chief Executive Cificer 1s respensible for leading the
operational management of the Group’s businesses The Board considered and was satisfied that these rolas operated effectively

Dunng the year, pursuant to the Cods the Executive Chaiman met with the non-executive directors without any of the other executive
diractors present o more than one occasion and Anthony Cooke the senior iIndependent non-executive director met wath the other
non-executive directars, without the Executive Chairman present, on more than one occasion

Role of the Board

The Board 1 the pnncipal decision making forum for the Company The Board has responsibility for the overall management of the
Group and 13 accountable to shareholders for financial and operational performance The Board approves Group strategy and monttors
performance It has adopted a formal scheduls of matters detaling key aspects of the Company's affars reserved for it to approve,
including strategy and managernent, long term objectives, oversight of operations, performance, any changes to the Group's capital
structure, financial reporting, matenial contracts, ntemal control and nsk management systems, matenal capital commitments,
corporate governance, key policies and reporting to sharsholders The schedule 1s reviewed annually

All directors participate in discussing strategy, performance and financial and nsk management of the Company and meetings of the
Board are structured to allow open discussion Thae Board meets at least on a quarterly basis each year and to ensure that the Board

1s able to discharge its duties, all directors receive appropnate and timely information with comprehensive papers being 1ssued to the
Board in advance of the Board meetings including financial and business reports covenng the Group's pnncipal actvittes The non-
executive directors meet with the Executive Chairman on a regular basis without the executive directors present The non-executive
directors also meet at least once a year without the Executive Chairman or gxecutive directors presant The non-executive directors visit
mayor business centres for the Group 1 order to enhance ther knowledge of the services and products offered, which in tum acts to
strengthen ther contnbution to Board debate

The Board has adopted specific guidelines to address the management of potential and actual conflicts of interest
The Executive Chairman ensures that all directors receive accurate, timely and clear nforrnation on all relevant matters

The Company Secretary I1s responsible for advising the Board, through the Executive Chairman, on all govemance matters and to
ensure that Board procedures are followed and applicable rules and regulations are complied with in addiion, all cirectors have access
to independent professional advice if necessary

Board committees

Details of the work of the Board's formal committees can be found on page 20 Each comimittee has farmal terms of reference In 2011
the Board appomnted an executive cormmittes consisting of the executive directars which reports to the Board and subject to the
Company’s Articles, 1s empowered to take such actions as are necessary relating to affairs of the Company n the normal course of
business and of a routne nature and subject to such imits as the Board in ks discretion determnes from time to ime The executive
committee reports into the Board via the Exacutive Chaiman  The Board also appoints from time to time sub-committees congisting

of at least two diractors in order to finalise and approve those matters that have been approved n prnciple by the Board

The number of meetings of the Board and idmdual attendance by members 1s shown n the table on page 21

Size and composition of the Board

The Board currently compnses an Executive Charman, a Chuef Executive Officer, a Group Finance Director and four independent rion-
executive directors Biographies of the directors are set on page 12 The Board functions effectively and effictently and 1s considered
to be of an appropnate size n view of the scale of the Company and the diversity of its businesses The Board considers that each
director demonstrates a range of expenence and 1s of the calibre necessary t¢ support and davelop the long term success of the
Group, that each director allocates sufficient time to perform his responsibilities effectively and that no ndmduat or small group of
individuals dominates the Board's decision making  Howsver, the size and composition of the Board 1s subject 1o continuing review
and the prowisions of the Code including i respect of diversity wall be taken into account when considenng future Board membership

This year has seen a number of changes to the Board Malcolm Paul was appointed to the Board as a non-executive director on

1 February 2011 Malcolm Paul’s appointment brings a wealth of financial, accounting, public company and corporate governance
expenence to the Board Anthony Cooke retired from the Board on 31 December 2011, whersupon Charles Rice became the senior
independent non-executive director Simon Hams resigned on 13 February 2012
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Corporate governance continued

Role of the non-executive directors

The Board considers the non-executive directors combine broad business and commercial expenence to bring independent and
objectve judgement to bear and to challenge constructively the executive on 1ssues of strategy, performance, resource and standards
of conduct The balance between non-executive and executive directors enables the Board to provide clear and effective leadership
and maintain the highest standards of ntegnty across the Company's business actvities

The Code requires the Board to determine whether its non-executive members are independent The Board considers that all non-
executive directors are independent for the purposes of the Code Each non-executive director 1s expected to commut sufficient tme to
allow for attendance at Board and committee meetings and to kesp in touch with the senior management team, shareholders and other
stakeholders

The senicr non-executive director also acts as a sounding board for the Executive Chairman and an intermediary for non-executives
where necessary

Re-election of directors

At each AGM. In accordance with the Articles of Association, one third of the directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election and
each director must stand for re-election at least once every threa years The proposed re-election of directors 1S subject to prior review
by the Board At the AGM held on 5 May 2011, Tim Hams and Nick Henry were re-elected to the Board by rotation, Stuart Kilpatnck
and Malcolm Paul were elected for the first ime and none of the remaining Board members were put forward for re-elechon

The drrectors standing for re-election at the 2012 AGM are set out on page 13

Due to its s1ze the Company 1s not subject to the requirements of the Code relating to the annual election of all directors by
shareholders, having reviewed the matter with investors and stakeholders the Board does not consider this requirement 13
proportionate in relation to the Company, however the Board intends to continue to keep this requirement under review

Effective development

Training and induction

On appointment, new directors are given a comprehensive induction to the Group's business, together with an ongoing programme
of visits to the Group's major actvities and meetings with senior managemenit Malcolm Paul who joined the Board in February 2011
has spent time with the management teams within Offshore Ol and Defence He has also had discussions with the Company's senior
statutory auditor

Ongoing traming and development for directors 1s avalable as appropnate and revewed annually The Gompany Secretary adwses the
directors on any important changes in legislation, regulation and best practice

Performance evaluation

The Board undertakes a formal and ngorous annual evaluation of ts own performance and that of the audit committee and
remunerations and nominations committee and each indmvdual director The formal evaluation 1s undertaken internally and for the year
ending 31 December 2011 was conducted n January 2012

The formal evaluation requires each director to complete in confidence a detalled questionnarre relating to all aspects of Board
performance and performance of the two committees The results of the evaluation are collated by the Company Secretary and
reported to the Board wvia the Executive Chairman with recommendations for further consideration and action as appropnate The
review 18 unimited In scope and includes an analysis of the Board’s and committees’ performance in key areas including corporate
govemance, structure and procedures, strategy and its effectiveness, nsk control and communications with stakeholders

The performance of each director 1s also reviewed following the end of each year The Executive Chaman’s performancs 1s reviewed
by the remuneration committes, the performance of the other executive directars is also reviewed by the remuneration committee with
the Executive Charrman in attendance except in the case of lus own performance review, the execulive directors review the
performance of each of the non-executive drrectors The performance evaluations are designed to assist the Board n identifying
strengths and weaknesses and areas for further improving performance

Accountability and going concern

The Board 1s responsible In its reporting for presenting a palanced and understandable assessment of the Group's financial posttion
and prospects and has complied with this main principle of the Gode This includes an assessment of the Group's ability to continue
as a gong concem The directors hava given this matter due consideration and have concluded that it 1s appropnate to continue to
prepare the Group financial statements on a going concem basis The two mamn considerations were the strength of the Group's cash
Aow and the continued support of the Group’s banks Further detalls are included in the review of operations on pages 9 and 10

Risk management and internal controls

The Board 1s also responsble for determining the nature and extent of the significant nsks it 1s willing to take in achieving s cbjectives
and for mantaning scund nsk management and internal control structures Accordingly, the Board has established an ongaing process
in accordance with the guidance of the Tumbull Committee on internal contrad, for the identfication, evaluation and management of the
significant nsks facing the Group, which operated throughout the year The internal control systems are designed to prowide the Board
with reasonable assurance as to the effective and efficient operation of the Group and to ensure the quality of intemal and external
reporting and complance with applicable laws and regulations However, there are inherent imitations in any systern of internal control
and accordingly even the most effective system can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance
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The Board reviews at least annually the key nsks facing the Group and its nsk management and internal control systems No significant
falings or weaknesses were identified as part of the revew Details of the pnneipal nsks and the Group’s approach to managing them
are set out on page 11

In addition the Group's nsk commuittee, which 1s chared by the Chief Executive Officer, meets quarterty The nsk committes's terms
of reference include tha identification and monitoring of operational nsks and ensunng those nsks are baing actively managed The
committee's findings are reported to the Board This process 1s under continual review by the Board

The Board also undertakes a nsk assessment before any decision on major projects is made and commerctal, legal and financial due
dilgence are camed out on any potential acquisition

The Group's mternal audit function also plays a kay role in the Group’s nsk management process The nternal audit 1s a peer group
review process, whereby senior managers from within the business conduct audits of non-related areas of the Group's actvities in
accordance with an annual programme approved by the audit committes, the internal audit reports are presented to the audit
committee for review whereupon recommendations are made and actioned as necessary

The key features of the intemal contro) system that operated throughout the year are as follows

Control environment

The Board has put in place a documented orgamisatbonal structure with defined ines of authonty from the Board to operating units
Each operating unit 1s required to operate within this contrel environment and in accordance with established policies and procedures
which inciudes sthical, treasury, employment, heslth and safety and environmental 1ssues

Information systems

The Group operates comprehensive annual planning and budgeting processes with a half yearly forecast all of which are approved
by the Board There 1s a financial reporting process which compares results with budget and the previous year on a monthly basis to
dentfy any signficant dewiabion from approved plans A cash flow statement projected for a rofing 12 months is prepared on a
guarterly basis and 13 used in determining that the Group has adequate funding for its future needs The actual cash flow 1s monitored
on a. monthly basis and compared to foracast Financial reviaws of the major operating units are undertakaen an a quarterly basis and
a rolling forecast for the year is also updated on a monthly basis

Main control procedures

The Board has adopted a schedule of matters which are required to be brought 1o it for decision, thus ensunng that it mantamns full and
effectve control aver appropnate strategie, nvestment, financial, orgarisational and compliance issues Controls and procedures have
been mplemented which include defined procedures for seeking and obtaining approval for major transactions or organisational
change This schedule 1s subject to review by the Board on an annual basis

Monitonng

The Board has delegated to executive management implementation of the system of ntemal control The effectiveness of the Group's
internal control system s regularly reviewed by the Board and the audit committee Executive management of the vanous business
units subrmit to the Board detalled reports, including significant nsks facing therr business and how they are being controlled There is
an organisation structurs which has clear lines of communication and accountability and delegation of authonty rules Business
strategies are prepared at dvisional leve! and approved by the Board Actual performance 1s compared to budget and significant
vanances are investigated Al major items of capital expencliture and significant treasury transactions are subject to approval There is
also a regular review of the Group's health and safety processes Additional assurance that the key controls are operating as intended
15 prowded by internal audit

Whistle-blowing policy

As part of its intemal control the Group has a whistle-blowing policy which encourages employees to report in good faith any genuine
suspicions of fraud, bnbery or malpractice in order to dentify any problems within the Group at an early stage The policy 1s designed
10 ensure that any employes who raises a genuine concern is protected Any concems may be raised in confidence in the first instanca
with the Company Secretary

Anti-bnbery and corruption

In compliance with the UK Bnbery Act which came inte efiect on 1 July 2011, the Board 1s committed to ensunng the highest standards
n all of the Group's business dealings and condemns cormuption in alt its forms, The Beard has adopted a formal ant-bnbery and
corruption staternent and policy and will not tolerate or condone bnbery or cormuption in any of the Group's business dealings

Relations with shareholders

The Company communicates with shareholders through the annual report, intenm report, preliminary announcements, intenm
management statements and the Company website The Board takes the opportunity at the AGM to meet and communicate with
private and institutional shareholders and welcomes therr nvolvement Furthermore, cormmunication with the Company’s largest
nstiutional shareholders is undertaken as part of the Company’s mvestor relations programme

'n ordler that alt directors are aware of the views of shargholders non attnbutable feedback on the institutional presentations which is
given to the Company’s stockbrokers, 15 circulateg to the Board

The non-executive directors are avarlable to consult with mejor shareholders in order to develop a balanced understanding of the 1ssues
and concerns of major shareholders In addition the cutcome of any meeting by the executives with nvestors on govemance and
strategy matters 1s relayed hack to the Board
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Corporate governance continued

Audit committee
The audit committee 1s appointed by the Board and reports to the Board

The audit commitiee consists exclusively of ndependent non-executve directors Anthony Cooke was chairman of the audit committee
up to his retrement on 31 December 2011 whersupon Malcolm Paul was appointed chairman Both have recent and relevant financial
expenence lts other members dunng 2011 were Maunce Storey, Charles Rice and Michae! Everard The committee met thres times
dunng the year The Executive Chaimman, Chief Executive Officer, Group Finance Director, a representative of the external auditors and
the Company Secretary normally attend the meetings Attendance by members 15 shown in the table on page 21

The committee I1s formally constituted with written terms of reference, which ncluds all matters referred to in the Code These terms are
reviewed annually by the Board In summary these include

+ Monitonng the integnty of financial statements of the Company, including the annual report, monitoring and reviewing the Group's
nternal controls and nisk managernent systems including the effectiveness of the Group’s Internal audit function,

e Overseeing the relationship with external auditors including malang recemmendations to the Board regarding therr appointment,
approving ther remuneration and terms of engagement,

« Monitoring the independence and otyectnty of the external auditor, and
s  Monitonng the audit process, reviewing the auditor's findings and addressing any 1ssues ansing therefrom

Auditor independence and audit fees

It 1s the Group's policy to manage its relationship with the extemal auditors so that the independence and objectmty of the auditors is
maintaned and conflicts of nterest are avoided During the year the Company adopted a formal policy on the payment of non-audit
fes to the auditors This policy 1s designed to maintan the auditor’s independence and objectvity and sets lrmits on the type and scale
of non-audit services that can be provided by the auditors without approval of the audit committee This policy 1S reviewed annually by
the Board

Detaiis of fees pad for audit and non-audit work are shown in note 5 of the financial statements

The audit committee reviews annually the extermnal auditor's performance (including a review of audit and non-audit fees and semces)
and the effectiveness of the audit process For the year ended 31 December 2011 the audt committee concluded that no conflicts of
interest exists between KPMG audit and non-aucit work and that KPMG's involvement in non-audrt matters was the most effective way
of conducting the Group's business dunng the year

Remuneration and nominations committes
Members of the remuneration and nominations committee are appointed by the Board and the committee reports to the Board
All committee members are independent non-executive directors

The number of meetings of the committee and ndivdual attendance by members 1s shown In the table on page 21

Durng the year the committee was chared by Anthony Cooke Following Anthony Cooke’s retiremant on 31 December 2011,
Charles Rice became the senior independent nen-executive director and chayman of the committee

The committes 1s formally constituted with written terms of reference In summary, the committes’s terms of reference include
With regard to nominations the commitiee i1 responsible In conjunction with the Board for

+ Regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board (including skills, knowledge and experence) and
recommending changes,

e  Succession planning for directors and senior executives, and

s Identfying and norminating for approval of the Board, candidates to fill vacancies when they anse

With regard to remuneration, the committee

« Determines and agrees with the Board the Board policy for remuneration of the executve directors and other senmor executives,
e Raviews the appropnateness and refevance of the remuneration policy, and

e Ensures that the provisions of the Code are fuffilled

The report on directors’ remuneration 1s on pages 24to 29

The committes’s work this year ncluded the appointment of an additional non-executive director The committee engaged an
independent firm of recruitment consuitants to conduct an executive search for a sutable new non-executive director with su bstantal
and recent relevant financial experience to be considered for the role of audit committes chairman upon Anthony Cocke's retirement
Following this process the committes recommended that Malcolm Paul be appointed to the position Malcalm Paul's appointment to
the Board was formally approved by shareholders at the AGM held on § May 2011

The Executive Chairman attends the committees' meetings only on mvitation by the chairman of the committee and 1s not present when
his own terms and conditions are discussed
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Attendance at meetings
Director's attendance at the Board and comrmittee meetings convened in the year was as follows

Remuneration and
Board Audt commitiee commitiee
Number of meetings 5 3 2
Executive Chairman
Tim Hams 5/5 n/a n/a
Executive directors
Nick Henry 5/5 n/a n/a
Stuart Kilpatnck &/5 n/a n/a
Simon Hams 5/5 n/a n/a
Non-executive directors
Anthony Cooke 5/5 3/3 2/2
Michael Everard 5/5 3/3 2/2
Maunce Storay 5/5 33 2/2
Malcolm Paul 4/5 3/3 1/2
Charles Rice 5/5 3/3 2/2

{1} Malcokm Paud was appointed to the Board with effect from 1 February 2011

Whilst not formally required, Tim Harmis, Nick Henry and Stuart Kilpatnck attended a number of audit committee, rernuneration and
nominations committee meetings by invitation as and when appropnate

James Fisher and Sone plc Annual Report 2011 21




Corporate social responsibility

As a leading provider of manne semices, the Group 1s committed and determined 1o conduct its affars in an equitable manner
recognising Its responsibiihes with regard to social and ethical conduct, human resources, health and safety and the environment
callectively known as Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and to communicate with its stakeholders The Group believes that its

activities and relationships should be undertaken with integnty and in an honest manner and that it should be accountable for its
actions

The following statement contams nformation on the Group's policies and procedures in areas of social and ethical conduct, human
resources, health and safety and the environment 1t 18 also an acknowledgement of the Group's responsibility to provide information
and transparency tc sharehalders, customers, employees, supplers and the wider community in which the Group operates

The statement consolidates nformation drawn from many policies and procedures in operation throughout the Group These policies
and procedures are under regular review by senior management to enable continual improvement and development

The Group's polcy commitments focus on the following areas
» Ethical code of conduct,

« Human resources,

s Stakeholders,

+ Health and safety, and

« Environment

Ethical code of conduct
The Group 1s committed to ensunng the highest standards in all its business dealings and apphes the following pnnciples

o Respect the rule of law and comply with legistation and recognised industry standards,
+ Do not participate n or condone corrupt or unacceptable business practices,
« Avoid any conflicts of interest both at a corperate and individual level,

« Promote a strong culture of health and safety and enwironmental awareness for the benefit of customers, suppliers, employaes and
third parties,

« AM to provide continuous improvernent In the serices the Group offers, and
« Respect the confidentialty of each customer's business and actvities

Human resources
The Group holds its employees in high regard and racognises that therr skills, knowledge and expertise fundamentally contnbute to the
Group's success The Group operates an equal opporturities pohcy which prowides that it wall not discnrminate against employees, and

any complants of discnmination will be viewed senously and dealt with accerding to the Group's disciplinary procedures The Group
will also not tolerate sexual, physical or mental harassment of employees

The Group operates personnel policies with the objective that all employees

+ Understand therr role and duties within the Group,

e Work n healthy and safe working conditions,

e Have an opportunity to discuss therr areas of performance improverment and training needs,

s Recewe suitabls traning as part of a programme of continuous personal and professional development,

e Are farly treated and have ther iews considered, and

« Have confidential access to a member of senior management to discuss concemns about any aspect of their employment

Stakeholders

The Group recognises the aspirations and needs of shareholders, customers, suppliers and communities 1n establishing and developing
relationships leading to the creation of mutual success Good relationships are founded on trust and good working practices

In pursurt of good relationships the Group endeavours to understand the objectives and desires of those with whom it 1s interacting and
to honour the standards of service that have been agreed between parties

The Group believes that long term relationships are based on
+ High performance standards,

» Delvery cornmitments, and

« Flexble and strong working practices
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Health, safety and environment

The Group operates a philosophy in which the management of safety, health and environment cantrol 1s integral to, and equal to all
commercial actvittes. All employees, both at sea and ashore, have a paramount responsibility to prevent acaidents, Incidents or injury
to themselves and others and harm to the environment The Group's management system embraces this responsibility and encourages
improvement by continual assessment

Health and safety
The nature of the Group's business 1s to provide qualty assured manne and technical services which entalls

* Operating vessels and transporting cargo safely and efficiently,

» Providing high quality equipment to clients,

+ Avoiding Injunes to personnel and loss of Iife,

« Protecting owners' assets that are entrusted to the Group,

s Comphying with statutory and classification rules and requirements,
» Applying recognised industry standards,

» Continuous development of skills and systems, and

« Prgparng for emergencies

To ensure that high standards are achieved the Group has established and mantans an efficient and effective quality assurance
programme The Group's quality assurance system complies with and exceeds the requirements of the quality standard 1SO9000
the International Safety Management (ISM) Code and the Oil Companies Intemational Marnne Forum Ship to Ship Transfer Guide

The Group 15 fully commutted to providing services in accordance with the intemational quality standard 1S09001 2000 The system
encompasses the Group's business from head office functions to its offshore operations and 1s designed to continuously Improve
performance, reliability and safety whilst provding a service that fully meets our customers' requirernents

The objectives of the Safety Management Sysiem arg
¢ Continuously develop and improve the awareness and management of safety of all personnel in the Group,

* Provide a continuously safe working enviranment Operations and activities are subject to appropnate controls that include the
apphcation of safe working practices, complying with relevant legisiation and the employment of appropnately traned and
competent personnel,

* Rewview accidents and incidents with a view to ascertaming and publishing the root cause to improve personnel awarenaess Evaluate
existing controls fallowing an nckdent to determine how these controls may be improved upon, to reduce the possibility of
recurrence, and

» Prevent damage to proparty and the manns environment by ermploying best practice and complying with all applicabls rules and
regulations

Environment
James Fisher and Sons plc 1s committed to operating a sustainabls business and to the protection and conservation of the
amargnment  As such the Group will endeavour to

* Include environmental concerns on an equal basis with economic and commercial considerations in decision-making,

* Identify the environmental impacts of its operations and to take the appropnate steps to minimise or eliminate those mpagcts
In a similar manner to health and safety nsk assessments,

* Go beyond legal compliance by subscnbing to relevant industry best practice and by encouraging all staff to take voluntary steps
to iImprove environmental performance,

» Establsh pre-defined objectives or targets to help achieve its environmental aspirations,

= Monitar its emaronmental performance, to seek continuous Improvemsnt, to conduct regular reviews, and to venfy progress
towards meeting its environmental objectives,

s Ensura that management at board level takes ownership of environmental i1ssues and develop geod commumication flows to foster
a sense of environmental responsibiity in every employes,

s Make available the appropnate resources and provide the necessary traning for employees to comply with, and where appropnate
exceed, therr statutory environmantal obligations,

= Encourage the development and nstallatron of new systems and/or procedures te reduce emaronmental impact,

« Encourage the use of recyclable matenals whenever possible, to minimise packaging and to dispose of waste in an environmentally
responsible manner, and

» Encourage contractors and supplhers to apply these pnnciples and, if nacessary, require them to mprove therr standards to conform
with the above
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Report on directors’ remuneration

The drrectors' remuneration report has been prepared on behalf of and approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by
Charles Rice the charman of the remuneration committee The report wall be submutted to shareholders for approval at the AGM
to be held on 3 May 2012

The report explans the policy under which the executive directors {including the Executive Chaman) and the non-executive directors
are remunerated and gives detaills of the remuneration, fees and share interests of the directors

Information not subject to audit

Remuneration committee

Five independent non-executive directors served on the remuneration committee {the committes) during the year Anthony Cooks (the
senior Independent non-executive director) chared the committee untl his retirement on 31 Decamber 2011 Following his retirement
Charles Rice became charrman of the committee Malcolm Paut served on the committee from the date of his appointment on 1
February 2011

The committee members have no personal financial interest other than as sharehelders, in the matters to be decided They have no
conflicts of interast ansing from cross-directorships with the executive directors, nor from being involved in the day-to-day business
of the Company They do not hold share options ner do they participate in any Group share or pension schemes

The committee operates under clear wntten terms of reference and confirms that its constitution and operation comply with the
provisions of section D of the Code in relation to directors’ remuneration policy and practice and that it has appled the Code
throughout the year

The committee met twice in the penod under review and all members were in 2ttendance at both meetings with the exception of
Malcolm Paul who was not appointed untl 1 February 2011 Dunng the year the committee has considered the level and make up

of the executive directors’ remuneration packages, the grant of share-based incentve awards, the vesting of sharg-based incentive
awards subject to perfarmance concditions being met and the basis of performance related bonuses Tim Hams, as Executive Chairman
of the Board, also attended committee meetings, at the imatation of the chairman of the committes and 1s consulted on matters relating
to the other executive directors who report to him

Advisers to the remuneration commitiee
The committee had access to advice from nside and outside the Group from the Executive Chairman and AON Hewitt Consultants

AON Hewitt Consultants are the pnncipal ndependent adwisers to the remuneration committes During the year AON Hewitt Consultants
provided the Company with advice on the 2011 ¢ TIP and on executive remuneration at operating board and Group board level

Remuneration policy for executive directors

Main principles

James Fisher and Sons plc operates i a highly competitive mternational ervironment For the Company to continue to compete
successfully, it 1s essential that the level of remuneration and benefits offered achieves the objectives of attracting, retaiming, motivating
and rewarding the necessary high calibre of indviduals at all levels across the Company The Company therefore sets out to provide
competitive remuneration to all its employees, appropnate to the business environment in those countries in which it operates For
exacutive drectors, the remuneration package s based upon the following pnnciples

« Total rewards should be set at appropnate levels to reflect the competitive market in wiich the Gompany operates, and to provide
a farr and attractive remuneration package,

« Reward elements should be designed to reinforce the ink between performance and reward The majonty of the total remuneration
package should be linked to the achievement of appropnate performance targets, and

« Executive directors' incentives should be aligned with the interests of shareholders This 1s achieved through setting performance
targets to reward increase in shareholder value, and through the committee's policy to encourage shareholding by executive
directors

The remuneration strategy 1s designed not only to align with the Company's fundamental values of famess, compettiveness and equity,
but also to support the Company’s corporate strategy, as a significant contnbutor to competitive advantage A coheswve reward
structure with a tmely pay rewiew process, consistently applied to all employses, with links to corporate performance 15 seen as crtical
m ensunng all employess can associate with, and are focused on, the attainment of the Company's strategic goals

The Company also sesks to align the nterests of shareholders and employees at al! levels by gmng employees opportunities and
encauragement to build up a shareholding interest n the Company Through a senes of share plan intatives, under the SRSOS, the
majonty of employses of the Company, and its wholly owned subsidianes, have the opportunity to take up a sharsholding intsrest
Additionally n 2011 further awards were made under the LTIP to certain senior executives

Detalls of key elements of executive remuneration packages are set out below Details of directors’ interests in share schemes are set
out on pages 28 and 29 of this report and directors’ sharsholdings are sst out in the directors’ report on page 13

Service contracts

It is the committea's policy that executive directors are employed on contracts subject to no more than 12 menths’ notice In line with
this policy, the Executive Charman's employment agreement Is subject to six months' notice by erther side Other executive directors’
ermnployment agreements are subject to 12 months' notice by erther side There 18 no predetermined provision for compensation on
terrmination within executive directors' service agreements The service agreements do not have a fixed term If it becomes necessary
to consider termination of a service contract, the committee will have regard to all the circumstances of the case, including mitigation,
when determining any compensation to be pad
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Detalls of the contracts are set out below

Cortract date Unexplred term/notice period
Tim Hams 1 December 2006 6 months
MNick Henry 1 Decermber 2006 12 months
Stuart Kilpatnck 1 July 2010 12 months
Simon Harns {resigned 13 February 2012) 4 December 2006 12 months

Elements of remuneration package

The executive directors' total remuneration currently consists of a base salary, an annual bonus, an award under the ESOS, an award
under the LTIP, pensions and other benefits The performance related elements, when valued at target performance levels, cormpnse
mare than 50% of the package (excluding pension benefits)

Fixed elements

Base salanes are a fixed annual sum payable monthly n cash The committea's policy 1s to set the salary for each executive director
within a range around the market median for similar positions In appropnate comparator companies Salanes for ndvidua! directors are
reviewed each year by the committes, recogrising the individual’s performance and expenence, developments in the relevant
employment market and having regard to the Group’s performance as well as companng each executive directors bass salary to senior
management salanes within the Group

Cther benefits compnse the provision of a company car or cash altemative, life assurance and membership of the Group's healthcare
insurance scheme These benefits do not form part of pensionable earmings

Executive directors are eligible to Join the Group's defined contnbution scheme or receve an equivalent company contnbution into
a personal pension scheme Further detalls are on page 29

Variable elements

A periormance related bonus 1s recommended by the committee on the basis of annual financial and operational targets established at
the beginning of each financial year

Each executive director 13 ehgible to participate in an annual performance based cash bonus scheme The committes reviews and sets
bonus targets and levels of eligibility annually Subject to overall performance, 70% of the bonus 1s based on financial targets denved
from the strategic and annual plan, and 30% of the bonus 1s based on indwdual achievement and personal chjectives

The maximum level of bonus that could be eamed by an executve director in 2011 was 70% of base salary Bonuses for the year to
31 December 2011 are shown in the table on page 27 In tha case of the executive directors the financial targets forming part of the
bonus structure have been achieved, and therefore that element of the bonus has been paid in full Other senior executives also
achieved a cash bonus for last year

These annual bonuses are not pensionable by the Company, although the director can use them to support a personal pension

Executive Chairman's remuneration package

In 2011 Tim Hams, Executive Chawrman had an annual salary of £383,250 He was entitled to participate in the annual bonus scheme
and awarded conditional shares under the LTIP together with options under the ESOS The Exacutive Charman is not in the Company’s
pension schemea but he 1s a member of the Company's health scheme and he receves a cash sum in llsu of a company car

Share option and share incentive schemes
The Group currently operates three share-based incentive schemes, the LTIP, the ESOS and an SRSOS The awards held by directors
dunng the year are shown in the tables on pages 28 and 29

LTIP

Longer term business performance improvement is rewarded undsr the LTIP, which was approved by shareholders at the AGM held on
12 May 2011 The LTIP allows the commuttee to award mil cost options over shares annually up to a maximum of 100% of annual salary
to main board directors and serdor executives, subject to the achievement of a performance target, over a three year performance
penod In 2011 the committes set award levels for man board directors under the LTIP at 75% of annual salary Under the

performance target, which utiises a shiding scale, one third of the award vests where growth of diluted eamings per share of RPI plus
9% 15 achieved over the three year performance penod, to full vesting whera growth of RPI plus 18% 1s achieved cver the same penod

ESOS

The ESOS was approved by shareholders in May 2005 — the James Fisher and Sons plc (2005) ESOS The ESOS provides for the
grant of options to acquire shares at a price equal to market value at the date of grant Options over shares with a market valus not
excseding 100% of a participant's base salary may be granted under the ESOS annually

Options under the ESOS may be exercised subject to a performance target based on the total shareholder return (TSR} performance
of the Company relative to a comparator group The commutiee belteves that the use of relative TSR as a performance measure 1S

an objective measure of the Company's success that will both reflect refative management performance and align the interests of
shargholders and executives The comparator group compnses companies forming the FTSE Small Cap index as a whole, excluding
investment trusts If at the end of a performance penod, usually three years, the Company ranks in the upper quarttle of the comparator
group, all of the options will vest 1f the ranking 1s at the median level, 40% of the options will vest No options will vest for performance
below the median For ntermediate rankings between upper quartile and median, a proportionate number of options will vest reducing
on a straight-ine basis Options which do not vest at the end of the performance penod lapse Detals of awards made to directors
under the ESOS are on page 28
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Share option and share incentive schemes continued

ESOS continued

The ESOS was preceded by the 1995 Executive Share Option Scheme (the 1995 Scheme) Under the 1995 Scheme options to acquire
Ordinary shares at an exercise price no lower than the market value (as determined m accordance with the 1995 Scheme rules) of a
share at the date of grant are awarded at the discretion of the committee subject to an overall irit of four times base salary Details of
options held by directors under the 1995 Scheme ars set out on page 28 The options may be exercised following the attanment of a
performance condition measured over a continuous penod of three years and which demonstrates the increase in diluted earnings per
share achieved exceeds inflation as measured by RPl and 1s at least 9%

SRSCS

All eligible employees including executive directors have the opportunity to participate in the James Fisher and Sons ple SRS0S which
15 a HM Revenue & Customs approved all-employee share plan HM Revenue & Customs does not permit performance conditions to
be attached to the exercise of options Under the SRSOS, participants are granted options over the Company’s Ordinary shares Each
participant may save up to £250 per month over a three, five or seven year savings penod to purchase the Company's Ordinary shares

Remuneration policy for non-executive directors

Fees for non-executive directors are determined by the Board as a whole, based on independsnt surveys of fees paid to non-executive
directors of comparable companies within the restrictions contained In the Company’s Artictes of Association The non-executive
directors do not take part in discussions on therr own remuneration Rernuneration compnses an annual fee for acting as a non-
executive director of the Company Nen-executive directors recewve no other pay or benefits (with the exception of rembursement of
expenses properly incurred i1 connection with therr directorship of the Company), do not participate in the Company's opticn schemes,
beonus schemes or LTIP and are not elgible for pension scheme membership

Non-executive directors do not have service contracts but have a letter setting out therr terms and conditions
Details of the letters are set out below

Date of appointment Letter of appointment Expiry date
Maurice Storey 1 December 2003 1 January 2012 31 December 2012
Charles Rice 1 Apni 2004 1 January 2012 31 December 2012
Michael Everard 28 December 2006 1 January 2012 31 December 2012
Malcolm Paul 1 February 2011 1 January 2012 31 December 2012

Performance graph

The following graph shows the Company's TSR compared to the TSR for the FTSE All Share Index, the FTSE ASX Transport Index and
the FTSE Small Cap Index These Indices show the share pnce growth plus reinvested dividends and provides relevant equity indices of
which the Company 15 a member as a basis for companson

TSR
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Information subject to audit
Details of directors' remuneration

2011 2010
Aggregate Aggregate
emolumants fmoluments
Annysl exchuding excluding
Salary and perlormance Benefits in pension pension
fees cash boruses Kind contributions contributions
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive

T C Hams 383 268 16 667 637
N P Henry 256 179 14 449 409
S C Kilpatnek - 171 120 10 301 25
S A Hamstt 147 103 10 260 248
M J Shiglds® - - - - 289

Non-executive
AR C B Cocke® 52 - - 52 50
C J Rice 45 - - 45 44
M Storey 45 - - a5 44
F M Everard 45 - - 45 44
M S Paul® 41 - - 41 -
Aggregate emoluments 1,185 670 50 1,905 1,790

{1} Simon Harris resigned from the Board on 13 February 2012
12y To cale ol retirement 30 November 2010

(3) Antheny Cooke retired from the Board on 31 Decemnber 2011
(4) From data of appointment { February 2011

Benefits in kind principally compnse car allowances and health nsurance Details of the directors’ pension entitlements are set out on
page 29

External directorships

The executive directors are permiited to serve as non-executive directors of other companies, provided the appointment 1s first

approved by the remuneration and nominations committee Directors are allowsd to retan therr fees from such appointments Dunng
the year Tim Hams earned £110,098 (2010 £58,045) for non-executive serices to other companies
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Executive directors’ share option and saving related option schemes

Aggregate emcluments disclosed above do not Include any amounts for the value of aptions to acqurre Ordinary shares in the
Company granted to or held by the directors

Details of the options held under the 1995 Scheme, ESOS and SRSOS were as follows

Number of share options

Granted Exercised Canceflled
1 Jarsary during during during 31 Decamber
2011 year yaar year 2011 Date from whieh
HNumber Number Number Number Number Exercise price exercisabla Explry date
T C Hams 130,282 - - - 130,282 142p” 100308 100313
67,278 - - - 67,278 327p* 22 06 08 220615
49,359 - - - 49,359 468p™ 2303089 230316
26,823 - - - 26,823 596p™ 02 04 10 020417
2,803 - - - 2,803 584pt 050112 0507 12
48,581 - - {48,581) - 623p™ 2503 1 250318
103,107 - - - 103,107 354p™ 200312 200319
88,953 - - - 88,953 410p* 190313 190320
- 73,466 - - 73,466 522p*" 3003 14 3003 21
517,186 73,466 - (48,581} 542,071
N P Henry 40,367 - - - 40,367 327p™ 220608 220615
29,615 - - - 29,615 468p™* 230309 230316
17,647 - - - 17,647 596p™ 020410 020417
2,803 - - - 2,803 584p? 050112 0507 12
32,130 - - {32,130) - 623p*™ 2503 11 250318
65,784 - - - 65,784 354p™ 200312 200319
56,753 - - . - 56,753 410p™ 190313 1903 20
- 49,105 - - 49,105 522p™ 3003 14 300321
245,099 49,105 - {32,130} 262,074
S C Kilpatnck - 32,808 - - 32,808 522p* 300314 3003 21
- 32,808 - - 32,808
S AHarns 14,526 - - - 14,526 327p™ 22 06 08 220615
21,368 = - - 21,368 468p™ 230309 230316
11.082 - - - 11,092 586p* 020410 0204 17
18,951 - - (18,951} - 623p* 2503 11 250318
39,470 - - - 39,470 354p™ 200312 200319
34,052 - - - 34,052 410p* 190313 1903 20
- 28,124 - - 28,124 522p™ 3003 14 3003 21
139,459 28,124 - {18,951) 148,632
Total 901,744 183,503 - (99,662} 985,585
* 1995ESOS
« 2005 ESOS
12005 SASOS

Thera were no gains by the executive directors on exercise of options under these schemes in 2011 (2010 £nil)

The nterest of directors other than those noted above, to subscnbe for, or acquire, Ordinary shares under the ESOS and SRSOS have
not changed since the year end, except that as on 13 February 2012, Simon Hams forfeited 34,052 and 28,124 share options under
the ESOS exercisable on 19 March 2013 and 30 March 2014 respectively
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Lmp

Detads of the number of share options held by the executve directors under conditional share awards relatng to the LTIP are
as follows

Granted Vested Cancelled
1 January during during during 31 December End of
2011 yeal year year 2011 performance
Number Number Number Number Number period
T C Hams 24,291 - (24,291) - - 25 March 2011
71,747 - - - 71,747 31 March 2012
65,988 - - - 65,088 30 March 2013
- 52,979 - - 52,972 30 March 2014
162,026 52,979 {24,291} - 190,714
N P Henry 16,060* - (16,060} - - 25 March 2011
45,775 - - - 45,775 31 March 2012
42,101 - - - 42,101 30 March 2013
- 35,411 - - 35,411 30 March 2014
103,936 35,411 (16,060) - 123,287
S C Kipatnck - 23,659 - - 23,659 30 March 2014
- 23,659 - - 23,659
S AHams 3,475 - 9,475} - - 25 March 2011
27,465 - - - 27,465 31 March 2012
25,261 - - - 25,261 30 March 2013
- 20,281 - - 20,281 30 March 2014
62,201 20,281 (9,475) - 73,007
Total 328,163 132,330 (49,826) - 410,667

The schema s unapproved for HM Revenue & Customs purposes.
On 25 March 2011 49,828 shares audited above vasted fallowing the attanment of the necessary performance conditions of the 2008 LTIP

At the date of pubhcation of 1his report, the interest of directors 1o subscnibe for, or acquire, Ordinary shares under the LTIP have not
changed since the year end, except that on 13 February 2012, Simon Hams forferted 25,261 and 20,281 share opticns under the LTIP
exerosable on 30 March 2013 and 30 March 2014 respectively

Pension schemes

Nick Henry and Simeon Hams were mambers of the Group's defined contribution scheme The Company's contribution was 13% of
base salary amounting to £38,222 for Nick Henry {2010 £30,274) and £19,072 for Simon Harns (2010 £20,679) Stuart Kilpatnck
receved a Company contnbution of 13% which 1s paid into a personal SIPP, and amounted to £22,249 (2010 £1,766)

Interest in shares
The director's interests in the issued shares of the Company are shown in the directors’ report on page 13

Sourcing of shares and dilution

The reruneration comrmittee has regard to AB| hrmits on dilutton and reviews the number of shares committed under share incentive
schemes in any roling ten year period and the headroom available for granting share based incentives in accordance with ABI *
guidehnes on diution imits,

On vesting the awards of shares under the LTIP are satisfied by the shares held by the James Fisher and Sons plc Employee Benefit
Trust {the Trust) Dunng the year the Trust purchased on the open market 256,685 (2010 nil} Ordinary shares At 31 Decamber 2011
the Trust held 329,615 (2010 126,698) Ordinary shares to satisfy the Group's obligations under the plan

The ESOS and SRSOS options are normally satisfied by the issue of Ordinary shares

Share price during the financial year
The middle market pnce of one Ordinary share in the Company dunng the finanoal year was in the range from 440 Sp 1o 574p and
at 31 Decermber 2011 was 509p

Charles Rice
Chairman of the remuneration committee

5 March 2012
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the annual report
and the financial statements

The directors are responstble for prepanng the annual report and the Group and parent company financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent company financial statements for each financial year Under that law
they are required to prepare the Group financial statemants In accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law and
have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements on the same basis

Under Company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satsfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affars of the Group and parent company and of therr profit or loss for that penod  In prepanng each of the Group and
parent company financiai statements, the directors are required to

« Select surtable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
e Make jJudgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« State whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

« Prepare the financial staterments on the going concem basis unless it 1s nappropnate to presume that the Group and the parent
company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explan the parent company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any tme the financial posttion of the parent company and enable them to ensure
that its financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other iregulanties

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors are alsc responsible for prepanng a drectors’ report, directors' remuneration report
and corperate governance statement that complies with that law and those regulations

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and integrity of the corporate and financial Information included on the Company's
website Legislation in the UK gaverning the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other
junsdictions

Responsibility statement of the directors in respect of the Annual Financial Report
We confirm that to the best of our knowledge

¢ The financial statements, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and far view of the
assets, llabilities, financial position and profit of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole,
and

» The report of the directors, Chaiman's statement and review of operations include a farr review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the Company and the undertakings included in tha consolidation taken as a whole,
together with a descnption of the pnnaspal nsks and uncertainties they face

T C Harns
Chairman

S C Kilpatnck
Group Finance Director

On behalf of the Board of Directors
5 March 2012
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Independent auditors’ report to
the members of James Fisher and Sons plc

We have audited tha financial statements of James Fisher and Sons plc for the year ended 31 December 2011 which compnise the
consoldated income statement and staterment of comprehensive income, the consolidated and parent company balance sheets, the
consolidated and parent company cash flow statements, the consolidated and parent company statement of movements in equity and
the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been apphed in thewr preparation is applicable law and intemational
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU and, as regards the parent company financial statements, as appliedin
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

This report ts made solely to the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Compantes Act
2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those matters we are required to
state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for
the opmions we have formed ‘

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors X
As explamed more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set cut on page 30, the directors are responsible for the preparation

of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and far vew Our responsibility 1s to audit and express an opinion

on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and Interational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those |
standards require us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board's {APB's) Ethwcal Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of financtal statements 1s provided on the APB's website at frc org uk/apb/scope/pnvate cfm

Opinien on financial statements
In our opinion

» The financial statements give a true and fair vew of the state of the Group's and of the parent company's affars as at 31 December
2011 and of the Group's profit for the year then ended,

+ The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

« The parent company financiat statements have besn properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and as
appled n accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, and

« The financial statements have been prepared in accardance with the raquirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the
group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

Optnion on other matters prescribed by the Compames Act 2006 |
In our cpinion |

« The part of the directors' remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Cormpanies Act 2006,

» The information given in the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial staternents are prepared 1s consistent with
the financial statements, and

+ Inforrmation given i the corporate governance staternent set out on pages 17 to 21 wath respect to internal control and nsk management
systems In relation to financial reporting processes and about share capita) structures i1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Woe have nothing tc report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you If, in our opinon

* Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us, or

» The parent comparty financial statements and the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting records and retums, or

¢ Certain disclosuras of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

* Wa have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or
+ A corporate govemnance statement has not been prepared by the Company

Under the listing rules we are required to raview

* The directors' statemant, set out on page 16, in relation to going concem,

» The part of the carporate govemnance statement on pages 17 to 21 relating to the Company's compliance with the nine provisions
of the Code specified for our review, and

» Cerlain elements of the report to sharsholders by the Board on direciors' remuneration \"\N\I A

Jonathan Hurst (Senior Statutory Auditor) A_aj\ﬂ’\g/\
for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor, Chartered Accountants /
St James Squars, Manchester, M2 6DS .

5 March 2012
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Restated
{note 4)
Year ended Year ended
31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Notes £000 £000
Revenue 3 307,624 268,349
Cost of sales (269,051} (233,052)
Gross profit 38,573 35,297
Administrative expenses (8,379) {8,681)
Share of post tax results of joint ventures 15 5,685 4,680
Operating profit 5 35,879 31,296
Analysis of operating profit
Underlying operating profit 36,133 32,483
Acquisition costs - (1,010}
Amortisation of acquired intangibles {254) (177
Finance income 7 322 256
Finance costs 7 (6,450) (5,611)
Profit before tonnage and income tax 29,751 25,941
Analysis of profit before tennage and income tax
Underlying profit before tax 30,005 27,128
Acquisition costs - (1,.010)
Amortisation of acquired mtangibles (254) (177}
Tonnage tax {23) (24
Income tax 8 (5,611) (6,085)
Total tonnage and income tax (5,634) (6,109)
Profit for the year 24,117 19,832
Profit attnbutable to
Owners of the company 24,091 19,832
Non-controlling interests 26 -
24,117 19,832
Earnings per share
pence pence
Basic 10 48 4 399
Diluted 10 480 397
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Yoar snded Year endad
31 Decamber 2011 31 Decernber 2010
Noteas £000 L£000
Profit for the year 24117 19,832
Cther comprehensive income
Exchange differences on translaton of foreign cperations (809) 3,216
Net loss on hedge of net investment in foreign operations 331 (430)
Exchange gamns transferred to income statement on dispeosal of subsidiary assels - 2
Effective portion of changes in far value of cash flow hedges 28 (541) (1.577)
Effective portion of changes in far value of cash flow hedges in joint ventures 15 (399) 429
Net changes in far value of cash flow hedges transferred to profit or loss 128 455
Defined benefit plan actuanal losses 24 {4,127) (9,749)
Income tax on other comprehensive income 8 2,445 4,125
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of iIncome tax {2,972) (3,529)
Total comprehensive ncome for the year 21,145 16,303
Attnbutable to
Owners of the Company 21,119 16,303
Non-controling interests 26 -
21,145 16,303
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Balance sheets
As at 31 December 2011

Group Company
31 December 2011 31 December 2G10 31 December 2011 31 December 2010
Notas £000 £000 £000 £000
Assets
Non-current assets
Goodwill and other intangible assets 12,13 93,188 80,011 - -
Property, plant and equipment 14 103,898 104,683 6,347 6,693
Investment In joint ventures 15 12,534 11,693 - -
Investment in subsidianes 16 - - 212,829 198,297
Avallable for sale financial assets 16 1,370 1,370 1,368 1,368
Deferred tax assets 9 2,664 3,962 5,153 4,693

213,854 211,719 225,697 211,051

Current assets

Inventones 18 33,691 32,583 - -
Tradse and other recetvables 19 80,526 61,416 1,609 5,533
Denvative financial nstruments 28 218 3 218 3
Corporate tax recevable - - 2,679 7,435
Cash and short term deposits 20 13,575 16,590 10 34

128,010 110,592 4,516 13,005
Total assets 341,664 322,311 230,213 224,056

Equity and liabilities
Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 21 12,481 12,466 12,481 12,466
Share premiurmn 24,924 24,700 24,924 24,700
Treasury shares (1.681) (679) {1,681) 579
Other reserves 4,742 6,032 (1,338) (1,024}
Retained earnings 1,304 75,148 46,044 38,050
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company 131,770 117,765 80,430 73,613
Non-controlling interests {91} - - -
Total equity 131,679 117,765 80,430 73,613
Non-current liabilities

Other payables 23 607 1,841 - -
Retirement benefit obligations 24 30,133 29,786 20,706 19,747
Curmulative preference shares 21 100 100 100 100
Loans and borrowings 26 103,383 111,573 94,725 101,485
Deferred tax habilities 9 1,141 604 - -

135,364 143,904 115,531 121,342

Current habilities

Trade and other payables 23 59,124 45,695 17,328 16,925
Current tax 4,732 8,490 - -
Denvative financial nstruments 28 1,880 1,211 1,643 1,074
Loans and borrowings 26 8,885 5,246 15,281 11,102

74,621 60,642 34,252 29,101
Total liabilities 209,985 204,546 149,783 150,443
Total equity and habllities 341,664 322,311 230,213 224,056

These accounts were approved by the Board of Directors on 5 March 2012 and signed on its behalf by

T C Harns
Executive Chairman

ywnﬁvber 1475
.
[ -

Ve
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2011

31 December 2011 31 December 2010

Notes £000 £000
Profit before tax 29,751 25,941
Adustments to reconcile Group profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortisation 13,808 11,336
Acguisition costs and amortisation of acquired intangibles 254 1,187
(Profitiloss on sale of property, plant and equipment 335 (597}
Finance iIncome (322) {256)
Finance costs 6,450 5,611
Exchange gain on loans 218 (50)
Share of post tax results of joint ventures (5,685) {4,680)
Share based compensation 1,503 1,308
Increase in trade and other recevables (19,491) (6,927)
Increase m nventicnes (2,081) {1,850
Increase in trade and other payables 12,282 5814
Defined benefit penson cash contnbutions less service cost (5,012) (3,559)
Cash generated from operations 32,008 33,379
Cash outflow from acquisition costs - (1,010}
Income tax payments (4,865) {4,261)
Cash flow from operating activities 27,143 28,108
Investing activities
Dwvidends from joint ventura undertakings 5,913 2,804
Procesds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 3,989 8,229
Finance income 322 256
Acquisition of subsichanes, net of cash acquired (154) (17,468)
Proceeds from the sale of business 17 459 7,758
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment {17,624) {17,789)
Acquisition of investrment in joint ventures (1,220} (20
Davelopment expenditura (2,779) (1,429)
Cash flows used in investing activities (11,094) (17,659)
Financing activities
Proceeds irom the issue of share capital 239 134
Preference dvidend paid (@) (3}
Finance costs {4,750) {4,735)
Purchase less sales of own shares by ESOP {1,449) (180}
Capital element of finance lease repayments (423) (195)
Proceeds from other non-current borrowings 25,448 33,425
Repayment of borrowings (30,162) (38,239)
Dwidends pad {7,479} (6,879}
Cash flows from financing activities {18,580) (16,672)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 27 {2,531) (6,223}
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2011 16,590 20,563
Net forergn exchange differences (484) 2,250
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2011 20 13,575 16,590
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Company cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2011

31 Daecember 2011 31 December 2010
000

Notes £000

Profit before tax 15,045 7,527
Adjustments to reconcile company profit before tax to net cash flows

Depreciation 646 541

Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment - 2}

Finance income (1,001} {1.032)

Finance costs 4,286 3,842

Dwdends teceved from subsidianes (25,096} (18,155}

Reduction in provision against nvestrments (46) -
Shars based compensation 1,020 797
lnerease N trade and other recevables 4,000 (2.826)
Decrease in tradle and other payables 577 9,204
Additonal defined benefit pension scheme contnbutions {2,930) (2,663)
Cash generated from operations (3,499) (2,767)
Income tax receipts 7,562 6,776
Cash flow used in operating activities 4,063 4,009
Investing activities
Dividends from subsicianes 25,098 18,155
Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment - 22
Finance income 1,001 1,032
Acquisiion of property, plant and equipment (300) {339)
Cash flows from in investing activities 25,797 18,870
Financing actwities
Proceeds from the ssue of share capital 239 134
Preference dvidend pad (4) (3)
Finance costs {4,009) {4,057}
Net loans advanced to subsidianes (14,003) (19,620)
Proceeds from other non-current borrowings {26,222) 28,712
Purchase less sales of own shares by ESOP (1,449) (180)
Repayment of borrowings 23,043 (21,328)
Didends pad (7,479) (6.879)
Cash flows from financing activities {29,884) {23,221)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 27 (24} (342)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 2011 34 376
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 2011 20 10 34
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Consolidated statement of movements in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Share Share Retained Other Treasury Bhareho:::: Nan-contralling Tatal
capital premium samings resarves shares equity {nterests equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2011 12,466 24,700 75,146 6,032 (579) 117,765 - 117,765
Profit for the penod - - 24,117 - - 24 117 - 24,117
Other comprehensive income for
the period - - (1,708) {1,290) - {2,998) 26 (2,972)
Contnbutions by and
distributions to owners
Ordinary dvidends paid - - {7,479) - - (7.479) - (7,479)
Gain on disposal of interest in jomt
ventures 72 72 72
Share-based compensation - - 1,503 - - 1,503 - 1,503
Acquired with subsidianes - - - - - - {117 {317
Ansing on the issue of shares 15 224 - - - 239 - 239
Purchase of shares - - - - {1,449) {1,449) - {1,449}
Transactions with shareholdars 15 224 (5,904) - (1,449) (7,114) {117) (7,231)
Transfar on disposal of shares - - (347} - 347 - - -
At 31 December 2011 12,481 24,924 91,304 4,742 {1,681} 131,770 (21} 131,679
For the year ended 31 December 2010
-
Share Shara Retained Othar Treasury sharaholdoetg Non-controling Total
capital premium samings reserves sharas equlty interests equity
£000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000 000 £000
At 1 January 2010 12,456 24,576 66,877 3,937 (768y 107,078 - 107,078
Profit for the penod - - 19,832 - - 19,832 - 19,832
Other comprehensive Income for
the penod - - (5.624) 2,085 - (3,529) - (3,529)
Contnbutions by and
distnbutions to owners
Ordinary dvidends paid - - {6,879) - - (6,879) - {6,879)
Share-based compensation - - 1,309 - - 1,309 - 1,309
Ansing on the 1esue of shares 10 124 - - - 134 - 134
Purchase of shares - - - - (180) {180) - {180)
Transactions with shareholders 10 124 {5.570) - (18Q) (5.616} - 5,616)
Transfer on disposal of shares - - (369) - 369 - - -
At 31 December 2010 12,466 24,700 75,146 6,032 (579) 117,765 - 117,765
Other reserve movements
Transtation Hexdging
reserve reserve Total
Other reserves £000 £000 000
At 1 January 2010 4,897 {960) 3.937
Qther comprehensive incoms for the penod 2,788 {693} 2,095
At 31 December 2010 7,685 (1,653) 6,032
Other comprahensive income for the penod (478) (812} {1,290)
At 31 Decernber 2011 7,207 (2,465) 4,742
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Company statement of movements in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2011

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Share Share Aetained Hedglng Treasury Total
capltal pramium ecamings raserves shares aquity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2011 12,466 24,700 38,050 (1,024) (579) 73,613
Profit for the penod - - 16,704 - - 16,704
Other comprehensive income for the penod - - (2,387) {314} - (2,701)
Contributions by and distnbutions to
owners
Ordinary dmidends paid - - (7,479) - - {7,479)
Share-based compensation - - 1,503 - - 1,503
Ansing on the issue of shares 15 224 - - - 239
Purchase of shares - - - - {1,449) {1,449}
Transactions with shareholders 15 224 (5,976) - (1,449) (7,186)
Transfer on disposal of shares - - (347) - 347 -
At 31 December 2011 12,481 24,924 46,044 {1,338} (1,681) 80,430
For the year ended 31 December 2010
Share Shara Retainad Hadging Treasury Total
caphal premium eamings raserves shares equity
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 1 January 2010 12,456 24,576 35,664 {99} (768} 71,829
At acquisition
Profit for the penod - - 9,080 - - 9,080
Other comprehensive income for the pencd - - (755) (925) - {1.680}
Contributions by and distnbutions to
owners
Ordinary dmvidends paid - - (6,879} - - (6,879}
Share-based compensation - - 1,309 - - 1,309
Ansing on the issus of shares 10 124 - - - 134
Purchase of shares - - - - (180) (180}
Transactons with shareholders 10 124 (5,570) - (180} {5,616}
Transfer on disposal of shares - - {369) - 369 -
At 31 December 2010 12,466 24,700 38,050 (1,024) (579 73,613
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Notes to the financial statements

General information
The consolidated financial statements compnise the financial staterments of James Fisher and Sons pic {the Company) all of its

subsidiary undertakings and the Group’s interest in jointly controlled entities {together referred to as the Group), for the year ended
31 December 2011

The consoldated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and on an histoncal cost basis, modified to include
revaluation to far value of certain financial instruments as descnbed below

After makuing enquines, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to
continue In operational existence for the foresesable future Accordingly they continue to adopt the going concem bagis In prepanng the
annual report and financial statements

Further information regarcing the Company’s business actvities, together wath the factors likely to affect its future development,
performance and position 1s set out in the Charman’s statement on pages 4 to 7 Further information regarding the financial position of
the Company, its cash flows, Iiquidity position and borrowing facilities are set out in the pnmary statements and in note 26 In addiion,
note 28 of the financal statements includes the Company's objectives, polictes and processes for managing its capital, its financial nsk
managernent objectives, details of its financial nstruments and hedging actmties and its exposures to credit nsk and lquidity nsks

As highlighted in note 28 to the financial statements, the Group meets s day to day worleng capital requirements through operating
cash flows, with borrowings in place to fund acquisitions and capital expenditure The Group also has £32,350,000 of undrawn
committed faciiies of which £10,000,000 expire within 12 months The Group’s forecasts and projections, taking account of
reasonably possible changes in trading performancs, show that the Group should be able to operate within the level of its current
banking facilties

‘The Group and Company present therr financial statements under tnternational Financial Reporting Standards, adopted by the
European Union (*adopted IFRS"}

The Company 1s a imited liability company incorporated and domiciled n England and Wales
The Company's shares are histed on the London Stock Exchange
The Company and consoldated financial statements were approved for 1ssue by the Board of Directors on 5 March 2012

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, & separate inccme statement and related notes for the holding company
have not been presented In these financial statements The profit after taxation in the holding company was £16,704,000 (2010
£9,080,000)

The Group and Company financial statements are presented in Sterling and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand pounds
(£000) except when otherwise ndicated

Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements and those of the Company have been prepared in accordance with IFRS adopted by the EU
as at 31 Dacember 2011 and are applied n accordance with the provisions of the Comparuas Act 2006

1 Significant accounting polictes

A summary of the pnncipal accounting pokicies, which have been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding year,
1S set out below

Dunng the year the Group has adopted the followang new and amended IFRS and IFRIC interpretations

Amendments to existing standards
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures (revised 2009)
Improvements to IFRS 2010

Interpretations
IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a Minmum Funding Requirement

The adoption of these standards and interpretations had no impact on the Group

Following the closure of its pnncipal defined benefit scheme in 2010 the Group has changed its accounting for the cost of defined
benefit pension schemes The charges to the Incoms statement now relate mainly to the unwinding of the discount rate on the schems
habilty and the expected retum on investments These elements are more similar to a financing cost than an operating expense In
nature and conseguently these costs are now included as part of finance costs rather than operating profit where they have previously
been reported The impact of this change 1s explamned in note 4

Significant accounting judgements and estimates

Finanaial and business nsks

The Group’s actmties expose it to a vanety of financial and business nsks Where possibla the Group seeks to rrunimise these nsks
through its nsk management policios
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Significant accounting judgements and estimates continued

Pensions

The Group and tts subsidianes participate in a number of pension schemes, iIncluding defined benefit schemes The nature of these
defined benefit arrangements, the volatility of the scheme valuations/deficits from time to time, changes in the market conditions for
bond yields and equities, and sensitivity to changes in actuanal assumptions {eg as to Ife expectancy} mean that it 15 impossible to

predict future contnbution lliabiities with any degree of certainty Detalls of the Group pensicn schemes and the assumptions underlying
their valuations are set out In note 24

In addion the Group participates in the Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund This scheme 1s funded by the current and former

smployers tc the shipping industry and there is a nsk that corparate falure of some of the participants will ncrease the Group’s share
of the hability

Impairment of goodwill
The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy on page 42 An

analysis of the Group's goodwill and the assumptions used to test for impairment together with the sensitivity of the impaiment review
to changes In the key assumptions Is set out n note 12

Impairment of other assets

The Group reviews the carrying value of all assets for indications of impairment at each balance sheet date If ndicators of impairment
exist the carrying value of the asset 1s subject to further testing to determine whether its carrying value exceeds Its recoverable amount
The recoverable amount represents the higher of the asset's far value less costs to sell and its value In use, which 1s determined by
measunng the discounted cash flows ansing from the asset including ultimate realisation on disposal)

intangible assets

The measurement of iIntangible assets other than goodwill on business combinations requires the performance of a review of the
acquired business to assess whether such assets exist and can be identified separately and reliably measured Detalls of the assets
identified in the acquisitons made dunng the year are set out in note 17

Income taxes

The Group is subject to Income taxes in several junsdictions  Significant judgement i required in determining the worldwide provisicn
for ncome taxes There are many transactions and calculations for which the uthmate tax determination 1s uncertain duning the ardinary
course of business The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax nsk 1ssues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were nttially recorded, such difference will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the penod in which such determination 1s made The Group has entered the UK tonnage
tax regime under which tax on its ship owring and operating activities is based on the net tonnage of vessels operated Income and
profits outside this regime are taxed under normal tax rules This means that it 1s necessary to make estimates of the allocation of some
ncome and expenses between tonnage and non tonnage tax actvities These estimates are subject to agreement with the relevant tax
authonties and may ba revised n future penods Further detalls ars provided i notes 8 and 9

Residual values and estimated remairung ives

Assets other than vessels are depreciated to a zero residual valus over therr useful economic Ives Residual values for vessels are set
initially at 20% of purchase cost or fair value at acquisition, which 1s regarded as an approximation of current residual values Changes
in the residual values and estimated ives of assets would result n adjustments to the current and future rate of depreciation and
amortisation through the income statement or the creation of iImpairment provisions Residual values and estimated remaining lives are
reviewed annually by the directars taking into account the condition of vessels, future trading expectations and observable market
transactons See note 15 for detarls of movements en tangible fixed assets in the year

Investments

The Group holds a number of investments N unguoted enties These interests are accounted for as investments as the Group does
not consider that it exercises significant influence over the policies and control of these entities As the fair value of these shareholdings
cannot be readily ascertaned or reliably measured these investments are held at initial cost subject to annual Imparment review

The Group holds investments in subsidianes cperating in certan junscictions where forexgn mnvestors are prohibited from owning a
majonty of the equity share capital of locally domiciled entities These investments have been structured so that in the opinien of the
directors the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity to the extent that it 1s able to consclidate
100% of the operations and 18 not required to recognise a minonty interest in these entities

Basis of preparation of Group accounts
The results of subsidianes acquired or sold are consoldated for the penods from or to the date on which control passed Acquisitons
are accounted for under the purchase method of accounting

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the parent Company, using consistent
accounting policies

All Intra-group balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits and losses resutting from intra-group transactions that are
recognised In assets, are eliminated i full

Enthes m which the Group holds an interest on a long term basis and are jointly controlled by the Group and one or more other
venturers under a contractual arrangement are treated as joint ventures In the Group financial statements joint ventures are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting
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The investment n oint ventures 1s carned m the balance sheet at cost plus the Group's post acquisition share in the change in net
assets of the jont ventures less any impairment provision The income statemnant reflects the Group's share of the post tax result of the
Joint ventures The Group’s share of any changes recognised by the joint venture in other comprehensive Income are also recognised
by the Group In other comprehensive income

Non-controlling interests represent the proportion of profit or loss and ret assets not held by the Group and are presented separately in
the income statement and within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, separately from parent shareholders' equity Acquisitions of
non-controlling intgrests are accounted for using parent entity extension method, whereby the difference between the consideration
and the bock value of the share of net assets acquired (s recognised as goodwill

Foreign currency
(1} Group
The Group financial statements are presented in Sterling which is the Company's functional and presentational currency

The net mvestments in cverseas subsidiary undertakings are translated from their functional cunrency into Sterling at the rate of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date The exchange differences ansing on the retranslation of opening net assets are taken
directly to the translation reserve

Exchange differences ansing on monetary items forming part of the Group's net Investment in overseas subsidiary undertakings
which are denominated n the funciional currency of the subsidiary undertaking are taken directly 1o the translation reserve

Exchange differences on other foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are used to provide an effective hedge against
Group equity investrnents in foreign currency are taken directly to the transiation reserve

Exchange differences on the net investment in overseas subsidiary undertakings are recognised in the translation reserve until such
time as the subsidiary 1s disposed of at which time they are included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and far value adjustments ansmg on acquisition are translated into
Stering at the penod end exchange rate The income and expenses ansing in foreign operations are translated at the average
exchange rate for the reporting penod

All other exchange differences on transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction
Monetary assets and liabiibes dencminated in foreign cumrenciss are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date Exchange differences ansing on settlement of monetary items or on the retranslabion of maonetary tems at rates different fram
those at which they were inttially recognised are taken to the iIncome statement

Tax charges and credits attinbutable to exchange differences included in the translation reserve are also dealt with in the translation
resarve

{n) Company
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and labilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Exchange differences

ansing on settlement of monetary items or on the retranslation of monetary tems at rates different from those at which they were
initially recognised are taken to the income staterment

All exchangs differences on assets and liabilities dencminated i foreign currencies are taken to the incorme statement

The Company's investments in subsidianes and joint ventures

in s separate financial statements the Company recognises s mvestments in subsidianes and jomt ventures at cost Incoma Is
recognised from these investments when its nght to receve the dividend 1s established

Financial assets
The Group recognises three classes of financial assets

¢ Loans and recelivables,
+ Avalable for sale financial assets, and
«  Denvatives

{3) Loans and recetvables
These comprise non-dervative financial assets such as trade recenvables with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted In
an active market Such assets are recogrised initially at far value plus any directly attnbutable transaction costs Subsequent to
iniial recogmitton, loans and receivables are measured at amoertised cost using the effective Interest method 1f the time value of
meney may have a significant impact on therr value less any imparrment losses Gains and losses are racognised in the income
staternent when the loans or receivables are derecogrised or imparred as well as through the amortisation process

If there 18 ewidence of an iImpaiment loss on assets camed at amortised cost, the amount of the ioss 1s measured as the difference
between the caryng amount of the asset and the estimated future cash flows (after excluding amounts already provided against),
discounted at the onginal effective interest rate impaimment losses are recognised in the income statement

if in a subsequent perod the factors which indicated the onginal decision to impalr the asset cease to exist or arg mitigated then
the previously recognised imparment loss can be reversed subjsct to the revised carrying value of the asset not exceeding its
amortised cost at the date the impairment is reversed Any reversal of an impairment loss 1s recognised in profit ar loss
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Notes to the financal statements continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Financial assets continued

(&) Loans and recewvables continued
A provision 1s made against a trade receivable only when thers is objective evidence that the Group may not be able to recover
all of the amount due under the onginal terms of the nvoice The carmying amount of the receivable 1s reduced through the use
of a provision for doubtful debts account Impared debts are derecogrised when they are assessed as uncollectable

Available for sale financial assets

These are non-denvatives that are either designated or not classed as another category These are included as non-current assets
unless intended to be disposed of within 12 months of the balance sheet date After initial recognition avaslable for sale financial
assets are measured at far valus with gains and losses being recognised as a separate component of other comprehensive Income
until the investment 1s derecogrised or deemed to be imparred at which pont the cumulative gain or loss previausly repcrted
equity 1s ncluded in the ncome statement in the penod 1n which it anses

{b

-

Where investments are held i unlisted equity shares where there 1s no active market, the investment 1s held at cost within non-
current assets and 1s subject to annual impairment

If an avalable for sale asset is impared, an amount compnsing the difference between its cost (net of any pnncipal payment and
amortisation) and its current farr value, less any previously recognised impairment 1oss Is transferred from other comprehensive
income to profit or loss Reversal of impairment provisions are not recegrised in profit or loss

Derwvatives
Denvative financial mstruments are classified as held for trading urless they are designated as hedging instruments Assets are

camed 1n the balance sheet at far value with gains or losses recognised i the Incorme statement unless designated as a hedging
instrument

-~

(c

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on inhial recogniion at cost Intangible assets acquired as part of a business
combination are recorded at cost which represents the fair value at the date of acquisitton Following mnittal recognition, intangible assets
are camed at cost less any accumulated amortisatien and any imparment losses

The useful ives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indsfirute

Intangible assets having finte hves are amortised over ther useful econcmic life and are assessed for impairment whenever there 1s an
indication that they are imparred The amortisation penod s reviewed at the end of each accounting penod and generally, 1s not
expected to exceed five years

The prncipal rates used are

Development costs 20% or over the penod of product sales
Intellectual property 5% to 33%

Patents and licences 20% or over the pernod of the hcence
Other intangibles 20%

Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets 1s capitaised only when it ncreases the future economic benefits ansing from that
specific asset

Goodwill

Following the adoption of IFRS 3 {2008) business combinations, goodwill ansing on the acquistion of subsidiary undertakings and
pusiness units from 1 January 2010 represents the excess of the far value of the consideration payable to the vendor plus the
recognised amount of any non-controling interest in the acquiree, over the far value of the identifiable assets, labilities and contingent
sabities acquired The consideration transferred does not include amounts refated to the settlement of pre-existing relationships Such
amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss Goodwill on acquistions between 1 January 2004 and 1 January 2010 represents
the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the farr value of the dentrfiable assets, liabiities and contingent liabilities acquired

Costs refated to the acquisttion other than those associated with the ssue of debt or equity secunties that the Group incurs In
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less provision for imparment The camying value of goodwill ansing on each acquisition 1 reviewed annually
for impairment but more regularly if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired When an impairment loss
15 recogrised it cannot be reversed in a subsequent accounting perod, even if the circumstances which led to the impairment cease
to exist

For the purposes of determining impairment of purchased goodwil carmed mn the balance sheet, ali goodwll is allocated against the
approprate comtination of business urits deemed to obtain advantage from the benefits acquired with the goodwill These are
designated as cash generating units (CGU) Impairment is then assessed by companng the recoverable amount of the relevant CGU
with the camying value of the CGLP's assets and labities and related goodwil Recoverabls amount 1s measured as the tigher of the
CGU's farr value less cost to sell and the value in use Whers relevant in order to assess the value of goodwill the Group combines a
rumber of GGU's Where the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carmying amount including goodwill, an impairment loss
1S recognsed in the income statement

For goodwill ansing on acquisttions prior to 1 January 2004 amortisation ceased at transition to IFRS and it I1s camed at its previous
camying amount subject to prowision for imparment
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Goodwill ansing on acquisitions in the year to 31 December 1997 and earlier penods which was wntten off to reserves n accordance
with the accounting standard then in force, has not been reinstated in the balance sheet and will continue to be accounted for in
reserves even If the business to which it relates 1s subsequently disposed of

Warranty costs

Prowsion 1s made for warranties offered with products where 1t 1s probable that an obligation to transfer economic benefits to the
customer in future will anse This prowision 1s based on management's assessment of the previous history of clams and probability
of future obhigations ansing on a product by product basts No provisions for warranty costs are included in the balance shest at
31 December 2011

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of depreciation and any prowision for impairment Refit costs relating to vessels
are capitalised when incurred and amortised over 30 months, which 1s deemed o be the useful economic life of the asset Other
subsequent expenditure 1s capitalised only when It increases the future economic benefits associated with the asset to which it relates

Depreciation 1s prowided to wnte-down the cost of property, plant and equipment less accumulated depreciation to ther residual value
n equal annual instalments over therr remaining estmated useful Iives

The pnncipal rates used are

Freehold property 25%

Leasehold mprovements 2 5% or over the penod of the lease
Plant and equipment 5% to 20%

Ships 4% to 10%

No depreciation 1s charged on assets under construction

Residual values for vessels are set mitially at 20% of purchase cost or far value at acquisition, which the directors believe to be an
approximation of current residual values Residual values and estmated remaining ives are reviewed annually by the directors and
adjusted if appropnate to reflect the relevant market conditions and expectations, obsolescence and normal wear and tear

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes expenditure incurred dunng construction, defivery and modification Where a
substantial period of time 1s required to bring the asset into use, atinbutable finance costs are capialised and included in the cost
of the relevant asset The carmang values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carmying value may not be recoverable

Impairment of assets

At sach reporting date the Group assesses whether there are any Indications that an asset has been mpared If any indication exists,
the Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset concerned The recoverabla amount 1s determined as the higher
of its far value less costs to sell and its value In use These calculations are determined for an indwvidugl asset unless that asset does
not generate cash nflows independently from other assets in which case its value 1s determined as part of that group of assets Where
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset 1s considered to be imparred and 1s wnitten down to its
recoverable amount To assess the value in use, the estimated future cash flows relating to the asset are discounted to ther present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the tme, value of money and nsks specific to the asset
Imparrment losses on continuing and discontinued operations are recognised In the ncoms statement

if an event occurs after the recognition of an impairment that leads to a decrease In the amount of the Impairment loss previcusly
recognised the impaimment loss is reversed The reversal 1s recogrised in the income statement to the extent that the camrying value
of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date

Research and development costs
Expenditure undertaken by the Group on research 1s recognised in the income statement as incurred

Expenditure on developmeant costs, which represents the application of ressarch to the development of new products or processes,
1s capitalised prowided that specific projects are identifiable, technically feasible, and the Group has sufficient resources to complete
development The usefut fe of projects meeting the critena for capitalisation would be determined on a project by project basis

Capitaised development expenditure 1s amortised aver its expected useful Ife on a straight Ine basis Capitalised developmant costs
are measured at costs less accumulated amortisation and imparment losses Other development costs are recogrused in the mcome
statement as incurred

Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost includes all costs incurred in bnnging each product to its
present location and condition, as follows

* Raw matenals, consumables stores and finished goods for sale — purchase cost on a first in first cut basis,

*  Work n progress and fimshed goods - cost of direct matenals and labour plus atinbutable overheads allocated on a systematic
basis based on a normal level of actmty, and

» Net realisable value 1s based on estmated seling prca less the estimated costs of completion and sale or disposal
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Long term service contracts

() General
Where the outcome of a lang term contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs relating to the construction contract are
recognised In accordance with the stage of completion of the contract, in the penod in which the work 1s performed The stage of
completion Is assessed by reference to physical progress, attnbutable man hours and costs incurred measured against the
expected outceme based on the most appropnate method for the specific type of contract Revenue from the contract 1s

recognised under the percentage of completion method whereby recognition 1s determined by reference to the stage of completion
of the contract

Contract costs incurred that relate to future actvity are deferred and recognised as inventory

When a loss 1s expected to be incurred on a long term contract it 1s recognised as an expense immediately in the inceme
staterment

When the outcome of a long term contract cannot be estmated reliably no profit 1s recognised Revenue 1s recognised to the extent
that 1t is probable that costs incurred will be recavered

(1} Bid costs
All bid costs incurred relating to contracts for the design, manufacture or operation of assets or the provisicn of services to third
parties are expensed to the income statement as incurred, except for those costs incurred after the paint at which the contract
award 1s virtually certain Directly attnbutable costs incurred subsequent to this point are included within contract cests and
amortised over the Ife of the imtial penod of the coniract to which they relate

Taxation

Tonnage tax payable by those Group entities who have entered the tonnage tax regime 18 provided by reference to net tonnage of
qualfying vessels at the current rate

Corporation tax 1s provided on taxable profits from activiies not qualifying for the tonnage tax regime and 1s recognised in the Income
statement except to the extent that it relates to a business combination or tems recognised directly in equrty, or in other
comprehensive INncome

Current tax is the expected corporation tax payable or receivable in respect of the taxable profit for the year using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, less any adjustments to tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years

Deferred tax Is recognised in respect of all temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labiliies included in the
financial statements and the arnounts used for tax purposes, that will result in an cbligation to pay more, or a nght to pay less or to
receive more tax, with the following exceptions

« No prowsion i1s made where the deferred tax liability anses from the mibal recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability n a
transaction which Is not a business combination that at the time of the transaction affect neither accounting nor taxable prefit,

« No provision 1s made for deferred tax that would anse on all taxable temporary differences associated with invesiments in
subsidianes and interests in joint ventures where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it s
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse i the foreseeable future,

+ Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s probable that there will be suitable taxable
profits from which the future reversal of the underlying temporary differences and unused tax losses and credits can be deducted,

+ Defarred tax 1s measured con an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pencds in which the asset Is
realised or labiity settled, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

» Deferred tax ansing on actuanal gains and losses relating to defined benefit pension funds I1s recorded in other comprehensive
incoeme Where the cash contrnbutions made to the schemes exceed the service costs recognised in the iIncome statement the
current tax ansing 1s recorded in other comprehensive mcome, or

« No deferred tax 1s recognised on vessels which are subject to the tonnage tax regime

Derivatives and other financial instruments

The Group operates in mternational markets and I1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk ansing from vanous cumrency exposures, pnmanly
relating to the US Dollar, Euro and Norwegian Kroner The Group 1s also exposed to interest rate nsk ansing from long term borrowings
The Group uses dervative financial Instruments to manage or hedge nsk, in the form of foreign currency contracts to manage foretgn
exchange nsk and interest rate swaps to reduce exposure to interest rate movements

The Group does not hold or issue denvative financial Instruments for speculative purposes All denvatives are initially recognised at fair
value on the date that the denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair value at the balance sheet
date Farr value 1s calculated by reference to current forward exchange contracts with similar matunty profiles The far value of interest
rate swaps 1s determined by reference to market values for similar nstruments  The recognition of the gains or losses ansing on these
movements in far value depends on whether a denvative 1s designated as a hedge and f so the nature of the item being hedged

The Group recognises two classes of hedges for denvative financial Instruments
+ Hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or labilites or an unrecognised firm commitment (far value hedge), and
+ Hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or recognised assets or habilities {cash flow hedge)

44 James Fisher and Sons plc Annual Report 2011




Cash flow hedges
These can include forward foreign currency contracts which the Group will enter into only if they meet the following cntena

» The instrument must be related to a foreign currency nsk of a firm commiment,

» [t must involve the same currenoy as the hedged item, and

s it must reduce the nsk of foraign currency exchange movements on the Group's operations
These may also include interest rate swaps which must have the following charactenstics

« The instrument must be related to a recognised asset or a liability, and

« [t must change the character of the interest rate by converting a vanable rate to a fixed rate

The effective portion of changes in the farr value of denvatives designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges are recognised in other
comprehensive Income Gains or losses arsing on any portion deemed to be neffective are recogrised immediately in the ncome
statement

Where the hadge relates to a firm commitment or forecast transaction which subsequently results in the recogniton of an asset

or habihty the curnulative gain or loss reiating to that tem s removed from eguity and included i the initial measurement of the asset
or lability Otherwise the cumulative amount 1s removed from equity and recogrised n the income statement at the same time as the
related movements on the hedged transaction

When the term of the hedging instrument expires or it 1s sold, or where the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
any cumulative gain ar loss included in other comprehensive Income s retaned N equity until either the related forecast transaction
occurs In which case itis recognised in accordance with the policy stated above, or if the hedged transaction 1s not expected to take
place, it 1s recognised immediately in the income statement

Fair value hedges
Where a denvative 1s designated as a hedge of the vanability m the fair value of an asset or lability of the Group, It 18 designated
as a far value hedge

Changes n the farr value of denvatives that are designated and qualify as far value hedges are recorded m the income statement
at the same time as the related movements in the hedged asset or hability

Denvatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Changes in the far valus of any denvatives which do not qualfy for hedge accounting under any of the cntena owtined above are
racognised immedtately in the incorme statement

Calculation of fair values
The far value of financial nstruments traded in active markets 1s based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date

The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded i an active market 1s determined using assumptions based on market
conditions at the balance sheet date or discounted cash flow techniques

Interest-bearing loans and other borrowings

All interest-bearing loans and other borrowings are mitially recorded at fair value, which represents the fair value of the consideration
recewved net of any 1ssue costs associated with other borrowings  Finance charges, including any premiums payable on settlement or
redemphon of debt instruments including preference shares and the direct costs of 1ssue, are accounted for on an amorhised cost basis
to tha iIncome statement Charges are calculated using the effective interest method, and are recognised i the income statement over
the term of such instruments at a constant rate on the carrying amount

Accounting for leases

(i Operating leases
Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases Loase
payments under operating leases are charged on a straight ine basis over the lease term

(i) Finance leases
Alease arrangement, under which substantially all the nsks and rewards incidental to ownarship of the leased tem rest with the
lessee, are capitahsed at the inception of the lease at the lower of the far value of the related item or the present value of the
minmum lease payments

Lease payments are apportioned betwesen finance charges and a reduction in the lease labiiity 8o as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the labilty Finance charges are expensed to the income staternent

Capitalised leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and the estmated useful Ife of the asset
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Notes to the financial statements continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

Pension plans

(3 Defined contnbution scheme
Under this type of pension plan the Group pays a pre-determined contnbution to a separate privately administered pension plan
Other than this contribution the Group has no further legal or constructive obligation to make further contnbutions to the scheme

Obligations for contributions to the scheme are recognised as an expense in the Income statement in the penod in which they anse

(1) Defined benefit scheme

A defined benefit scheme 1s a pension plan under which the amount of pension benefit that an employee receives on retirement
i defined by reference to factors including age, years of service and compensation

The schemes are funded by payments determined by pencdic actuanal calculations agreed between the Group and the trustees
to trustee-administered funds

The cost of providing benefits 1s determined using the projected umit credit method, which attnbutes entittement to benefits to

the current penod (current service cost} and to current and pnor penods (to determine the present value of the defined benefit
obligation} Current service costs are recognised in the income statement in the current year Past service costs are recognised in
the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod or mmediately if the benefits have vested When a settlement
(which eliminates all obligations for benefits already accrued) or a curtalment (which reduces future cbligations as a result of a
reduction in future entitiement) occurs, the obligaton and related plan assets ars remeasured using current actuanal assumptions
and the gamn or loss recogrised In the Income statemant during the period in which the settlement or curtadment occurs

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change 1n the present value of scheme obligations resulting from the |
passage of tme and 1s determined by applying the discount rate to the opening present value of the benefit obligation, taking into !
account material changes In the obligation dunng the year The expected retum on plan assets 1s based on the long term market

returns on scheme assets assessed at the start of the penod adjusted for the effsct of contributions recewved and benefits paid

during the year The expected returm on plan assets and the nterest cost are recagnised in the income statement in finance income

and finance costs respectively

A habihty 1s recognised i1 the balance sheet in respect of the Group's net obligations to the schemes which 1s calculated separately
for each scheme

The liability represents the present value of the defined benefit obligations at the balance sheet date, less the far valus of the
scheme assets

The defined benefit ohligations represent the estmated amount of future benefits that employees have eamed in return for ther
services in current and pror penods, discounted at a rate representing the yieki on a high quality corporate bond at the balance
sheet date, denominated in the same currency as the cbligations and having the same terms to matunty as the related pension
liability, applied to the estmated future cash cutflows arising from these obligations The calculation i1s performed by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method When the calculation results n a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset s lmited
1o the total of any unrecognised past service costs and the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reduchons in future contnbutions to the plan n order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration 1s given to any miruimum funding requirements that apply to the plan

An economic benefit 1s avalable to the Group if it 1s reahsable dunng the Iife of the plan, or on settlement of the plan habikities When
the benefits of a plan are mproved, the portion of the ncreased benefit related to past service by employees 1s recogrised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the average penod unti the benefits become vestad To the extent that the benefits vest
mmediately, the expense i1s recogrised immedhately In profit or loss

Actuanal gains and losses on expenence adjustments and changes i actuanal assumptions that arise subsequent to 1 January
2004 are recogrused in the penod n which they anse directly in the staternent of comprehensive Income

Share based payments
The Company operates executve share option schemes and a savings related share option scheme under which options have been
granted to employees of the Company and its subsiciary undertakings

For options granted since 7 November 2002 the farr value of employee senices rendered in exchange for the grant of options s
determined by the fair value of the option at the date of grant The total amount, which 13 expensed over the specified penod until the
ophons can be exercised (the vesting peniod),is recognised cumulatively as an expense in the income statement with a comesponding
credit to other comprehensive INncome

The far value of the option 1s determined by the use of mathematical modeling techniques, Including the Black-Scholes option pncing
mode! and the Bincmial model

Non-rmarket vesting conditons {such as profitability and growth targets) are excluded from the far value calculation but ncluded in
assumphions about the number of options that are expected to become exercisable

The Company re-assesses its estimate of the number of options that are expected to become exercisable at each balance sheet date
Any adjustments to the ongnal estimates are recognised in the incorme statement (and other comprehensive income) over the
remaining vesting penod with any element of any adjustments relating to prior penods recognised in the current period No expense Is
recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest except far awards where vesting 1S conditiona! upon a market condrtion, {such as the
performance of the group relative to a Group or index composed of third party entites) These are treated as vesting imespective of
whether or not the market condition 1s satsfied, provided that all other performance condrtions are satisfied
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In addition to fallure by the employee to exercise an option in accordance with the exercise penod alowed by the scheme, an award
made to an employse under a share optton scheme 1s deemed tc lapse when either the scheme i1s cancelled by the Company, or
when an employee, who continues to quallfy for membership of a scheme, ceases to pay contnbutions to that scheme In these
circumstances the full remaining unexpired cost of the award will be expensed in the penod In which the option lapses

When awards are made to employees of a subsidiary, the award is treated as & capital contnbution to the subsidiary with a
corresponding increase N the cost of investment being reflected in the Company balance sheet

Where the exercise of options i1s satisfied by the 1ssue of shares by the company the nominal value of any shares 1ssued from
the exercise of options is credited to share capital with the balance of the proceads recewved, net of transaction costs, credited
to share premium

Short term employee benefits
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for short term employee benefits, including bonuses, only when contractually or
constructively obliged

Treasury shares

Shares 1ssued by the Company which are held by the Company or Its subsidiary entities (ncluding the Employee Share Ownership
Trust (ESOT)), are designated as treasury shares The cost of these shares 1s deducted from equity No gains or losses are recognised
on the purchasa, sale, cancellation or issue of reasury shares Consideration paid or receved 1s recogmsed directly In equity

ESOP Trust

Company shares are held in an employee share ownership plan (ESOF) The finance costs and administration costs relating to the
ESCP are charged to the income statement Dividend income ansing on own shares 1s excluded in amving at profit before taxaton and
deducied from aggregate dividends paid The shares are ignored for the purposes of calculating the Group's eamings per share

Segmental reporting

An operaling segment 1s a component of the Group that engages in business actmties from which it may eamn revenues and incur
expenses, ncluding revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Group's other components All operating
segments results are reviewed regularly by the Board 1o make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess
performance where discrete financial information 1s available

Transfer pncing between business segments 1s set on an arms’ length basis similar to transactions with third parties
The Group's gsographic information is determined by the location of the Group’s assets and operations

Revenue

Revenue, after excluding trade discounts and value added tax, represents the prowision of goods and services by the Group and its
subsidianes in the normal course of business and 15 recognised when the significant nsks and rewards of ownership have passed to
the buyer The transfer of nsks and rewards 1s assumed to pass to the customer on delivery of the goods or completion of the provision
of the relevant services

Where services rendered relate to long term contracts and are not completed at the balance sheet date, revenue 1s recognised in
propartion to the stage of completion of the transaction measured by reference to the proportion of total expected costs incurred
Revenus 1s not recognised if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the consideration due

Detalls of the revenue recogniion on long term contracts are included on page 51

Rentals recavable under operating leases are credited to révenue on a strarght ine basis over the lease term There are no rental
commitments in respect of long term leasing arrangements

Non-current assets held for sale

On classification as held for sale, non-current assets are recognised at the lower of carying amount and farr value less costs to sell
Impaimment losses on imitial classification as held for sale are ncluded in profit or loss, as are any gans and losses on subsequent re-
measurement

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and short term deposits included in the balance sheet compnse cash at bank and in hand and short term deposits with an
onginal matunty of three months or less from the onginal acquisthion date

Cash and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement compnse cash and short term deposits, net of bank overdrafts

Intra Group financial instruments

Where the Company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtness of other companias within the Group, the
Company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect the Company treats the
guarantea contract as a contingant labiity untit such time as tt bacomes probable that the Cornpany will be reguired to meake a
payment under the guarantee
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Notes tc the financial statements continued

1 Significant accounting policies continued

New standards and interpretations not applied

The Intemational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") have
also 1ssued the following standards and interpretations which have been endorsed by the EU at 31 December 2011 with an effective
date of mplementation after the date of these financial statements

International Accounting Standards {({AS/IFRSs) Effective Date (for Group)
Amendments to IFRS 1 First-ttime Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting standards from 1 January 2012
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments Disclosures from 1 January 2012

The directors do not anticipate that the adoption of these standards and interpretations will have a matenal impact on the Group's
financial statements in the penod of intial application

2 Segmental information

Operating segments

Managernent has determined the operating segments based on the reports revigwed by the Board that are utilised to make strategic
decisions The Board considers the business pnmanly from the products and services perspective and has four reportable segments

» Specialist Techmcal - ncludes the hire and sale of large scale pneurnatic fenders and ship to ship transfer services,
the design and supply of systerns for monitonng strains and stress in structures and equipment and non-destructive testing,
decommussioning and remote operations and monitonng services predominantly to the nuclear industry,

« Offshore Ol - manufacture and rental of equipment for the offshore oil and gas ndustry and the design and manufacture
of specialist downhole tools and equipment for extracting oll,

e Defence — prowision of manne services to the Ministry of Defence {MoD) and other navies Including the UK submarine rescue
services, maintenance, asset management and consultancy senaces, a joint venture which prowides military strategic sealift
capabiiity via its operation of six roll on-roll off vessels for the MoD, and a joint venture which provides subrmanne rescua Serces
to the Government of Singapore,

s Manne Ol - engaged in the sea transpertation of clean petroleum products in North West Europe

The Board assess the performance of the segments based on operating profit beiore central common costs, acquisition costs and
amortisation of intangible assets but after the Group's share of the post tax results of associates and joint ventures This 1s defined as
underlying operating profit In the following tables The Board believes that such information 1s the most relevant in evaluating the results
of certain segments relatve to other entities which operate within these industnes

Inter segmental sales are madse using pnces determined on an arm's length basis
No indmvidual customer accounted for mere than 10% of extenal revenue in the penods included in the financial statements

Information on operating segments relating to 2010 has been revised to reflect the change in accounting for pension costs referred

to in note 1 above Segmental nformation has also been rewised to transfer certan shipping service actvities relating to Manne Oil from
Specialist Technical to Manne Ol The effect for the year ended 31 December 2010 1s to increase the segmental profits attnbutable

to Specialist Technical Services by £681,000 and reduce the segmental profits attnbutable to Manne Qil by the same amount

Business segments
The following tables present revenue and profit and certain asset and lability information regarding the Group's business segments for
the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Further mformation on the actnvities of these segments 1s included in the Chairman's statement on pages 4 to 7
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Year ended 31 December 2011

Spaciallst
Teachnical Offshors Qil Martne
Services Services Defence o Corporate® Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Segmental revenue 146,521 71,580 29,271 66,805 - 314,177
Inter segment sales (5,077) (369) (1,107) - - {6,553)
Group revenue 141,444 71,211 28,164 66,805 - 307,624
Underlying operating profit 19,792 12,783 5,490 1,145 {3,077} 36,133
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (113) (141) - - - (254)
Profit from operations including results of
assoclates and joint ventures 19,679 12,642 5,490 1,145 {3,077) 35,879
Finance income 322
Finance Gosts {6,450)
Profit before tonnage and income tax 29,751
Tonnage and ncome tax (5,634)
Profit attnbutable to equity holders 24,117
Share of post tax results of associates and
joint ventures 2,086 - 3,599 - - 5,685
Assets and habilities
Segment assets 117,276 120,518 28,994 63,338 {996) 329,130
Investment in joint venturas 7,336 - 5,198 - - 12,534
Total assets 341,664
Segment habilihes (25,600) (10,688) (10,440) (17,903} (145,354) (209,085)
Other segment information
Caprtal expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 4,146 11,110 192 1,506 181 17,135
Depreciation 2,323 6,201 324 4,412 168 13,428
Amartisation of intangible assets 411 221 - - - 632

* Corporata assets comprise available for sala assets, deferred tax and centrally heldt corporate assets

* Corporate fahilties comprise bark lpans pension schemes and corporate and deferred tax llabiities
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Notes to the financial statements continued

2 Segmental information continued
Business segments
Year ended 31 December 2010

Speclahst
Technical Offshore Cil Marine
Services Services Defence Qil Corporate* Totat
£000 £000 £000 £000 000 £000

Revenue
Segmental revenue 120,493 58,729 21,363 71,857 - 272,442
Inter segment sales (3.826) (189} (78) - - (4,093}
Group revenue 116,667 58,540 21,285 71,857 - 268,349
Underlying operating profit 18,478 11,023 5,263 725 (3,006) 32,483
Acquisition costs (4086) {604) - - - {1,010
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 61) (116) - - - (177)
Profit from operations including resuklts of
assoclates and joint ventures 18,011 10,303 5,263 725 (3,0086) 31,206
Finance income ~ 256
Finance costs (5.611)
Profit before tonnage and income tax 25,941
Tonnage and income tax (6,109)
Profit attributable to equity holders 19,832
Share of post tax results of associates and
joint ventures 1,688 - 2,892 - - 4,680
Assets and habilities
Segment assets 108,581 113,551 18,268 68,618 1,600 310,618
Investment 1n joint ventures 4,017 - 7,676 - - 11,693
Total assets 322,311
Segment llabiities {18,742) (11,807) (3,839) {(20,436) (148,722) (204,546)
Other segment information
Capital expenditure
Property, plant and equipment 8,050 19,180 756 1,758 9 29,753
Depreciation 1,911 4,761 320 4,168 176 11,336
Amortisation of iIntangible assets 61 116 - - - 177

* Corporate assets compiise avaliable for sale assets, deferred tax and centrally held corporate assets
* Corporate Fabilities comprise bank loans, pension schemes and corporate and deferred tax labilties
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Geographic information

The following table represents revenue, expenditure and certain asset information regarding the Group's geographic presence for the
years ended 2011 and 2010 Further analysis of the geographic spread of the business cutside the European area has been provided
In order to enable a better understanding of the scope of the Group’s gverseas activities

Geographical revenue 1s determined by the location in which the product or service 1s provided Where custorners receve the product
or service In one geographical location for use or shipment to another it 15 not practicable for the Group to iIdentify this and the revenue
1s attnbuted to the location of the nitial shipment The geographtcal allocation of segmental assets and liabilities 1s determined by the

location of the attnbutable businass unit

Middie East, Alrica

United Kingdom Rest of Europe & Americas Asla Pacrlic Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000
Revenue
Segmental revenue 135,388 119,373 80,143 66,589 42,178 40,904 56,468 45,486 314,177 272,442
Inter segment sales (6,431)  (4,093) {122) - - - - - (6,553) (4.093)
Group revenue 128,957 115280 80,021 66580 42,478 40,994 56,468 45486 307,624 268,349
Segment assets 84,250 76,652 28,783 21,885 5,044 5544 12,597 9,463 130,674 113,544
Investment in jont
ventures 3,412 5,319 222 228 6,127 3,269 2,773 2,877 12,534 11,693
Financial assets 1,370 1,370 - - - - - - 1,370 1,370
Other non-current assets 144,443 136,929 39,671 45573 2,743 2467 10,229 10,735 197,086 195,704
341,664 322,311
3 Revenue
Revenue disclosed in the ncome statement 1s analysed as follows
o 2010
£000 £000
Sale of gocds and serices 267,567 239,569
Rental income 32,705 28,780
Contract revenue recognised in the penod 7,350 —
Total revenue 307,624 268,349
Construction contracts
2011 2010
£000 £000
Amounts included in the income statement
Contract revenue recognised in the penod 7,350 -
Costs reiating to contract revenue recognised in the penod 5,910 -
Recognised as profits in the penod and to date 1,440 -
Amounts included i the balance sheet
Amount due from customers inciuded In recevables 7,350 -
Included in accruals and deferred revenue (542) -
Amounts included in trade creditors {4,039) -
Net investment 1n contract work in progress 2,769 -
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Notes to the financial statements continued

4 Adjustment ansing from change in accounting policy

As explaned in note 1, the results of earier years have been restated to nclude the unwinding of the discount on pension liabiitries and
expected return on penston assets within finance costs rather than n operating expenses Tha impact on operating profit and finance
costs for the penod concerned 15 as follows

31 Decernber 2010

2000
Operating profit

As previously reported 29,928
Adjustment 1,368
Restated 31,296
Net finance costs

As previously reported (4,243}
Adjustment {1,368)
Restated (5,611)

These adjustments have no impact on profit before tax for the perod, cash flow or equity

A balance sheet In respect of earlier penods has net been presented as the accounting policy change does not have any effect on the
balance sheet presentation

5 Operating profit
This 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

2011 2010
£000 £000
Loss/(profity on sale of property, plant and equipment 335 612)
Deprectation of property, plant and equipment
Ships 4,693 4,325
Other 8,735 7,011
Total depreciation charge 13,428 11,336
Amortisation of intangible assets 632 177
Research and development costs 1,648 1,489
Net foreign currency losses 517 532
Cost of nventonies recognised as an expense 106,637 74,188
Operating lease rentals
Property 3,452 2,944
Ships 10,699 12,721
Other 594 578
14,745 16,243
Auditor’s remuneration compnses the following
2011 2010
£000 £000
Audit of the financial statements of the parent 165 184
Fees payable to the Company's auditor and its associates for other services
Local statutory audits of subsichanes 235 258
400 442
Taxatton serices 112 121
Corporate finance services - 195
Other services 13 -
525 758

Audrt fees relate entirely to the Group's current auditor, KPMG Audit Ple
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6 Staff costs and directors’ emoluments
{a) Staff costs including executive directors

Group

Restated
{rote 4)
2011 2010
£000 £000
Wages and salanes 61,703 55,312
Social secunty costs 5,748 4,920
Pension costs (ses note 24) 1,380 2,071
Share based compensation 1,503 1,308
70,334 63,612

The monthly average number of persons including executive directors employed by the Group was

Group
2011 2010
Number Nurriper
Technical and administrative 1,387 1,248
Seafarers 259 272
1,646 1,520
{b) Directors’ emoluments

2011 2010
£000 £000
Directors’ emoluments 1,905 1,790

Aggregate gains made by directors on the exercise of options - -
Amounts recevable under long term incentive plans - -
Pension contributions to defined contnbution schemes 93 53
Number of directors accruing benefits under
Defined benefit schemes -
Defined contribution schemes 3 3

-

Full detalls of the emoluments of directors are set out in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 24 to 29
7 Finance income/{costs}

Restated

{nate 4}

2011 2010

£000 £000

Bank nterest recevable 322 256
Interest payable on

Bank loans and overdrafts (4,398) (4,101)

Amonrtisation of loan arangement fees (551} {389)

Prefarence dividend 4 (3)

Finance charges payable under finance leases (66) @3)

Interest on pension obligations {1,423} {1,368)

Other Interest (8) (1)

{6,450} {5,895)

Interest on bank loans capitalised - 284

(6,450) (5,611)

Interest was capitalised in 2010 at the rate applying to the specific funds borrowed 1n respect of the project or where no specific funds
were obtained at a rate consistent with the Group's general borrowing costs In 2010 rates vaned between 3 0% and 4 7%
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Notes to the financial statements continued

8 Taxation

The Group has entered the UK tonnage tax regirne under which tax on 1ts ship owning and cperating activities 1s based on the net
tonnage of vessels operated Any income and profits outside the tonnage tax regime are taxed under the normal tax rules of the

relevant tax junsdiction

The tax charge 1s as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax {2,700) (5,135)
Tax overprovided in previous years 935 -
Foreign tax (2,381) {1,883)
Total current tax (4,146) {7,018}
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences (1,465) 933
Tota! taxation on continuing operations {5,611) {6,085)
The total tax charge in the income statement is allocated as follows

2011 2010

£000 £000
Income tax expense reported in Group Income statement 5,611 6,085
Share of joint ventures’ current tax 152 256
Total income tax expense 5,763 6,341
Income tax on comprehensive income

Group

201 2010

£000 £000
Current tax:
Current tax on foreign exchange losses/{profits) on internal loans 177 (188}
Current tax on contnbutions to defined benefit pension schemes 881 539
Current tax an contributions to defined benefit pension schemes — relating 1o pnor year 1,770 -
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax relating to the actuanal gans and losses on defined benefit pension schemes (547) 3,426
Deferred tax relating to share based payments - g
Deferred tax relating to far value of denvatives 164 337

2,445 4,125
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Reconcihation of effective tax rate

The tax on the Group’s profit on continuing actmties differs from the theoretical amount that would anse using the rate applicable under
UK corporation tax rules as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000

Profit before tax from contnuing operations 29,751 25,941
Tax ansing In nterests In joint ventures {note 15) 152 256
29,903 26,197

At UK statutory tax rate of 26 5% (2010 289%) 7,924 7,335
Difference due to application of fonnage tax to vessel actvities {248) 583
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 202 257

(Over)/funder provision in previous years

Current tax {835) -
Defeired tax 1,016 (&60)
Share based payments (82) 151
Lawer taxes on overseas Ncome (1,360} (1,166}
Research and development relief {151} {105}
Utihsation of losses brought forward (6) (112)
Non taxable income {411) -
Impact of change of rate (270) (28)
Other 84 (14}

5,763 6,341

The effective ncome tax rate on the underlying profit before tax 1s 19 0% {2010 22 7%) The effective rate on profit before mcome and
tonnage tax from continuing cperations 1s 19 1% (2010 23 2%}

Unrecogmised tax losses

At 31 December 2011 the Group has unrecogrused tax losses of £2,387,000 (2010 £2,337,000) A deferred tax asset has not been
recogrised in respect of these losses due to the uncertainty relating to their future recovery

The Group has elected to enter tonnage tax in respect of certain of ts ship refated activities with effact from 2000 The slection had the
effect of elrminating potential tax habiliies on shipping profits of qualifing ships n the United Kingdom  The regime includes provisions
whereby a proportion of capital allowances previously clamed by the Group can be subject to tax in the event of a significant number of
assets beng sold and not replaced This contingent liabiity diminishes to nil over the seven year penod following entry into tonnage tax
There 1s a contingent liability relating to the FT Everard & Sons Limited flset which entered tonnage tax in 2006 at 31 December 2011 of
£184,000 (2010 £507,000) This assumes that any such stups unsold at 31 Decermnber 2011 are sold at the lower of net book value at
that date and market value on entry into tonnage tax and that after 2011 no relefs are available to reduce the balancing charge gmvng
nse o the liability other than the seven year tapering relief provided i the Finance Act 2000

There is no proviston for deferred tax on accelerated capital allowances for actwvities which fall within tonnage tax

UK corporation tax rates are reducing from 28% to 23% over a penod of four years from 2011 The first reduction in the UK corparation
tax rate from 28% to 26% was effective from 1 Apnl 2011 The second reduction in the rate to 25% and will ba sffective from 1 Apnl
2012 This will reduce the Group's future current tax charge accordingly The deferred tax balance at 31 December 20114 has been
calcufated based on application of the reduced 25% UK Caorporation tax rate from the relevant date and the impact of the
remeasuremeant has been included in profit or loss and other comprehensive iIncome as appropnate As the reduction to 23% 1s not
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date it has not been accounted for It has not been possible to quantify the full anticipated

effect of the announced further 2% rate reduction, although this will further reduce the Group’s futura current tax charge and reduce the
Group's deferred tax assets
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Notes to the financial statements continued

9 Deferred tax
Group
Deferred tax at 31 December relates to the followang

Group Group
balance shest incoma statement
2011 2010 2014 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax assets
Retirernent benefits 5,886 6,259 (175) 682
Share based payments 692 482 {210) 151
Denvative financia! Instruments 500 337 - -
7,078 7,078
Deferred tax habilities
Property plant and equipment {4,095) (3,088) 586 199
Intangible assets {(2,003) (986} 1,163 (72}
Other items 543 354 101 27
(5,555) {3,720)
Deferred income tax charge 1,465 933
Net deferred income tax asset 1,523 3,358
The gross mavement on the deferred income tax account is as follows
2011 2010
£000 £00¢
Balance at 1 January 3,358 {1,147}
Charged to comprehensive income (383) 3,772
(Charged)/credited to income statement (1,465) 933
Exchange adjustments 13 9
Acquisttion of subsidiangs - (462)
Disposal of subsichares - 253
Balance at 31 December 1,523 3,358

At 31 December 2011 the Group has no recognised deferred income tax liability (2010 £ni) in respect of taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted eamings of certam of the Company's subsidharies At 31 December 2011 the unrecognised gross temporary
differences in respect of reserves of overseas subsidianes 1s £19,332,000 (2010 £15,681 ,000) No deferred income tax hability has

been recognised in respect of this temporary timing difference due to the foreign profits exemption, the avallability of double taxation

rehef and the ability to control the remittance of earmings
There are no Income tax consequences attaching to the payment of dvidends by the Group to its sharehclders
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Company
Ceferred tax at 31 December relates to the following

Company
balance sheet
2011 2010
£000 £000
Deferred tax assets
Retirement benefits 3,770 3,831
Temporary differences 368 86
Share based payments 802 482
Accelerated capital allowances for tax purposes 34 57
Denvative financial instruments 290 237
5,154 4,693
The gross movernent on the deferred income tax account 1s as follows :
2011 2010
£000 £000
Balance at 1 January 4,693 2,531
Charged to equity in statement of comprehensive income (68) 1,554
Credited to Income statement 529 608
Balance at 31 December 5,154 4,693

At 31 December 2011 the Company has no recognised dsferred income tax llabiity (2010 £nil) in respect of taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted eamings of certain of the Company’s subsidianes At 31 December 2011 the unrecognised gross temporary
differences m respect of reserves of overseas subsidianes 1s £19,332,000 (2010 £15,681,000) No deferred income tax liability has
been recognised In respect of this temporary tming difference due to the foreign profits exemption, the availability of double taxation
relief and the abihty to control the remittance of eamings
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Notes to the financial statements continued

10 Earnings per share

Basic sarmings per share 1s calculated by dviding the profit attnbutable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average
number of Ordinary shares in 1ssue dunng the year, after excluding Orcnary shares held by the employee share ownership trust and
held as treasury shares

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dmviding the net profit attnbutable to ordinary equity holders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Ordinary shares into
Ordinary shares

At 31 December 2011 380,000 options (2010 536,000) were excluded from the diuted weighted average number of Ordinary shares
calculation as therr effect would have been anti-dilutive

The average market value of the Company’s shares for purposes of calculating the dilutive effect of share options was based on quoted
market prices for the penod dunng which the options were cutstanding

The calculation of basic and diluted eamings per share 1s based on the following number of shares
Weighted average number of shares

2011 2010

number of number of

shares shares

For basic earnings per Ordinary share® 49,777,165 49,693,215
Potential exercise of share options and LTIPs 425,687 307,411
For diluted earnings per Ordinary share 50,202,852 50,000,626

- Excludes 329,615 {2010 126,608) shares owned by the James Fisher and Sons pic Employee Shere Ownership Trust

Adjusted earnings per share
To provide a better understanding of the undertying performance of the Group, an adjusted earmings per share on continuing actmties
1s provided Adjusted eamings are before the costs of any business combinations and amortisation of acquired intangibles

2011 2010
£000 £000
Profit attnbutable to owners of the Company 24,01 19,832
Adjustments
Acquisition expenses - 1,010
Amorhsation of acquired intangibles net of tax 182 127
Adjusted profit attnbutable to owners of the Company 24,273 20,969
pence pence
Basic earnings per share on profit from operations 48.4 399
Diluted earmings per share on profit from operations 48.0 397
Adjusted basic earnings per share on profit from operations 488 42 2
Adjusted diluted earnings per share on profit from operations 48.4 419
11 Dividends paid and proposed
2011 2010
£000 £000
Declared and paid dunng the year
Equity dmdends on Ordinary shares
Final dvidend for 2010 9 68p per share (2009 8 80p} 4,830 4,385
Intenm dmdend for 2011 5 34p per share (2010 5 04p) 2,666 2,511
Less dividends on own shares held by ESOP {17 7
7,479 6,879
Proposed for approval at Annual General Meeting (not recognised as a lability at 31 December)
Equrty dvidends on Ordinary shares
Final dmdend for 2011 10 74p per share (2010 9 68p) 5,327 4,815
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12 Goodwlt

Group
2011 2010
£000 £000
Cost and net book value:
At 1 January 87,518 73,141
Exchange differences {232) 349
Acgustbon of subsichanes €5 14,028
At 31 December 87,351 87,518

Goodwill in respect of the pnor year has been restated in respect of far valus adjustments relating to the acquisitton of Rigcool Limited

Further details are included in note 17

Impairment of goodwill
The carrying amount of goodwill aliocated to each CGU by segment 1s

2011 2010

£000 £o00

Specialist Technical 29,777 29,740
Offshore O 41,945 42,149
Defence 5,370 5,370
Manne Cil 10,259 10,259
87,351 87,518

The recoverable amount of these units has been assessed based on value In use calculations using cash projections based on financial
budgets approved by the Board for the next financial year together with projections denved from those budgets for the following four

years A terminal value of cash flows beyond that date has been calculated at a growth rate in line with management's long term
expectations for the relevant market

The key assumptions used in the value in use calculattons include gross margin, discount rate, mflation of overheads and payroll and

growth rates

Growth estimates are based on the levels achieved in the current and histenc penods adjusted for management expectations of the
impact of management actions and the future development of the relevant market Growth rates for tumover vary between 1% and
31% These growth rates are considered to be conservative and vary dependant on the market conditions in which the CGU operates

Direct costs are expected to increase in ine with tumover in intial penods before stabilising at a long term inflationary level of 2%
Administrative costs are anticipated to increase at 3%

Payroll nflation reflects the fact that the Group provides specialist services in & competitive market Payroll costs are therefore

influenced by the need to retain skilled staff As a result the initial growth rates for payroll costs range between 2 5% m mature business

o up to 25% for specific posts i businesses located in areas where skilled staff are in short supply

Discount rates reflect management’s estmate of the return required from the business to reflect the cost of funds plus an approprate
nsk prermium  This has been determined wath reference to the CGU's weighted average cost of caprtal WACC), and adjusting it for nsks
specific to each CGU's cash fiows The rangs of pre-tax discount rate used 18 9 5% to 11 0% (2010 range of 9 7% to 10.7%) An

effective tax rate of 22 5% has been assumed
Based on the value in uss calculations performsd no impamment of any of the cash generating urits 1s required
The key assumptions applied to each CGU are as follows

+ Specialist Technical Services, maximurn short tarm gross profit growth of between 2 and 19% with leng term growth of 2%,
maximum growth in direct costs of 40% with 2% increase in the long term,

» (Offshors Ol Services, maximum short temm gross profit growth of batween 5 and 19% with long term growth of 2%, maximum

growth in direct costs of 28% with 2% ncrease 1 the long term,

¢ Defence, maximum short tenm gross profit growth of 7% wath long term growth of 2%, maximum growth in direct costs of 3% with

2% increase in the long term,

¢ Manne Ol , maxirnum short term gross profit growth of 11% with long term growth of 1%, maximum growth in direct costs of 2%

with 1% increase in the long terrn, and
 Long term growth has been assumed at a steady market rate in ine with the requirements of 1AS 36
Sensitivity to impairment

Sensitvly analysis has been performed to deterrmine the impact of a reasonable change in a key assumphion (eg ncrease n discount

rate by 2%, removal of long term growth) and no impairment 1ssues were identfied
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13 Other intangible assets

Group
Devalopment Inteliectual Custormer

O8I proparty rolatlonships Total

£000 £000 £000 £0D0
Cost
At 1 January 2010 - 83 254 347
Additions 1,125 304 - 1,429
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking - - 928 928
Exchange differences - - 18 18
At 31 December 2010 1,125 397 1,200 2,722
Additions 3,603 149 230 3,882
Exchange differences - (3) {7 (10
At 31 December 2011 4,728 543 1,423 6,694
Amortisation
At 1 January 2010 - 29 21 50
Charge for the pencd - 44 133 177
Exchange differences - - 2 2
At 31 December 2010 - 73 156 229
Charge for the penod 243 135 254 632
Exchange drfferences - {1) 3) (4}
At 31 December 2011 243 207 407 857
Net book value at 31 December 2011 4,485 336 1,016 5,837
Net book value at 1 January 2011 1,125 324 1,044 2,493
Net book value at 1 January 2010 - 64 233 297

Intangible assets include intellectual property nghts and patents and licences acquired by subsidiary comparves relating to technalogy
used in the subsidiary's pnncipal operating actvities, the fair value of customer relatronships acquired and development costs relating
to new products or processes

Intangible assets, are amortised evenly over thetr remaining useful life of between 3 and 20 years The amortisation charge 1s inciuded
in cost of sales in the income statement

In 2010 the Group recognised ntangible assets in respect of the far value of the custorner relationships ansing from the acquisition of
GMC Produkt AS, Australia Commercial Manne, Rigcool UK and Australia, and Mantime Engineers These are being amortised over five
years Further details of the acquisiions are set out In note 17

Based on an assessment of valus in use there are no Indications that any imparment of these assets has ansen dunng the penod
The Company has not recognised any intangible assets
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14 Property, plant and equipment

Analysis of ships Assets Frechold
Total uncler & laasehold Plant &

Ships Reflt ships construction property equpment Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 000 £000 £000
Group
Cost*
At 1 January 2010 75,377 7,478 82,855 1,493 29,261 44380 157,989
Additions 91 2411 2,802 499 7,188 13,234 23,423
Reclassifications - - - (1,569) 825 744 -
Acqusttion of subsidiary undertaking - - - - 1,408 4,922 6,330
Disposals (7,288) (150) {7.438) - {444) (1,002) (8,884)
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - - - {17,467} - (17,467)
Exchange differences 229 50 279 - (384} 853 548
At 31 Dsecember 2010 68,409 9,789 78,198 423 20,387 62,931 161,939
Additions 474 965 1,439 1,403 947 13,257 17,046
Reclassificatons - - - (578) (35) 250 (363)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertaking - - - - - 89 89
Disposals {4,400) {706) (5,106) - {111) (1.328) (6,545)
Exchange diffterences (9) {2 (11) - 3 (463) 477)
At 31 December 2011 64,474 10,046 74,520 1,248 21,185 74,736 171,689
Group
Depreciation and impairment:
At 1 January 2010 22,803 5,144 27,947 - 1,700 17,256 46,903
Provided dunng the year 3,048 1,277 4,325 - 513 6,498 11,336
Disposal of subsidiary undertaking - - - - (44) - (44)
Disposals (543) (140) (583) - (49) (561} (1,293}
Exchange differences 37 24 61 - 11 282 354
At 31 December 2010 25,345 6,305 31,650 - 2,131 23,475 57,256
Prowided during the year 2,938 1,755 4,693 - 533 8,202 13,428
Reclassifications - - - - - {18) {15}
Disposals (1,288) (698) (1,986) - (24) {560) (2,570}
Exchange differences (@) (1) =) - (20 (284) (307}
At 31 Becember 2011 26,993 7,361 34,354 - 2,620 30,817 67,791
Net book value at 31 December 2011 37,481 2,685 40,166 1,248 18,565 43,919 103,898
Net book value at 1 January 2011 43,064 3,484 46,548 423 18,256 39,456 104,683
Net book value at 1 January 2010 52,574 2,334 54,908 1,493 27,561 27,124 111,086

Reclassifications represent capital under construction on completion, or assets, ongmnally held for rental, ceased to be rented and are
held far resale and have been transferred to inventary

All loans which were secured against property, plant and equipment were repaid in 2010

The camyng value of plant and equipment held under finance leases and hire purchase contracts at 31 December 2011 was
£1,374,000 {2010 £1,506,000) Included in ships are assets with a cost of £5,711,000 (2010 £5,866,000) and accumulated

depreciation of £3,687,000 (2010 £3,265,000) which relate to assets held under operating leases Included in the cost of property,

plant and equipment I1s aggregate interest captalised of £2,383,000 (2010 £2,383,000)
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14 Property, plant and equipment continued

Freehold

& leasehold Plant &
Ships property eguipmant Total
000 £000 £000 £000
Company
Cost:
At 1 January 2010 8,764 1,889 977 11,640
Additions 339 2 8 349
Disposals - - (30} {30}
Inter group transfers - - {20) (20)
At 31 December 2010 9,103 1,901 935 11,939
Additions 115 - 183 298
Disposals - - 17} (17)
Inter group transfers - - 93 93
At 31 December 2011 9,218 1,901 1,194 12,313
Company
Depreciation:
At 1 January 2010 3,487 552 686 4,725
Provided dunng the year 365 77 el ] 541
Disposals - - (10) (10
lnter group transfers - - {10) {19
At 31 December 2010 3,852 629 765 5,246
Prowvided durning the year 478 73 96 647
Disposals - - (17} (17)
Inter group transiers - - 80 90
At 31 December 2011 4,330 702 934 5,966
Net book value at 31 December 2011 4,888 1,199 260 6,347
Net book value at 1 January 2011 5,251 1,272 170 6,693
Net book value at 1 January 2010 5277 1,347 291 6,915

included In the cost of property, plant and equipment 18 aggregate interest capitalised of £187,000 (2010 £187,000)
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15 Investment in joint ventures
The Group has a 25% equity mterest in the Ordinary shares of Foreland Holdings Limited, a shipowning and operating company

On 1 January 2011 the Group acquired an addiicnal 5% equity interest in its Nigenan based joint venture Fender Care Nigena Limited
Fallowang the acquisition tha Group has a 45% equuty nterest in the Ordinary shares of Fander Gara Nigena Limited, Sivertide Inc,
Astena Navigation Inc and FCN Lirniited The Group has a 50% equity interest in the Ordinary shares of Fender Care Benelux BV and
Fender Care Omega Limited and a 30% equity interest in the Ordinary shares of Fender Care Malaysia SDN BHD These joint ventures,
which are referred to as the FCM businesses, are manne services companies operating ship to ship transfers prnincipally in the West
Afnca region but also in Northem Europe and Asia

The Group has a 50% equity interest in the Ordinary shares of First Response Marne Pta Ltd (FRM) FRM provides submanne rescue
services to the Singapore govermment under a 20 year service contract which commenced in March 2009

Full details are included in the hist of joint ventures and associated undertakings set out on page 80

The Group's share of the assets, llabilities and tracing resuits of these joint venture entities at 31 December 2011 which are accounted
for under the equity accounting methed, are as follows

2011 2010
£000 £000
Current assets 17,048 18,258
Non-current assets 63,128 65,106
Current liabilities {9,330) (12,056}
Nen-current habihties (60,110) (61,422}
Loans to associate 1,798 1,807
12,534 11,693
Revenue 25,370 21,199
Cost of sales (14,772) (11,316}
Administrative expenses (2,008) (2,.084)
Profit from operations 8,590 7,799
Finance costs
Finance income 8 9
Finance costs (2,742) (2,.872)
Profit before tonnage and mcome tax 5,857 4,936
Taxation - (152) (256}
Profit after tax 5,705 4,680
Non-controlling interests (20) -
Net profit attnbutable to equity holders 5,685 4,680
Movement on investment in joint ventures
At 1 January 11,693 8,978
Acquisitions 1,226 20
Provision aganst investments (6) {28)
Disposals 72 -
Profit for the penod 5,685 4,680
Dmidends receved (5,913) (2,804)
Share of far valus gans on cash flow hedges (399) 429
Non-controling interests 20 -
Exchange adustments 156 418
At 31 December 12,534 11,693

There are no capital commitments or contingent habilities in respect of the Group’s interests In joint ventures

James Fisher and Sons plc Annual Report 2011 63




Notes to the financial statements continued

16 Financial assets
Group
Available for sale

2011 2010
£000 £000

At 1 January and 31 December 2011 1,370 1,370

Company

At 1 January and 31 December 2011 1,368 1,368

Avallable for sale financial assets represents the following tems

A 17 2% (2010 17 2%} equity interest in Ordinary shares in SEML De Co-operation Transmanche, an unlisted company ncorporated
in France, whose main activity 1s a port and ferry operator

A 16 7% (2010 16 7%) equity nterest in Ordinary shares in Cumbria Nuclear Solutions Limited a company established to facitate the
tendenng and acquisition of contracts relating to the Group's nuclear decommissioning business The remaining shares are held equally

by five other parties representing other decommussioning businesses offenng services complementary to those offered by companies
within the Group

An mvestment in 800 shares in The Baltic Exchange representing 0 2% of the tssued share capital

The investments listed above are n unquoted entites whereby the fair value of the shareholding cannot be readily ascertained or
measured rehably The investments are therefore held at nibial cost and are subject to an annual Imparment review No impainment
was required at 31 December 2011

Investments
Company
Subsidlary undertakings
Shares Loans Total
000 £O00 £000

Cost
At 1 January 2010 80,533 98,556 179,089
Exchange adjustments - 430 430
Additions/increases 512 49,605 50,117
Repayments - (30,415) (30,415)
At 31 December 2010 81,045 118,176 199,221
Exchange adjustments - (331) {331)
Addihons/increases 537 42,206 42,743
Transfer to subsidianes 2,258 (2,.258) -
Repayments - (27,926} (27,926}
At 31 December 2011 83,840 129,867 213,707
Amount provided
At 1 January 2010 and 31 December 2010 445 479 924
Released - (46) {46}
At 31 December 2011 445 433 878
Net book value at 31 Dacember 2011 B3,395 129,434 212,829
Net book value at 31 December 2010 80,600 117,697 198,297

A list of pnnaipal subsidiary undertakings 1s iIncluded on pages 89 1o 90

64 James Fisher and Sons plc Annual Report 2011




17 Business combnations

Year ended 31 December 2011

On 1 January 2011 the Group acquired an additional 5% interest in its Nigenian based jont venture Fender Care Nigena Lirmited {FCN)
for a consideration of £1,201,000 Following the acquisition the Group has a 45% interest in this joint venture FCN provides ship to
ship transfer services in the East and West Africa region Goodwall of £721,000 arose on the acquisition of this interest

On 8 November 2011 the Company acquired 48% of the 1ssued share capital of James Fisher Angola Lumitada for a consideration of
£54,000 James Fisher Angola meets the cntena for recogrition as a subsiciary on the basts of a shareholder agresment which enables
the Group to exercise control over the economic benefits ansing from the actmties of the Company James Fisher Angola 1s engaged
in the prowision of specialist services to the oll production industry 1n Angela

Details of the assets and habiites of James Fisher Angcla acquired are shown in the table below

Angola

book Fal value

vaie  adustments Total

£000 £000 £000
Intangible assets
Customer relationships - 230 230
Property, plant and equipment 89 - 89
Other debtors 49 - 49
Trade and cther payables {(431) - {431)
Fair value of net assets acquired (293) 230 (63)
Non-controlling interests 117

54

Consideration
Cash 54

Year ended 31 December 2010

On 1 March 2010 the Group acquired the business and certain assets of Australian Commercial Manne Pty Ltd {ACM), for a cash
consideration of £3,185,000 and acquisition costs which were expensed to the income statement of £223,000 ACM provides marnne
eguipment to the commercial shipping, port and offshore industnes in Western Australia The acquistion will enable the Group's
Fendercare business to further expand its operations in the Asia Pacific region The pnncipal assets acquired were long term leases
on the offices and warehousing facilities used by ACM and rented to third parties

On 29 Apni 2010 the Group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of GMC Produkt AS (GMC), for a net cash consideration of
£10,685,000 plus the assumption of £339,000 of debt and acquisition costs ¢f £321,000 GMC provides Iifting equipment, cranes,
winches and related servicas to the Norwegian offshore and olffield servces markets The acquisition enables the Group to expand
its exssting Stavanger based businesses serving the Norwegian offshore services sector

On 23 September 2010 the Group acquired the entire 1Issued share capital of Rigcool Lmited and ts sister company Rigcool Austraha
Pty Limited {Rigcool}, for a net cash consideration of £1,943,000 and the assumption of £2,165,000 of debt Acquisiton costs
expensed In the income statement were £283,000 Rigcool supplies a range of submersible and booster pumps and high tech nozzles
plus supporting manpowaer to dnlling ngs for use in well testing operaticns The businesses which are based in Aberdeen and Perth,
Westem Australia will be integrated into the Group's Scan Tech Offshore business

©n 3 December 2010 the Group acquired the entire 1ssued share capital of Mantme Engineenng Limited (ME} for a net cash
consideration of £1,349,000 plus acquistion expenses of £124,000 ME 1s a manne engineenng consultancy, and inspection company
The business which 1s based in Perth, Australia will be integrated into the Group’s Fendercare products business .

The busnesses are expected to benefit from synergies denved from common marketing and distnbution bases Included in goodwill
are certain intangible assets including the anticipated impact on these businesses of distnbuting ther products to existing Group
customers, that cannot be indwidually separated and reliably measured due to therr nature

The Group has wentified intangible assets n respect of customer relationships n the vanous businesses These relate to the major
customers of acquired businesses in therr main markets Cashflow forecasts have been calculated over five years being the expected
period aver which the Group will benefit from the relabonships which have been inhented with the acquisitions The calculations are
based on local management forecasts and have been discounted at rates of between 20% and 30% reflecting the nsk factors
associated wath these cash flows

None of the goodwill 15 expected to be deductible for Income tax purposes
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17 Business combinations continued
Adjustments to provisional fair values
Adjustments have been made to the balance sheet for the year ended 31 December 2010 to incorporate changes to the provistonal fair

values relating to the Rigcool acquisition in respect of an adjustment of £738,000 relating to potential liigation This 1s net of deferred
taxation of £273,000

Adjustments to prowisional values made in 2011 comprise £30,000 in respect of the valuation of certan assets denominated in foreign
currencies in Rigcool Australia, the prowsional values of Mantime Engineers have besn adjusted by £11,000 relating to provision for
doubtful debts, and £21,000 has been paid in respect of contingent consideration on the acquisibon of a specialist diving business
acquired in 2010

Deferred consideration of £79,000 has been paid in respect of the acquisition of GMC

Disposals

Year ended 31 December 2011

On 31 March 2011 the FCN joint venture disposed of 20% of 1its wholly owned subsidiary, Fender Care East Afnca Limited for
a consideration of £203,000 The Group's share of the profit on disposal of this interest 15 includad in equity

Year ended 31 December 2010

On 26 Jure 2010 ths Group completed the disposal of Scan Tech Elendom AS (STE) for a gross consideration of £17,016,000
ncluding internal and external debt Net consideration excluding the repayment of dabt was £712,000 of which £459,000 was payable
followtng finahsation of the completion accounts This consideration was received in 2011 STE owned the Group's newly constructed
Stavanger headquarters and contained the related financial labilities incurred dunng construction The property has been leased back
by Scan Tech AS under an operating lease arrangement for a penod of 15 years

18 Inventones

Group

201 2010

£000 T000

Work in progress 7,111 5239

Raw matenals and consumables 10,830 9,549

Finished goods 15,750 17,795

33,691 32,583

Group

2011 2010

£000 £000

Inventones stated at net realisable value 22 72

Amount charged to the income statement in the penod in respect of nventory wnte-downs 265 22

Reversal of Inventory-wnte downs (36) 7
19 Trade and other receivables

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000

Trade recevables 51,388 44,088 3 2

Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 721 4,783

Amounts owed by jont venture undertakings 841 764 32 42

Other non-trade receivables 4,471 5,663 703 572

Prepayments and accrued income 23,826 10,871 150 134

80,526 61,416 1,609 5,533

Of the above other trade recewables of £5,000 (2010 £16,000) are expected to be recovered in more than one year
Further information on the credit nsks relating to trade and other receivables 1s given in note 28

20 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daly bank deposit rates All cash balances are held in cash or on overrught
deposit The far value of cash and cash equivalents is equal to the book value

Further analysis of the movermnents on cash and cash equivalents is given in note 28
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21 Share capital
Group and Company

Authonsed
Allotted, called up and fully paud
£1 cumulative
In thousands of shenes 25p Ovdinary shares preferance shazes
2011 2010 2011 2010
Inissue at 1 January 49,963 49,823 100 100
Exercise of share options 62 40 - -
Inissue 31 December 49,925 49,863 100 100
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £009 £000
Issued shara capital 12,481 12,466 100 100

Rights attached to shares

The shareholders have the following rights to receve divdends

» £1 cumulative preference shares receive 3 5% per annum on the par value, and
+ 25p Ordinary shares as declared from time to time by the directors

Shares all carry equal voting nghts of one vote per share held

Neither type of share i1s redeemable In the event of a winding up order the amount recevable In respect of the cumulative preference
shares 1s imited to therr nominal value The ordinary shareholdsrs are entitled to an unlimited share of the surplus after distnbution to
the cumulative preference shargholders

Preference shares are freated as a hability in the balance sheet

2011 2010
Treasury shares £000 £000
329,615 (2010 126,698) Ordinary shares of 25p 1,681 579

The Company has established an employee share ownership trust, the James Fisher and Sons plc Employee Share Ownership Trust,
In connection with share option and long term meentive schemes for employees These shares ars classified as Treasury shares in the
accounts of the Group and Company The market value cf these shares at 31 December 2011 was £1,677,740 (2010 £639,825)
The trust has not warved its nght to recewve dradends

Dunng the year 62,136 {2010 40,455) Ordinary shares with an aggregate nommnal value of £15,534 (2010 £10,114) were 1ssued under
the Company's Executive Share Option Scheme (ESCS) and Savings Related Share Option Scheme (SRSOS) at option pnces of
betwean 327p and 468p per share, (2010 between 211p and 352p) giving rise to a total consideration of £238,950 (2010 £134,638)

22 Other reserve movements
Other reserves compnse the following

Translation reserve

The translation reserve compnses all foreign currency differences ansing from the translation of operations whose financial statements
are denominated in foreign currencies as well as from the translation of liabilites that hedge the Company’s net iInvestment in a foreign
subsidiary

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve compnses the effective portion of the cumulative net change In the far value of cash flow hedging wnstruments
related to hedged transactions that hava not yet occurred
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23 Trade and other payables
Non-current habihties

Group Comparny
20114 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Accruals and deferred income 607 1.841 - -
607 1,841 - —

Current hlabiities

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Trade payables 24,631 23,453 1,471 924
Amounts owed to group undertakings - - 12,561 13,476
Amounts cwed 1o joint venture undertakings 2,073 - - _
Taxation and social secunty 2,090 1,843 76 238
QOther payables 1,627 2,750 44 285
Accruals and deferred income 28,703 17,570 2,779 2,002
Contingent consideration - 79 - -
59,124 45,695 17,328 16,925

24 Retirement benefit assets and cbligations

The retirement benefit obligations included n the Group and Company balance sheets relate to The James Fisher and Sons plc
Pension Fund for Shore Staff, (Shore staff), together with the Group's obligations to the Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund
(MNOPF), an industry wide scheme which 1s also accounted for as a defined benefit scheme The Company has obligations under
the Shore staff and under the MNOPF scheme, the balance of which relates to its subsidiary, FT Everard & Sons

The Group has two defined benefit schemes located in Norway These are included in the table below at therr fair value based
on an actuanal valuation as at 31 December 2011

The valuations of the schemes have been updated to 31 December 2010 by qualified actuaries using agreed assumptions as detaled
in the table of assumptions included below

The Group’s obligations in respect of its pension schemes at 31 December 2011 were as follows

Group Comparny
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Shore staff pension scheme {10,840) (9,137} {10,840) {9,137)
MNOPF pension scheme (19,219} (20,662) (9,866) (10,610)
GMC pension scheme (74) 13 - —
{30,133} (29,786) {20,706) {19,747}

Details of the schemes operated by the Group are as follows

James Fisher and Sons plc Pension Fund for Shore Staff

The assets of this scheme are held in a separate trustes admmistered account The scheme was closed to new members N October
2001 when the Company changed to a defined contnbution scheme for all new members The pension cost 1s assessed In accordance
with the advice of professionally qualified actuanes Thess financial statements incorporate the latest full actuanal valuation of the Shore
staff scheme carned out as at 1 August 2010, rolled forward to 31 December 2011

The schems closed to future accrual on 31 December 2010 No contnbutions from employees wers made in 2011 In 2010 the
Company contnbuted 14 4% of pensionable pay

Contributions to the scheme from the Company amounted to £1,196,000 (2010 £1,196,000) in the year A revised level of
contributions of £1,615,000 will be made in 2012 following the agreement of the valuation camed out at 1 August 2010

In 2005 the Company decided to close the Shore staff schems to existing members from 31 December 2010 At this tme members
contributing to the scheme can transfer to a stakeholder scheme option Dunng the remaining penod the scheme remamned open
to existing members the rate of growth of pensionable salary reduced to 1 5%

Following the announcement by the Pensions Minister on 8 July 2010 that the govemment will in future use CPlin place of RPlin
determination of pension increases, the Group has obtamned legal advice to detenmine where it can apply the lower CPimeasure As
a result mAation 1 ine with CPi rather than RPI, has been appled to the excess revaluation for non-pensioners at 31 December 2010
This was taken to the statement of comprehensive INcome as a change In assumptions, with no constructive obhgation dentified
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In 2011 the Shore staff scheme offered pensioners the option of foregoing future INcreases in pension payments in exchanga for a fixed
pension entitiement set at a higher level than the previous variable entittement Taking into account those pensioners who chose this
option and an estimate of the expected take up rate by members eligible in future pencds, the actuanes have calculated that this
vanation has reduced the Company’s pension obligation in respect of the Shore staff scheme by £785,000 This armount s Included

n the adrministrative expenses in the income statement in the year ended 31 December 2011

Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund

In 2005 the High Court established that former, as well as existing employers, are lable to make payments in respect of the funding
deficit of the MNOPF The Company was informead by the Trustees as to the leve!l of annual payments it will be required to make into
the fund over a perncd of ten years commencing October 2005 representing its share af the deficit disclosed in the nitial actuanal
valuation carned out as at 31 March 2003 of £193,500,000 Since that date further adjustments have been made ansing from the
acquisiion of FT Everard n December 2008, a reallocation of the 2003 deficit ansing from an anticipated shortfall of receipts from
existing contributers 1n February 2007 and following the incorporation of the valuation of the scheme as at 31 March 2006 when

an addiienal £164,100,000 hability was recognised

As stated in note 29 the Trustees have also indicated that they may make calls for further contnbutions in the futurs, If new deficits anse
or if other employers lable for contnbutions are not able to pay their share In Apnl 2010 the Company was notified of the result of the
valuation camed out at 31 March 2009 in which an additronal £390,000,000 was recognised and further payments requested from the
Group commencing September 2010 There have been no further changes in the Itabiity in 2011 The tota! amount pard by the Group
in 2011 to the MNOPF was £3,031,000 (2010 £2,680,000)

Since the Company has no control over the calls for contributions made from the MNCPF, it has deterrmined that the fund should be
accounted for as a defined benefit scheme and its lability recognised accordingly The share of the Group and Company in the MNOPF
as adwised by the Trustees i1s Group 3 3% (2010 3 3%} and Company 1 7% (2010 1 7%) Disclosures relating to this scheme are
based on thesa allocations The lability recogrused represents the discounted value of committed cash flows

Information suppled by the Trustees of the MNOPF has been reviewed by the Cormpany’s actuanes The prncipal assumption in

the review 1s the discount rate on the scherne’s habilites which 1s 5 05% (2010 5 75%) The disclosures below relate to the Group's
shars of the assets and habilities within the MNOPF The Group 1s not lable for future accrual but it is liable for contnbutions to correct
any deficit

Actuanal assumptions

The last actuanal valuations performed have been updated to 31 December 2011 by the Company's actuary The scheme's assets are
stated at their market values on the respective balance sheet dates The overall expected rates of retum on assets reflact the nsk free
rate of return plus an appropnate nsk premium based on the nature of the relevant asset category The pnncipal assumptions used In
updating the latest valuations for each of the schemes were

2011 2010
Inflation (jong term rate after adjustment for short term fluctuations) (%) 3.0 34
Fate of general long tenm increase w salanes — Shore staff (%) N/A N/A
Rate of increase of pensions in payment — Shore staff (%) 2.6-3.0 30-34
Discount rate for scheme liabilities (%) 5.05 575
Expected rates of retum on assets (%)
Equities 8.4 84
Property 7.4 74
Fixed interest bonds 4.2 49
Gilts/corporate bonds 4.2/58 4.2/59
Other assets 4.2 42
Paost retirement mortality (years)
Shore staff scheme
Current pensioner at 65 male 20.3 203
Current pensioner at 65 famale 23.4 233
Future pensioner at 65 male 221 221
Future pensioner at 65 femate 25.2 252
GMC Produkt
Cument pensioner at 65  male 20.3 207
Current pensioner at 65 female 23.4 237
Futura penstoner at 65 male 221 225
Future pensioner at 65 female 254 258

The post retrement mortality assumptions allow for expected increase in longevity The "current” disclosures above relats to
assumptions based on longewity (in years) following retirernent at the balance sheet date, with *future® being that relating to a member
who IS currentiy 45
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Notes to the financial statements continued

24 Retirement benefit assets and obligations continued

Investments

The scheme's assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, nor any property occupied by, or used by the Group

The expected rate of return on Indwidual categones of scheme assets are determined by reference to gilt yields The expectation is
that the return from equities and corporate bonds will exceed the retum from gilts by 4 2% (2010 3 5%) and 1 6% (2010 1 0%) per

annum respectively

The assets and llabilities of the schemes at 31 December are

As at 31 December 2011

Group Company
Shora Shore
atat! MNOPF GMC Total staf MNOPF Tota!
£000 £000 €000 £000 1000 £000 £000
Equities 17,562 13,214 - 30,776 17,562 6,773 24,335
Gilts/comporate bonds 25,868 13,419 432 39,719 25,868 6,878 32,746
Property - 3,206 - 3,206 - 1,643 1,643
Cther investments - 27,095 - 27,095 - 13,887 13,887
Cash/net current assets 596 7,901 - 8,497 596 4,050 4,646
Farr value of scheme assets 44,026 64,835 432 109,293 44,026 33,231 77,257
Present value of scheme
labilities (54,866) (84,054} {506) {139,426) {54,866) {43,097) (97,963)
Net pension liabilities
recognised n the balance
sheet (10,840) (19,219) (74) {30,133) (10,840) (9,866} (20,706)
As at 31 December 2010
Group Company
Share Shore
staff MNOPF GMC Total statf MNOPF Total
£000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000 £000
Equities 20,765 2,572 - 23,337 20,765 1,318 22,083
Gilts/corporate bonds 22,244 30,820 386 53,450 22,244 15,797 38,041
Property - 3,368 - 3,368 - 1,726 1,726
Other investments - 24117 - 24117 - 12,361 12,361
Cash/net current assets 546 434 -~ 980 546 223 769
Fawr value of scheme assets 43,555 61,311 386 105,252 43,555 31,425 74,980
Present value of scheme
labilities (52,692) (81,973) (373) (135,038} {52,692) (42,035) {94,727)
Net pension habilities
recognised in the balance
sheet {9,137) {20,662) 13 (29,786) 9,137) (10,610) (19,747)
Expense recognised in the income statement {included in administrative expenses)
Year ended 31 December 2011
Group Company
Shore Shore
statt MNOFF GMC Total staft MNOPF Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000
Current service cost - - 38 38 - - -
Curtalment benefits and
varatons {785) - - {785) (785) - {785)
Interest cost on benefit
obiigation 2,969 4,622 20 7,611 2,989 2,370 5,339
Expected retum on plan assets (2,644) (3,524) {18} {6,186) (2,644) {1,8086) {4,450)
(460) 1,098 40 678 {460) 564 104
Actual retumn on plan assets 2,154 N/A - 2,154 N/A
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Year ended 31 December 2010

Group Company
Shore Shore
staff MNOPF GMG Total staff MNOPF Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 000
Current service cost 297 - 1) 296 297 - 297
Interest cost on bensfit
cbhgation 3,253 4,248 13 7,514 3,253 2,178 5,431
Expected retum on plan assets (2,690) (3,443) (7} (6,140) (2,690} (1,765) (4,455)
860 805 5 1,670 860 413 1,273
Actual return on plan assets 4,174 N/A - 4,174 N/A
Movements in the benefit liabiity dunng the year
Year ended 31 December 2011
Group Company
Shore Shore
staff MNOPF GMGC Total staft MNOPF Total
£000 £006G £000 €000 £000 £000 £000
As at 1 January 2011 9,137 20,662 (13) 29,786 9,137 10,610 19,747
Expense recognised In the
inceme statement (460) 1,098 40 678 (460) 564 104
Contnbutions paid to scheme (1,371) (3,031} (60) (4,462) (1,371) {1,559) (2,930)
Actuanal loss 3,534 490 103 4127 3,534 251 3,785
Foreign exchange - - 4 4 - - -
10,840 19,219 74 30,133 10,840 9,866 20,706
Year ended 31 December 2010
Group Company
Share Shaore
staff MNOPF GMC Total staff MNOPF Tetal
£000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000
As at 1 January 2010 14,209 8,152 - 22,361 14,209 4,201 18,410
At date of acquisition - - 75 75 - - -
Expense recognised in the
Income statement 860 805 5 1,670 860 413 1,273
Contnbutions paid to scheme (1,338} {2,660} 71) {4,089} {1,338) {1,325} (2,663)
Actuanal (gain)/loss {4,594) 14,365 {22} 9,749 (4,594} 7.321 2,727
9,137 20,662 {13) 29,786 9,137 10,610 19,747
The actuanal loss/(gain) 1s recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are analysed as follows
Year ended 31 December 2011
Group Company
Shore Shore
staff MNQPF GMC Total staft MNOPF Total
2000 £000 £000 000 £000 £000 £000
As at 1 January 2011 52,692 81,973 373 135,038 52,692 42,035 94,727
Current service cost - - 38 38 - - -
Interest cost 2,969 4,622 20 7,611 2,969 2,370 5,339
Past service costs (785} - - {785) (785) - {785)
Actuanal losses/(gans) on
scheme kabilities 3,044 490 a2 3,616 3,044 251 3,295
Net benefits paid out (3,054) {3,031} 2} (6,087) (3,054) {1,559) {4,613)
Foreign exchange - - (5) {5) - - -
54,866 84,054 506 139,426 54,866 43,097 97,963
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24 Retirement benefit assets and obligations continued

Investments continued
Year ended 31 December 2010

Group Company
Shora Shore
staff MNOPF GMC Totad staff MNOPF Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000 £000
As at 1 January 2010 55,263 66,020 - 121,283 55,263 33,861 80,124
At date of acquisition - - 377 377 - - -
Current service cost 297 - 1) 296 297 - 297
Interest cost 3,253 4,248 13 7,514 3,253 2,178 5,431
Contnbutions by scheme
participants 23 - - 23 23 - 23
Actuanal losses/(gains) on
scheme habilities (3,103 14,365 (13) 11,248 (3.103) 7,321 4,218
Net benefits paid out (3.041} (2.660) (1) 5,702) (3.041) (1,325) {4,366)
Foreign exchange - - (2) 2) - - -
52,692 81,973 373 135,038 52,692 42,035 04,727
Changes in the fair value of the plan assets are analysed as follows
Year ended 31 December 2011
Group Company
Sheore Shora
staff MNOFPF GMC Total statt MNOPF Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
As at 1 January 2011 43,555 61,311 386 105,252 43,555 31,425 74,980
Expected retumn on scheme
assets 2,644 3,524 18 6,186 2,644 1,806 4,450
Actuanal losses on scheme
assets {490} - {21) {511) {490) - {490)
Contnbutions by employer 1,371 3,031 60 4,462 1,371 1,559 2,930
Net benefits pad out (3,054} (3,031) 2) (6,087) (3,054} (1,559} (4,613)
Foreign exchange - - (9} (9 - - -
44,026 64,835 432 109,293 44,026 33,231 77,257
Year ended 31 December 2010
Group Company
Shore Shore
statf MNOPF GMC Total statf MNOPF Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
As at 1 January 2010 41,054 57,868 - 98,922 41,054 29,660 70,714
At date of acquisition - - 301 301 - - -
Expected retum on scheme
asseis 2,690 3,443 7 6,140 2,680 1,765 4,455
Actuanal gains cn scheme
assets 1,491 - g 1,500 1,491 - 1,491
Contnbutions by employer 1,338 2,660 72 4,070 1,338 1,325 2,683
Contnbutions by scheme
participants 23 - - 23 23 - 23
Net banefits paid out (3,041) (2,660) (1) {5,702) {3.041) (1,325) {4,366)
Foreign exchange - - 2) ] - - -
43,6555 61,311 386 105,252 43,555 31,425 74,8980
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History of expenence gans and losses

Shore staff

2011 2010 2009 2000 2007

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets 44,026 43,555 41,054 38,648 49,651
Defined benefit obligation (54,866) {52,692) (55,263) (47,963) (57,746)
Deficit in scheme {10,840) (9,137) {14,209) {9,315) (8,695)
Expenence gains/(losses) on scheme assets (490) 1,484 783 (12,911) (1,735)
Expenence gains/losses) on scheme labilthes 26 1,752 437) (10,486) 101
GMC

2011 2010
£000 £000

Fair valug of scheme assets 432 386
Defined benefit obligation {506) {373)
(Deficit)/surplus In scheme {74) 13
MNOPF

2011 2010 2008 2008 2007
Group £000 £000 £000 £000 £00C
Fair value of scheme assets 64,835 61,311 57,868 54,234 51,260
Defined benefit obligation {84,054) (81,973 (66,020 (63,567) (62,248)
Deficit In scheme (19,219) (20,662) 8,152) (9,333 (10,988)
MNOPF

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
Company £000 000 £000 £000 000
Farr value of scheme assets 33,231 31,425 29,660 27,797 26,273
Defined benefit obligation (43,097) {42,035) {33,861) (32,607) {31,935}
Deficit in scheme (9,866) {10,610} 4.201) (4,810) (5.662)

The cumulative amount of actuanal gans and losses relating to all schemes recognised since 1 January 2004 in the Group and
Company statement of comprehensive mcome 1s a loss of £34,651,000 {2010 £30,524,000) The directors are unable to determine
how much of the pension scheme deficit recogrised on transiion to IFRS and taken directly to equity of £12,800,000 in the Group and
Company 1s atinbutabie to actuanal gains and losses since inception of those pension schemes Consequently the directors are unable
1o determine the amount of actuanal gains and losses that would have been recognised in the Group and Company staternents of
comprehensive income before January 2004

Defined contribution schemes

Fallowing closure of the Shora staff scheme actve members have transferred to the Group’s defined contribution scheme  Dunng the
current penod the Group has sought to reduce the number of external schemes into which contnbutions are paid by extending the
Group offenng to staff at most of it UK subsidianes The pension charge for the year for these arrangements 1s equal to the
contributions paid and was £1,840,000 (2010 £532,000)

Defined contnbubion schemes operated by or on behalf of other Group entites
Other defined contnbution schernes exist in the Group  The total charge for the year for these schemes amounted to £261,000
(2010 £1,242,000)

25 Share based payments

The Company operates an Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS) and a Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIF} In respect of directors and
certan employees The Company also operates a Save as You Earn scheme for eligible employees which 1s HM Revenue & Customs
approved

Executive share option scheme 1995 ("1995 Scheme"}

Share options up to a maximum himit of four times base salary may be awarded to Board directors and senior executives The exercise
prce s determined at the dats of grant and may be no lower than the market pnce on the date of grant The options vest if the Increase
In the Company's diuted sarmings per Ordinary share over a continuous penod of three years exceeds mflation and is at least 9%

A failure to meet this target increass dunng the performance penod causes the options to lapse The contractual ife of each option
granted 1S ten years There are no cash settlement altematives The last award made under this schems was on 10 March 2003
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25 Share based payments continued

Executive share option scheme 2005 (2005 ESOS")

Share options up to a maxirmum lirmit 100% of base salary may be awarded to Board directors and senior executives The exercise
price Is equal to the market value at the date of grant The options vest depending on the Company's total shareholder return relative
to the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap index (excluding investment Trusts) if performance over a three year period 1s In the upper
quartle, 100% of the options will vest If performance at the bottom of the medran, (second) quartile 40% will vest The amount vesting
will decrease on a straight line basis between the median and upper quartile If performance 1s below the median quartie no shares will
vest A falure to meet these conditions dunng the performance penod causss the options to lapse The contractual Ife of each option
granted 1s ten years There are no cash settlement alternatives

Following the passing of a resolution at the 2007 Annual General Meeting, the comparator group for awards made under the ESOS in
2005 and 2006 was extended from the onginal selected comparator Group to comprise the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap index
excluding investment trusts In accordance with the requirements of IFRS 2, this has been treated as a moedification to the onginal grant
of options and the fair value of the options granted under these awards have therefore been recalculated Details of the changs in far
value of these grants are shown below

Awards were made under this scheme on 30 March 2011

All-employee Savings Related Share Option Scheme {"SRS0S")

All employees, subject to the discretion of the remuneration committee, may apply for shars options under an employes save as you
earn plan which may from time to time be offered by the Cornpany In order to comply with HM Revenue & Customs’ requiremnents an
indndual’s participation is imited so that the aggregate pnce payabls for shares under option at any time does not exceed the statutory
imit Options granted under the plans will normally be exercisable If the employes remams in employment and any other conditions set
by the remuneration committes have been satisfied Options are normally exercisable at the end of the related savings contract but
early exercise Is permitted in certain imited circumstances The performance pered will not normally be less than three and a half years
or greater than seven and a half years

Awards were made under the SRSOS on 27 Apnl 2011

LTiP

Share options up to a maximum of 100% of base salary may be awarded to main board directors and senior executives The exercise
price of the option 1s €01l in respect of awards granted up to 31 December 2008, the options vest if the ncrease in the Company's
diluted earnings per Ordinary share cver the performance period (s at least equat to the rate of inflation plus 9% A falure to meet this
target increase dunng the performance penod causes the options to lapse The contractual Ife of each option granted 1s three years
There are no cash settlement alternatives

For opticns granted since 31 December 2008 the options vest in full if the increase n diluted earnings per Ordinary share aver the
performance penod 1s at least equal to the rate of inflation plus 18% If the ncrease s between 9% and 18% above the rate of nflation
the amount of shares vesting reduces on a pro rata basis untd at growth of 9% one third of the options granted will vest Failure to
reach the 9% plus the rate of inflation threshold results in all cptions lapsing There are no cash settlsment altematives

Awards were made under this scheme on 30 March 2011

The expense recognised for share based payments relating to equity settled share based payments transactions 1s £1,503,000
(2010 £1,309,000)

The Company has granted conditional awards n the form of options over shares or conditional nghts to have shares transferred
to certan employees under the LTIP scheme (approved at the AGM) over 735,204 (2010 662,522) Ordinary shares of 25p each

The following table ilustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of and mavements in share options dunng the
year In order to avoid distortion of the WAEP options having an exercise pnce of £nil have been shown separately

Group
2011 2010 *Ni* options
201 2010
No WAEP No WAEP No No
Qutstanding at 1 January 1,263,388 £4.18 1,138,154 £4 32 628,557 477,764
Granted dunng the year 249,120 £5.24 336,761 £417 232,175 281,355
Forferted dunng the year (169,079) £5.99 {149,840 £525 (29,515) (58,751)
Exercised {(61,936) £3.85 1 {40,820} £333" (98,013) {71,811}
Expired dunng the year - - {20.867) - - -
Outstanding at 31 December 1,281,493 £4.16 1,263,388 2418 735,204 628,557
Exercisable at 31 December 429,473 £3.52 484,054 £3 53 - -

t The weighted everage share price at the data of exercise for the options exercised was L5 47
* The weightod averaga share price at the date of exerdise lor tha options exercised was £4 31

For the share options cutstanding at 31 December 2011, the weighted average remaining contractual Iife 1s 4 years and 5 months
(2010 5 years and 3 months)

The weighted average far valuas of options granted dunng the year was £3 25 (2010 £2 47) The range of exercise pnces for options
outstanding at the end of the year was £1 42 - £6 73 (2010 £1 42-£673)
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Company

2011 2010 “Ni* options
2011 2010
No WAEP No WAEP Mo No
Qutstanding at 1 January 975,373 £3.96 842,406 £402 333,684 279,997
Granted dunng the year 189,584 £5.22 247 137 e412 132,330 175,021
Forfeited dunng the year (118,971) £6.15 (92,832) £4 89 - -
Exercised (57,547} £3871 {13,706) g339" {51,593} (62,583)
Expired dunng the year - - (7,632) £5 84 - (58,751}
Qutstanding at 31 December 988,439 £3.94 975,373 £3 96 414,421 333,684
Exercisable at 31 December 440,504 £3 53 440,504 £353 - -

* The weighted average share price at the data of exercise for tha options exercised was £5 47
* The welghted average share prica at the date of exercise for the options exercised was £4 18

For the share options outstanding at 31 December 20711, the weighted average remaining contractual Iife 1s 5 years and 11 months

(2010 8 years and 5 months)

The waighted average far value of options granted dunng the year was £3 02 (2010 £2 37} The range of exercise pnces for options

outstanding at the end of the ygar was £1 42-£6 73 {2010 £1 42-£6 73)

The far value of equity settled share based payments has been estimated as at date of grant using statistical medels which wall most
appropriately determine the far value of each type of scheme The Black Scholes model has been used for the SRS0S and the LTIP
schemes, the Binormial model for the 1995 Scheme and the Monte Carlo model for the 2005 ESOS

The inputs to the models used to detenmine the valuations fell within the following ranges

2011 2010
LTIP
Dadend yield (%) 3.00% 300%
Expected Iife of option {years) 3 3
Share price at date of grant £5.48 £4 18
2005 ESOS
Dividend yield (%} 3.00% 300%
Expected Ife of option {years) 8.5 65
Shareg pnce at date of grant £548 £4 31
Expected share price volatiity (%) 40% 40%
SRSO0S
Dmdend yield (%) 3.00% 300%
Expected Iife of option (years) 3.26-7.26 326-7 26
Share pnce at date of grant £5,50 £4 27
Expected share pnce volatity (35) 40% 40%

Risk free interest rate (%}

1.76%-3.16% 2 13%-3 69%

The expected share pnce volatiity which iz based on hustonc volatility, 1s the range within which the continuously compounded annual
rate of retum on the Company's shares 1s expected to fall approximately two thirds of the time

26 Loans and borrowings
Non-current liabildies

Group Comparny
2011 2010 2011 2010
300 £000 000 £000
Bark loans 102,984 110,776 94,725 101,495
Finance leases 399 797 - -
103,383 114,573 94,725 101,495

Current habilitites

Group Compasty
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Overdrafts - - 7,640 6,606
Bank loans 8,489 4,823 7,641 4,496
Finance leases 396 423 - -
8,885 5,246 15,281 11,102
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26 Loans and borrowings continued

Bank loans

Loans analysed by currency are repayable as follows

Year ended 31 December 2011

Group Company
Currency GBP usD NOK Tatal GBP uso Total
Due within one year 7,641 - 848 8,489 7,641 - 7,641
Due between cne and two
years 27,475 2,252 3,501 33,228 27,475 2,252 29,727
Due between two and five
years 56,633 8,365 3,178 68,176 56,633 8,365 64,998
Due after more than five years - - 1,580 1,580 - - -
91,749 10,617 9,107 111,473 91,749 10,617 102,366
Year ended 31 December 2010
Group Company
Currency GBP usp NCK Totat GBP usD Total
Due within one year 4,496 - 327 4,823 4,496 - 4,496
Due between one and two
years 33,621 4,314 3,347 41,282 33,621 4,314 37,935
Due between two and five
years 59,089 4,471 3,237 66,797 59,089 4,471 63,560
Due after more than five years - - 2,697 2,697 - - -
97.206 8,785 9,808 115,509 97,2086 8,785 105,991

The interest rates during the year ranged from 1 5% to 3 5% (2010 1 5% to 3 5%)
The were no loans secured against the assets of the Group or Company (2010 None}

Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts

Group

The Group uses finance leases In respect of certain items of plant and equipment The minmum future lease payments dus under
finance leases and hire purchase contracts are as follows

Group
2011 2010
£000 £000
Future minimum payments due:
Within one year 434 490
Within two to five years 419 858
853 1,346
Less finance charges allccated to future penods {58) {126)
795 1,220
Present valus of mimmum lease payments 1S analysed as follows
Within one year 396 423
Within two to five years 399 797
795 1,220
Company

The Company does not have any outstanding finance lease commitments
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27 Reconcibation of net debt

Net debt compnses interest bearng loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents

Group
1 January Cash Other Exchange 31 Decemnber
2000 Acquisitions flow non cash movernent 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 2000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 20,663 - (6.223) - 2,250 18,590
Cash and cash equivalents 20,563 - (6,223) - 2,250 16,590
Debt due after 1 year (109,501) - - (1,147) (228) (110,876)
Debt dus within 1 year (10,421) {1,278} 4,814 1,992 70 (4,823)
(119,922) (1,278) 4,814 845 {158) (115,699)
Finance leases (163) (1,226) 195 - (26) (1,220)
Net debt (99,522} (2,504) (1,.214) 845 2,066 (100,329)
1 January Cash Other Exchange 31 December
2011 Acguisitions flow nen cash movement 2011
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 16,590 - (2,531} - (484} 13,675
Cash and cash equivalents 16,590 - {2,531) - (484) 13,575
Debt dus after 1 year {110,876} - - 7,830 37) (103,083)
Debt due within 1 year (4,823) - 4,714 (8,380) {1) (8,490)
{115,699) - 4,714 {550) (38} (111,573)
Finance leases (1,220) - 423 - 2 (795)
Net debt (100,329) - 2,606 (550) (520) (98,793)
Company
1 January Cash Other Exchangs 31 December
2010 flow fion cash movement 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 376 (342} - - 34
Cash and cash equivalents 376 (342) - - 34
Debt due after 1 year (98,643} - (2,724) (228) {101,595)
Debt dus within 1 year (7,321) (7.384) 3533 70 (11,102)
(105,964) (7,384) 809 (158) {112,697)
Net debt {105,588) (7.726) 809 {158} {112,663)
1 January Cash Other Exchang 31 D«
2011 flow non cash movement 2011
2000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cash in hand and at bank 34 (24) - - 10
Cash and cash equivalents 34 (24) - - 10
Debt due after 1 year {101,595) - 6,807 (37) (24,825)
Debt due within 1 year (11,102} 3,179 {7,357} ()] (15,281)
(112,697) 3,179 {550) (38) (110,106}
Net debt (112,663} 3,155 (550) (38) {110,086)

28 Financial instruments
Capital management

The pnmary obyective of the Group’s capttal management policy 1s t0 mantain a strong credit rating and covenant ratios in order
fo be able to support the continued growth of its trading businesses and so maximise shareholder value

The Group meets its day to day working capital requirements through operating cash flows, with borrowings in place to fund

acquisiions and capital expenditure At 31 December the Group had £32,350,000 (2010 £26,100,000) of undrawn committed faciliies
of which £10,000,000 expres within 12 months The current econorme conditions create uncertanty particularly over &) the exchange
rate currency between Sterling and the US Dollar and the consequences for the niet cash Dollar surplus and b) the exchangs rate

between Sterling and the Euro and thus the consequences on seafarer payroll costs
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28 Financial instruments continued

Capital management continued

The Group 1s required to maintain covenant ratios in respect of net debt to eamings before interest and depreciation and amortisation
{(EBITDA), net interest costs to eamings before interest (EBIT) and EBIT and operating lease costs to nat interest and cperating lease
costs The Group has met its covenant ratios for the year ended 31 December 2011 The directors have prepared farecasts of the cash
flows for the subsequent 18 month perad which indicate that taking Into account the factors noted above the Group will meet its
covenant requirements for this period

The Group has a borrowing covenant which bmits total indebtedness to £150,000,000 {2010 £141,700,000}

The Group manages its capital structure through mantaning close relationships with its bankers who prowde the majenty of funds used
for acquisiions Capital 1s monitored by measunng the geanng ratio which 1s a measure derved from net debt divided by capital Net
debt comprises nterest beanng loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalenis Capital represents net equity attnbutable to the
equity holders of the parent Return on capital employed (ROCE) 1s also monitored

The Group’s dividend policy 1s based on tha expected growth in sustainable ncome streams after making provision for the retention of
capital to nvest in growth and acquisitions In evaluating growth investment opportunities the Group has a targst of 15% pre tax retum
on the capital nvested

201 2010

£000 £000

Interest beanng loans and borrowings 112,268 116,819
Less cash and cash equivalents {13,575) {16,580)
Net debt 98,693 100,229
Equity attnbutable to the owners of the Company 131,770 117,765
Gearnng ratio 75% 85%

The reasons for the change In geanng over the previous year are discussed in the Charman'’s statement on pages 4 to 7

The Group has exposure to the following nsks from its use of financial instruments

s  Credit nsk,

«  Liquidity nsk,

* Interest rate nsk, and

« Foreign exchange nsk

Detaiis of the Group’s risk management objectives, strategies and policies are set out on pages 9 and 10 of tha review of operations

Further infermation on these nsks 18 presented below and 1s ncluded n other disclosures throughout these consolidated financial
statements

Credit risk
Credit nsk Is the nsk of financial foss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial Instrument fails to meet its contractual
obhgations

These anse principally from the Group’s recewables from customers

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure The maximurn exposure to credit nsk at the reporting
date was

Group Company

2011 2010 2011 2010

£000 £000 £000 £000

Avatlable for sale financial assets 1,370 1,370 1,368 1,368

Recewables 58,756 44,882 1,624 840

Cash and cash equivalents 13,575 16,590 10 34
Forward exchange contracts used for hedging

Assets 218 3 218 3

73,919 62,845 3,220 2,245

There are no significant concentrations of credit nsk within the Group The Group's exposure to credit nsk 1s influenced manly by the
indvidual charactenstics of each customer and the industry and country in which each customer operates The Group has a number of
large customers including Government agencies n the UK and overseas, major oll companies and other multinational corporations The
ten largest customers of the Group accounted for approximately 21% of Group revenue (2010 31%) No single customer accounted
for rore than 5% (2010 79%) of revenue

New customers are subject to creditworthiness checks and credit imits are subject to approval by senior management Goods are sold
subject to retention of tifle clauses so that in the event of non-payment the Group may have a secured clam
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Trade receivables are non intarest-beanng and are generally on 3 to 30 days terms At 31 December the value of trads debtors
outstanding was

Group Compary
2011 2010 2011 2010
Gross Allowance Gross Alowance Gross Allowanca Gross Allowance
£000 000 £000 LO00 £000 £000 £000 £000
Not past due 39,863 - 35,674 - 2 - 2 -
Past due 12,957 1,432 9,510 1,096 - - - -
52,820 1,432 45,184 1,096 3 - 2 -
Movernent on the aliowance for impamrmnent of trade receivables was as follows
Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 2000
Balance at 1 Januvary 2011 1,096 860 - -
Exchange differences (1) 39 - -
Acquired with subsicianes - a4 - -
Addiional provisions 401 334 - -
Recovenes 45) (163) - -
White offs {19) (18} - -
1,432 1,096 - -

The Group believes the trade receivables that have not been provided against that are past due by more than 30 days are still
collectible based on histonc payment behaviour and extensive analysis of underlying customers’ credit ratings Based on histonc default
rates, the Group believes that apart from the amounts included in the table above, no Impaiment allowance 1s necessary in respect

of trade receivables not past due or past due by up to 30 days

No other recevables are considered to be past due

Liquidity nsk

Liguidity nsk s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due The Group manages its cash
resources lo ensure that it will have sufficient iquichty to meet its habilities as they fall dus but in a manner designed to masamise the
benefit of those resources whilst ensunng the secunty of investment resources

The Group forecasts the profile of its cash requirements on a monthly basis and ensures that sufficient facilities are available to meet
peak requirements which occur at predictable times in the year

The Group manages the matunty profile of its borrowings by mantaining a regular dialogue with ts lenders and ensunng that it
commences the renegotiation of facilities sufiiciently early to allow a comprehensive review of its requirements before completion

The Group's revolving credit facilities extend over Several accounting penods and fall due for renewal in different accounting penods
ensunng that the Group negotiations with indvidual lenders follow an orderly process which does not expose the Group to the
possibility of a significant reduction in availlable facilitiss in a single penod

At 31 December 2011, the Group has avaslable £32,348,000 of undrawn committed bank faciites (2010 £26,100,000)
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28 Financtal instruments continued
Liquidity risk continued

The following are the contractual matunties of financial iabiities, ncluding interest payments

Group
31 December 2011
Contractual Mora
Canrying cash Within 1 1-2 2-5 than
amount flows yoar years years § years
£000 £000 £00C £000 £000 £000
Non-derivative financial habilities
Unsecured bank loans 111,473 {121,108) {12,562) (15,616) (91,282) (1,648)
Finance lease liabilities 795 _(854) {435) {320) (99) -
Trade and other payables 57,985 (57,985) (57,985) - - -
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging® {1,541) {1,953) (522) (504) (577) {350)
Forward exchange contracts used for
hedging
Outflow 338 20,001 20,001 - - -
Inflow (218) 4,998 4,998 - - -
168,832 {156,901) (46,505) {16,440) (91,958) {1,998)
* These derivative financial Instruments are accounted for s fair value and it is not deemed appropriate to eflocate the cash fows across the meturity categories
31 December 2010
Contractual More
cash Within 1 1-2 2-5 than
amount flows year years Years 5 years
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 0000
Non-derivative financial habilihes
Unsecured bank loans 115,599 {124,168) (8,593) (44,276} (68,448) (2,853}
Finance lease habilities 1,220 {(1,346) (490) {436} (320) (100}
Trade and other payables 23,532 (23,532) (23,532) - - -
Derivative financial habihties
Interest rate swaps used for hedging (1,029) (2,833) (2,833) - - -
Forward exchange contracts used for
hedging - - - - - -
Qutflow 182 8,993 8,993 - - -
Inflow {3} - - - - -
139,501 (142,886) {26,455) (44,712) (68,766) (2.953)
Company
31 December 2011
Contractual More
Carrying cash Within 1 1-2 2-5 than
amount flows year yoars years Syears
£000 £000 £000 £000 000 £000
Non-derivative financial habilities
Unsecured bank loans 110,006 (118,428) (18,934) (11,826) (87,667) -
Trade and other payables 17,506 {17,506} (17,506} - - -
Derwative financial liabilities
Interest rate swaps used for hedging” (1,305) (1,680) {(412) {395) (523) (350}
Forward exchange contracts used for
hedging
Qutflow 338 20,001 20,001 - - -
Inflow (218) 4,998 4,998 - - -
126,327 (112,615) (11,853) (12,221) (88,190) (350)

“These derivativa financlal instruments are accounted for at fair value and it Is not deemed appropriata to aiocate the cash flows across the metwrity categories
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31 December 2010

Contractual Moras
Carmrying cash Within 1 1-2 2-5 than
ameunt flows vear years years 5 years
Company 2000 £000 £000 L£000 £000
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Unsecured bank loans 112,587 (119,638} {14,430) {40,598) (84,610} -
Tradle and other payables 16,882 (16,882) {16,882) - - -
Denvative financial labiihes
Interest rate swaps used for hedging (892) (2,450) (2,450) - - -
Forward exchange contracts used for
hedging
Outflow 182 8,993 8,993 - - -
Inflow (3) - - - - -
128,766 (129,977) (24,769) (40,598) 64,610) -~
Foreign exchange nsk
The Group incurs foraign currency nsks on sales, purchases and borrowings denorminated in currencies other than Stering The
Group's principal transactional exposures are to the US Dollar and Eure The pnncipal exposures ansing from its net investment
overseas I to the Norwegian Kroner As explained in the review of operations on page 11, the Group's objectives in managing its
structural currency exposures are to mantain a low cost of borrowings and to minimise the nsk of adverse currency movements
to its cash flow
Gamns and losses ansing from the Group's net investments overseas are recognised N the statement of comprehensive ncome
The Group's exposure to foreign currency nsk in its principal currencles was as follows based on nottonal amounts
31 December 2011 31 Dacember 2010
usp Euro NOK sSGD AUD SEK usD Euto NOK S5GD AUD SEK
000 Qoo 000 [+ 000 000 000 000 000 000 00 000
Trade recevables 24,454 1,762 52,942 3,634 2,897 501 21,336 2,124 41,490 3,009 1,042 -
Cash at bank and n
hand 5507 2211 45741 1,815 1,396 - 7,682 1,438 15074 2,823 1,975 -
Unsecured bank
loans (16,500) - {84,473) - - - (13,755} - {87.,427) - - -
Trade payables (5,534) (1,953) (16,615) (1,272) (463) (341) (5,339) (1,588) (14,435) (954) (1,218) {201}
Gross balance shest
exposure 7,927 2,020 (2,405) 4,177 3,830 160 9,924 1,974 (45298) 4,878 1,799 (201)
Forecast sales 28,267 - 386,000 - - 109,000 6,871 1,309 18,193 2,304 - -
Forecast purchases  (2,137) (4,882) (5,675) (158} - (39,000} (900} (779} (2,874) (216) - -
Gross exposure 34,057 (2,862) 27,920 4,019 3,830 70,160 15895 2,504 (29,979) 6966 1,799 (201)
Forward exchange
centracts (32,111) 501 - - - (52,209) (14,400} 75) - - - -
Net exposure 1,946 (2,361) 27,920 4,019 3,830 17,951 1495 2429 (20,979) 6966 1,799 (201)

Secured bank loan denominated in NOK were secured aganst tangible fixed assets also denominated in NOK

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its transachonal exposures Most forward exchange contracts have matuntes
of less than one year after the balance sheet date Forward exchange contracts which qualfy as effective cash flow hedges are
ncluded at ther fair value in the hedging reserve and in current assets or short term liabilities, until the earlier of their matunty or the
date the transaction to which they relate ts recognised at which pomnt thay are transferred to the income statement

Changes in the level of exchanga rates will have an impact on consolidated sarmings, Tha following table shows tha impact on earmings
of a 5% strengthening in the exchange rate in the Group's key currencies against pound Stering The abverse movements would be of
the same magnitude These amounts have been calculated by applying changes in exchangs rates to the Group's estimated foreign
currency revenues and costs and its net investment in entiies which do not use Sterling as therr bass currency and include the impact

of forward exchange contracts
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28 Financial instruments continued
Foreign exchange risk continued

2011 2010

Equity Profit or foss Equity Profit of Yoss

£000 £000 000 £000

Us Dollar {290) (1,272) (142) (2,615)
Norwegian Kroner (589) {220) {470) (175)
Euro 724 {585) 132 (254)
UAE Dirham (84) (395) {179) (81)
Singapore Dollar (185) {1,181} {499) {419)
Australan Dollar 145 {500) 22 87
Malaysian Ringgit {79) (23} (42) (5)
(338) (4,176) {1,178} (3,616)

Interest rate nsk

The Group uses denvative financial nstruments to hedge exposure to fluctuations in interest rates  The interest rate profile of the
Group’s financial agsets and habilihes are set out in the table below The Group has used interest rate swaps to convert interest rates
on certan borrowings from floating rates to fixed rates

Group Compary
2014 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £O00
Fixed rate instruments
Financial habilities {100) {100) {100) {100}
Vanable rate mstruments
Financial assets 13,575 16,590 10 34
Financial iabilities (111,473) {115,599) (110,0086) {112,597}

(97,898) {99,009) (109,996) (112,563)

The Group uses dervative financial nstruments to hedge exposure to fluctuations n interest rates The interest rate profile of the
Group's financial assets and liabilities are set out in the table below The Group uses interest rate swaps to convert interest rates on
certain barrowings from floating rates to fixed rates Details of the interest rate swaps which were entered into dunng 2009 are shown
in the table below Where hedging cntena are met the Group classifies interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges and states them at farr
value Over the longer term permanent changes in interest rates would have an impact on consolidated earmings At 31 December
2011 a general increase of one percentage point would have had the following impact

2011 2010
Equity Profit or loss Equity Profit or loss
£000 £000 £000 000
Vanable rate instruments - (979) - (990
Interest rate swap - 263 - 388
Cash flow sensitmty - {716) - {602)
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Fair values

Set out below 1s a companson by category of the camying amounts and farr values of alf the Group's financial instruments that are

carned in the financial statements

2011 2010
Carrying Fair Canying Fair
value value valug valus
Note £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Assets carned at fair value
Forward exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 218 218 3 3
218 218 3 3
Assets carned at amortised cost
Recewvables 19 58,756 58,756 44,882 44,882
Cash and cash equivalents 20 13,575 13,575 16,590 16,580
Other Investments 16 1,370 1,370 1,370 1,370
73,701 73,701 62,842 62,842
Liabilities carned at fair value
Forward exchange contracts — cash flow hedges (339) (339) {182) {182)
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges {1,541) (1,541) {1,029) {1,029)
{1,880) {1,880) (1.211) (1,211)
Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Unsecured bank loans 26 (111,473) {107,789) {115,599) (112,671}
Trade and other payables 23 (57,985) (57,985) (23,532} (23,532)
Finance leases 26 (795) {808} (1,220) (1,262)
Preference shares 21 (100) {100} {100) (100)
{170,353) (166,682) {140,451) (137,565)
Company
Assets carried at fair value
Forward exchange contracts — cash flow hedges 218 218 3 3
218 218 3 3
Assets carried at amortised cost
Recewvables 19 1,624 1,624 840 840
Cash and cash equivalents 20 10 10 34 34
Other investments 16 1,368 1,368 1,368 1,368
3,002 3,002 2,242 2.242
Liabilities carned at fair value
Forward exchange contracts — cash flow hedges (339) (339} {182) (182)
Interest rate swaps — cash flow hedges {1,305) (1,305) ([892) {892)
{1,644) (1,644) (1,074) (1,074)
Liabilities carried at amortised cost
Overdrafts 28 (7,640) (7,640} (6,606) (6,608)
Unsecured bank loans 26 {102,366) (99,652) (105,891) (104,219)
Trade and other payables 23 {17,5086) (17,506) (16,882) (16,882}
Preference shares 21 (100) {100} {100} {10Q)
{127,612) (124,898) {129,579) (127,807

Farr value has been determined by reference to the market value at the balance sheet date or by discounting the relevant cash flows

using current interest rates for similar instruments

The farr value of the financial assets has been assessed by the directors with reference to the current prospects of the investments

and nsks associated with those prospects
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28 Financial instruments continued
Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies fair value measurement using a far value hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making

measurements of far value The fair value hierarchy has the following levels

{a} Leve! 1 —Quoted pnices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or labilities,

(b) Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or hability, either directly

{ie, as pnces) or mdirectly {ie, denved from pnces), and

(c) Level 3 —Inputs for the asset or lability that are not based on observable market data (unchservable inputs)

The following table shows an analysis of financial mstruments camed at fair value by the level of farr value hierarchy

Laval 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
01 2010 2011 2010 201 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £00¢ £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Group
Derivative financial assets
Forward exchange contracts —
cash flow hedges - - 218 3 - - 218 3
- - 218 3 - - 218 3
Denvative financial hhabilities
Forward exchange contracts —
cash flow hedges - - (339) (182} - - (339) (182)
Interest rate swaps — cash flow
hedges - - {1,541) {1.029) - - (1,541) (1,029)
- - (1,880) {1.211) - - (1,880) (1,211)
- - (1,662) {1.208) - - (1,662} (1.208)
Company
Derivative financial assets
Forward exchange contracts —
cash flow hedges - - 218 3 - - 218 3
- - 218 3 - - 218 3
Denvative financial habilihes
Forward exchange contracts —
cash flow hedges - - (339} (182) - - {339) (182)
Interest rate swaps — cash flow
hedges - - {1,305) (892) - - (1,305) (892}
- - (1,644) {1,074) - - (1,644) (1,074)
- - (1,426) {1,071) - - {1,426) {1,071}
There have bean no transfers between categones dunng the penod
The farr value of interest rate swap contracts and forward exchange contracts are calculated by management based on external
valuations recewved from the Group’s bankers and 1s based on forward exchange rates and anticipated future interest yislds
respectively
Hedges - Group and Company
Farr value hedges
At 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010 the Group did not have any cutstanding far value hedges
Cash flow hedges
At 31 December 2011 the Group and Company held forward currency contracts designated to hedge future commitments in Euro,
SEK and US Dollars The terms of the contracts are as follows
Exchenge Felr value
Matixity rate £000
Sell
Us$ 31,380,000 January 2012 — March 2013 1 5683 (232)
US$ 1,462,556 February — Apnl 2012 1 6469 {29
SEK 50,000,000 April — June 2012 10 4609 140

84 James Fisher and Sons plc Annual Report 2011




Al 31 December 2010 the Group and Company held forward currency contracts designated to hedge future commitments in Euro and
US Dollars The terms of the contracts are as follows

Exchange Fair value
Maturity rate £000
Buy
€ 74,920 30 Apnl 2011 12174 3
Sell
USS$ 14,400,000 January — December 2011 15903 {156)

The foreign exchange contracts have been negotiated to match the expected profile of receipts At 31 December 2011 these hedges
were assessed to be highly effective and an unrealised loss of £2,465,000 (2010 £1,161,000) relating to the hedging nistruments is
included in equity

Interest rate swaps

The Group and Company entered Into mterest rate swap contracts in respect of Sterling denomnated debt to swap a vanable rate
habilty for a fixed rate labity A subsidiary company, James Fisher Norway AS, has entered into an interest rate swap n respect of the
loan secured agamnst the new build property Included i its balance sheet On disposal of this business this mstrument was reassigned
to the external borrowings of James Fisher Norway AS These instruments have been allocated aganst the Group and Gompany debt
in the tables shown above Detalls of the contracts and therr farr values at 31 December are set out below

Fair value

Foxed rato 2011 2010
Amout Meatunty % £000 £000
£6,750,000 30 January 2012 24000 (24) (1086)
£6,750,000 30 January 2012 2 3600 (23) (124)
£1,250,000 30 January 2014 29100 (51) (M)
£4,000,000 30 January 2014 28250 {i6e) {1586)
£5,250,000 30 January 2014 28900 {226) 216)
£3,000,000 30 January 2019 34900 (385) (100}
£3,000,000 30 January 2018 37100 {430) (149)
£30,000,000 {1,305) (892)
80,000,000 NOK 30 June 2014 3 8600 {236) (137)

Net investment in foreign operations

The Company funded the acquisttion of the goodwill ansing on acquistion Scan Tech Holdings AS and Arr Supply AS by means

of an interest-beanng loan to its Norwegian Holding cormpany of NOK 160,000,000 (2010 NOK 160,000,000) The net mvestment
ansing on these acquisiions 1§ treated as hetng an asset of the Company and 1s denominated in Sterling This acts as a hedge aganst
movements N the net investment in these businesses

Derivative financial instruments not qualfying as hedges
The Group held the following denvative financial instruments which did not qualfy for hedge accounting at 31 Cecember 2011

Exchange Far value
Maturity rate £000

Sell
SEK 2,209,404 15 June 2012 101206 3
EUR 1,750,000 17 July 2012 11481 10
EUR 501,043 30 Apnl-21 July 2012 11423 {13)

2010

Exchange Fair valua
Maturity rate £000

Sell
SEK 2,000,000 10 February 2011 10 9505 te)]
SEK 3,779,541 1 Apnl 2011 104184 (17)
(26)
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29 Commitments and contingencies
Qperating leases
The future mirimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December are as follows

Group Company
2011 2010 201 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
Within one year 13,409 14,185 81 184
After one year but not more than five years 37,199 43,723 116 216
After five years 12,520 16,925 71 92
63,128 74,843 268 472

The Group has entered nto leases on certain properties, vessels, plant and motor vehicles These leases have a life of between one
and ten years and are renewable at the option of the lessee As noted I the contingent ahilities section below, certain of the lease
llabilities m relation to bareboat charters are guaranteed by a member of the Group other than the entity holding the charter

Capital commitments
At 31 December capital commitments for which no provision has baen made in these accounts amounted to

Group Company
2011 2010 2011 2010
£000 £000 £000 £000
890 616 - 11

There are no significant individual items in 2010 or 2011

Contingent habilities

(a) In the ordinary course of the Company's business, counter ndemnities have been given to bankers in respect of custom bonds,
foreign exchange commitments and bank guarantees

{b) A Group VAT registration 1s operated by the Company and 27 group undertakings i respect of which the Company 1 jointly and
severally hable for all amounts due to HM Revenue & Customs under the arrangement

(c) The Group has 1ssued a guarantee and imdemnity to HSBC Bank plc in respect of the loan faciitty of Foreland Shipping Limited, the
total guarantee at 31 December 2011 was £1,966,000 (2010 £2,1 17,000} Further detalls of this joint venture are included in note
15

{d) A guarantee has been 1ssued by the Group to HSBC Bank plc in respect of the cbligations of a subsidiary, James Fisher Everard
Limited, 1n relation to bareboat charters refatng to the mt Chartsman and mt Steersman The total guarantee at 31 December 2011
was £740,000 (2010 £734,000)

(e) A guarantee has been ssued by the Group to charter parties In respect of obhgations of a subsidiary, James Fisher Everard Limited,
in respect of charters relating to seven vessels The charters expire between 2012 and 2018

{f) Subsidianes of the Group have issued performance and payment guarantees to third parties with a total value of £1,807,000
(2010 £1,745,000)

(@ As referred ton note 24, the Trustees of the Merchant Navy Officers Pension Fund (MNOPF} have indicated that under the terms
of the High Court rubng in 2005 which established the iabilty of past employers to fund the deficit on tha Post 1978 section of the
MNOPF, they may make calls for further contnbutions m the future if additional actuanal deficits anse or If other employers hable for
contnbutions are not able to pay therr share The Group remains jontly and severally hable for any future shortfall In recovery of the
deficit

The Group has given an unlimited guarantes to the Singapore Navy in respect of the performance of First Response Manne Pte Lid,
ts Singapore joint venture, in relation to the provision of submanne rescue and related actvities Further details of this joint venture
are given In note 15

h

=

{) n the nommal course of business, the Company and certain subsidianes have given parental and subsidiary guarantees in support
of loan and banking arrangements
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30 Related party transactions
Compensation of key management to the Group

2011 2010

£000 £000

Short-term employee benefits 1,905 1,790
Post-employment benefits - 100
Share based payments 884 921
2,789 2,811

Key management personnel compnse the Board of directors of the Company Details of the directors’ interests in the ESOS, LTIP and
the SRS0S are included in the directors’ remuneration report on pages 24 to 29

Transactions with related parties

Company

The Company has entered into transactions with its subsidiary undertakengs pnmanly in respect of the provision of accounting senvices,
finance and the provision of share options to employees of subsidianes

The amount ocutstanding from subsidiary undertakings to the Company at 31 December 2011 was £130,588,000 (2010
£122,959,000) Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings by the Company at 31 December 2011 totalled £12,561,000 (2010
£13,476,000)

The Company has had no expense in respect of bad or doubtful debts of subsidiary undertakings in the year (2010 Znil)

Foreland Shipping Limited

The Group pravides payroll management services to Foreland Shipping Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Foreland Holdings
a company in which the Group has a 25% equity Interest No profit 1s made on the provision of these services which are excluded
from the Group's revenue

FCM businesses
As set out In note 15 the Group has interests of between 25% and 50% in several joint ventures providing ship to ship transfer services
In West Afnica, Northern Europe and Asia through tts wholly owned subsidiary, Fender Care Manne Services Limited

First Response Marine

The Group holds through its James Fisher Manne Services subsichary (JFMS) a 50% interest in First Response Manne Pte Ltd (FRM)
FRM provides submanne rescue services to the Singapore government under a 20 year service contract which commenced in March
2009 Included in the contract is the provision of a submanne rescue vessel acquired by FRM from JFMS FRM subcontracts part of the
provision of the submarnne rescue service to JFMS and its subsidiary James Fisher Singapare Pte Lid JFMS has also provided a loan
to FRM of £1,798,000 to support its day to day operations The loan which 1s ncluded in the Group balance sheet as part of the
investment in jont ventures 1s Interest beanng and s repayable at the end of the project Interest charged in the penod amounted to
£104,000 (2010 £111,000) Divmdends recaived or recevable dunng the pencd included in the resulis of the Group are £746,000

(2010 £438,000)

Details of the transactions carned out with related parties are shown In the table below

Purchases Amounts Amounts

Services to Sales to from owed by owed to

related refated ralated retated related

parties parties perties parties parties

£000 2000 £000 £000 £000

Foreland Shipping Limited 2011 490 - - 32 -
2010 491 - - 42 -

FCM businesses 2011 - 2,559 684 146 2,067
2010 - 1,904 - 361 222

Everard Insurance Brokers 2011 34 - - - -
2010 a3 - 1 7 -

First Responss Marine 2011 2,328 - 15 663 6
2010 2,677 - 26 614 -

No provision for bad debts has been made m respect of these balances (2010 £nil) No bad debts arose dunng the penod refating
to these transactions (2010 £ni))

All transactions with related parties are pnced on an arm’s length basis on terms equivalent to those provided to wholly external parties

The Company 1s responsible for the prowision of services to Foreland Shipping Limited but does not engage in any other transactions
with parttes who are not whaolly owned subsidianes
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Notes to the financial statements continued

Group financial record
For the five years ended 31 December

2014 2010 2009 2008 2007
£000 £000 £000 000 £000
Revenue
Manne Support services” 240,819 196,492 178,471 152,819 106,114
Manne Qil 66,805 71,857 71,123 80,759 75,932
307,624 268,349 249,594 233,578 182,046
Underlying operating profit
Marnne Support services* 38,065 34,764 33,155 27,159 17,622
Manne Cil 1,145 725 (1,815) 5,075 8,555
Common costs (3,077) (3,006) (2,444) {2,637) (2,632)
36,133 32,483 28,896 29,537 23,545
Adjusting items* (254) {1,187} (33 - -
Net finance costs (6,128) {6,355) (4,121) {5,970) {4,445)
Undertying profit before taxation 30,005 27,128 24,775 23,567 19,100
Adjusting items* (254) {1,187} (33) - -
Profit before taxation 29,751 25,941 24,742 23,567 19,100
Taxation {including tonnage tax) {5,634) {6,109) (6,318) 5,277) {2,959)
Profit after taxation 24,117 19,832 18,424 18,2680 16,141
Intangible assets 93,188 89,274 73,438 70,069 67,266
Property, plant and equipment 103,898 104,683 111,086 102,018 92,311
Investment In asscciates and joint ventures 13,904 13,063 10,348 5917 5,587
Working capital 52,824 46,265 38,567 33,069 21,187
Pension obligations (30,133) (29,786) (22,361) (18,648) (19.683)
Taxation (3,209) (5,405) (5.853) (5,870} (2,783)
Assets classified as held {or sale - - 1,375 - 1,172
Total capital employed 230,472 218,094 206,600 186,555 165,057
Net bomrowings 98,793 100,329 99,522 91,505 77,948
Equity 131,679 117,765 107,078 95,050 87,109
230,472 218,094 206,600 186,555 165,057
*  Marine Support services comprises the Offshora OF Speclafist Technical and Defance divisions including Joint ventures and associates
# Adusting lerns comprise acquisition expenses and amartisation of acquired intanglbles
Prior years have been restated for the treatment of pension Interest and shipping manag 1 fees as dest nnote 2
ponce ponce pence pance pence
Eamings per share
Basic 48.4 399 371 369 327
Diluted 48.0 387 370 367 324
Underlying basic 48.8 422 37 1 355 329
Underying diluted 48.4 19 370 354 3286
Other key performance indicators
Operating margin (%) 11.7% 12 1% 11 6% 12 4% 13 0%
Return on capital employed (post tax) (%) 13.0% 11 8% 11 5% 135% 11 7%
Net geanng (%) 74.9% 85 1% 92 9% 96 2% 89 5%
Didend cover {times) 3.0 27 27 28 29
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Subsidiary undertakings

Detalls of the major companies in which the Group and the Company (unless indicated) holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital are as set out below Except in refation to joint ventures and associated undertakings, all such companies are

wholly owned by the Group

Nama of company {Incorporated in Great Britaln unless otharwise stated)

Principal activities

Place of business

Buchan Technical Serices Limited Engineenng UK
Cattedown Wharves Limited Wharfage & Warehousing* UK
Everard (Guemsey) Limited (Incorporated in Guemsey) Crewing Agents* Gusmsey
FenderCare Australia Pty Ltd (incorporated in Australia) Manne Services* Australia
Fender Care Limited Manne Services* UK
Fender Care (Changshu) Ltd (Incorporated in China) Manne Services* China
Fender Care do Brasil LTDA (909} (incorporated i Brazif) Manne Services® Brazil
Fender Care Manne Limited Marnng Services* UK
Fender Care Marine (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd (ncorporated in Singapore) Marne Services* UK
Fender Care Manne Products (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd {(incorporated in Singapore} Manne Services* UK
Fender Cara Marine Services Group Limited Manne Services” UK
Fender Care Manne Solutions Limited Manne Services* UK
Fender Care Norway AS Manne Services* Norway
FT Everard and Sons Limited Management Services UK
FT Everard Shtupping Limited Ship Owning* UK
James Fisher (Aberdeen) bimited Investment UK
James Fisher Australia Holdings Pty Ltd (Incorporated in Australia) Investrment® Austraha
James Fisher Australia Pty Ltd (Incorporated in Australia) Engineering* Australla
James Fisher (Crewing Services) Limited Crewing Agents UK
James Fisher Everard Limited Ship Operators™ UK
James Fisher Fender Care Limited Investment UK
James Fisher {(Guemsey) Limited (Incorporated in Guernsey) Crewing Agents Guernsey
James Fisher Manne Services Limited Marnne Services UK
James Fisher (New Zealand) Limited (Incorporated in New Zealand) Crewing Agents New Zealand
James Fisher Norway AS Investment Norway
James Fisher Nuclear Limited Engineenng” UK
James Fisher Nuclear Holdings Limited Investment UK
James Fisher Offshore Limited Engineenng UK
James Fisher (Ro-Ro) Limited Investment UK
James Fisher Scan Tech AS (Incorporated in Norway) Engineenng” MNorway
James Fisher {Shipping Senvices) Limited Ship Operators UK
Jarnes Fisher Singapore Pte Ltd {incorporated in Singapore) Provision of subsea Singapore
services and support”
James Fisher Tankships Holdings Limited Investment UK
Mantime Enginesrs Pty Ltd (Incorporated m Australia} Engineenng* Australa
Mantime Engineers (Asia Pacific) Pte Ltd {(Incorporated in Singapore) Engneenng* Singapore
Prolec Limted Engineenng” UK
RigCool Limited Engineenng* UK
RigCool Austrabia Pty Ltd (Incorparated in Australia) Engneenng” Australa
RMSpumptools Limited Enginesnng* UK
RMSpurnptools Pte Ltd {Incorporated n Singapors) Enginesnng* Singapore
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Subsidiary undertakings continued

Namse of compeny (Incorparated in Great Britain unless ctherwise stated)

Principal actlvities

Place of businass

Scan Tech Ar Supply UK Limited Engineenng UK
Scan Tech Produkt AS Engineenng” Norway
Scotload Ltd Manne Services” UK
Stramnstall Malaysia SDN BHD (Incorporated n Malaysia) Engineenng” Malaysia
Strainstali AS (Incorporated in Norway) Engineenng” Norway
Strainstall Group bmited Engineering UK
Stranstall Singapore Pte Ltd (incorporated in Singapore ) Engineenng” Singapore
Strainstall UK Limited Engineerng” UK
The Ralway Enginesnng Company Limited Engneenng” UK
* Held by 8 subsidiary undartalang

Joint ventures and associated undertakings

Name of company Principal actlvities Place of business
Active Load Limited (20%) Engineenng” UK
Astena Navigation Inc (45%} Manne Services® West Afnca
Cumbna Nuclear Solutions Limited (17%) Engineenng”® UK
FCN tumited (45%) Marnne Services” West Afnca
Fendercare Manne Agency Pte Ltd (50%) Manne Services” Indonesia
Fendercare Nigena Limited (45%) Manne Services® West Afnica
Fender Care Benelux BV (50%) Marine Services™ Europe
Fender Care East Africa (36%) Marine Services® East Afnca
Fender Care (Malaysia) SDN 8HD {30%) Manne Services” Malaysia
Fendercare Manne LLC {49%) Manne Services” Fujairah
Fender Care Marne Omega Limited (50%) Manne Services* India
Fender Care Middle East LLC (49%} Manne Services® Dubai
First Response Marne Pte Lid (50%) Manne Services® Singapore
Foreland Holdings Limited (25%) Ship Owning® UK
James Fisher Angola LUmitada (49%) Manne Sences” Angola
Sivertide Inc (45%) Manna Services® Woest Afnca
Strainstall Middle East LLG (49%) Engineenng” Dubai & Abu Dhata

* Held by a subsidiary undertaking
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice I1s hereby gven that the Annual General Meeting {AGM) of James Fisher and Sons plc will be held at the Abbey House Hotel,
Abbey Road, Barrow-in-Furmess LA13 OPA on Thursday 3 May 2012 at 12 noon to consider and, f thought fit, to pass Resoclutions 1
to 8 nclusive as ordinary resolutions and Resolutions 9 to 11 inclusive as special resolutions

Ordinary business
Resolution 1
To receive the accounts and the reports of the directors and the auditors thereon for the year ended 31 December 2011

Resolution 2
To receve and approve the report on directors' remuneration (as set out on pages 24 to 28 of the Annual Report and Accounts)
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Resolution 3
To declare a final dvdend for the year ended 31 December 2011 of 10 74p per Ordinary share

Resolution 4
To re-elect Mr C J Rica as a director of the Company, who retires by rotation

Resolution 5
To re-elect Mr M Storey as a director of the Company, who retires by rotation

Resolution 6
To re-elect Mr F M Everard as a director of the Company, who retires by rotation

Resolution 7
To reappoint KPMG Audtt Pl as auditors of the Company te hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company and
authonse the directars to deterrmine their remuneration

Special business

Resolution 8

That the directors of the Company be and are hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed for the purposes of Section 551 of

the Companies Act 2006 (the Act) to exercise all the powers of the Company to allot shares in the Company and to grant nghts

to subscnbe for, and convert any secunty into, shares in the Cornpany (Rights) up to an aggregate nominal amount of £4,160,452
provided that this authonty shall expire on the date of the next AGM of the Company or, if eariter, on 3 August 2013, save that the
Company shall be entitled to make offers or agreements before the expiry of such authonty which would or might require shares to

be allotted or Rights to be granted after such expiry and the directors shall be entitled to allot shares and grant Rights pursuant to any
such offer or agreement as if this authonty had not expired, and all authonties previously granted to the directors to allot shares and
grant Rights that remamn unexercised at the commencement of this meeting be and are hereby revoked

Resolution 9

Special Resolution

That subject to the passing of Resolution 8, the directors be hereby empowered to allot equity secunties (as defined in section 360 of
the Act} of the Company for cash either pursuant to the authonty conferred by Resolution B and/or where the allotment is treated as an
allotment of equity secunties under section 560{2)(b) of the Act, In exther case as if section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to such
allotment provided that this power shall be inuted to

(a) The allotment of equity secunties 1n connection with an offer of secunties in favour of the holders of Ordinary shares on the register
of members at such record date as the drectors may determine and other persons entitled to participate therein where the equity
secunties respectively attnbutable to the interests of the ordinary sharsholders are proportonate (as nearty as may be practicable) to
the respective numbers of Ordinary shares held or deemed to be held by them on any such record date, subject to such exclusions
or other arrangements as the directors may deemn necessary or expedient to deal with treasury shares, fractional entitlements or
legal or practical problems ansing under the laws of any overseas terntory or the requirements of any regulatory body or stock
exchangs or by virtue of shares being represented by depositary receipts or any other matter; and

{b) The allotment (otherwise than pursuant to sub-paragraph (a) above) to any person or persons of equity secunties up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £624,067,

and shall expire upon the expiry of the general authonty conferred by Resclution 8 above, save that the Company shall be entitled to
make offers or agresments before the expiry of such power which would or might require equity secunties to be allotted after such
expiry and the directors shall ba entitled to allot equity secunties pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if the power conferred
hereby had not expired
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Resolution 10

Special Resolution

The Company be and 1s hereby generally and unconditionally authonsed for the purposes of section 701 of the Act to make one or
more market purchases (within the meaning of section 693(4) of the Act) on the London Stock Exchange of up to a maximum
aggregate of 2,496,271 Ordinary shares of 25p each in the capital of the Company at a pnce per share (exclusive of expenses) of not
less than 25p and not more than 105% of the average of the middle market quotations for such Ordinary share as denved from the
London Stock Exchange Official List, for the five business days immediately preceding the day of purchase, unless previously renewed,
revoked or vaned, such authonty will expirs at the close of the next AGM of the Company, or, If earlier, on 3 August 2013 save that the

Company may purchase Ordinary shares at any later date where such purchase Is pursuant to any contract or contracts made by the
Company before the expiry of this authonty

Resolution 11
Special Resclution
That any general meeting (other than an AGM) may be called by not lass than 14 days' clear notice

By order of the Board

Michael Hoggan
Company Secretary
5 March 2012

Registered office
Fisher House, PO Box 4, Barrow-in-Fumess,
Cumbna, LA14 1THR

Registered In England number 211475
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Notes

1

Any member who has not elected to receve the Annual Report and Accounts for 2011 may obtain copies by writing to the
Company Secretary, Fisher House, PO Box 4, Barrow-in-Fumess, Gumbna, LA14 1HR Members who wish to receive the panted
Annual Report and Accounts, free of charge, in future years should wnte to the Company's Registrars, Freepost Plus RLYX-GZTU-
KRRG, SAS, The Regsstry, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 9ZA

Any member entitled to vote at the above meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and, on a poll, vote instead of
him A proxy need not be a member of the Company but must attend the meeting in order to represent a member A proxy could
be the Chairman, another director of the Company or {if you wish the proxy to speak on your behalfy another person who has
agreed to aftend and represent a member Details of how to appoint the Chairman or another person as a proxy using the proxy
form are set out in the notes to the proxy form A member can appoint more than one proxy In refation to the meeting, provided that
each proxy I1s appainted to exercise the nghts attaching to different shares held by lhim Completion of the proxy form will not
preclude a member from attending and voting in person, in which case that member's proxy appointment will automatically be
terminated Proxy forms, duly executed (including any authority under which it 1s executed or a copy of the authenty certified
notanally), should be retumed to Capita Registrars, PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent, BR3 4T Altemnatvely you may
submit your proxy form online by accessing the Sharehalder portal at www capitashareportal com, logging in and selecting the
‘proxy voting” ink If you have not previously registered for electronic communications, you will first be asked to register as a new
user, for which you will require your investor code (which can be found on your proxy card, share certificate or dividend tax
voucher), family name and post code (if resident in the UK) In each case your proxy instruction must be recerved no later than 12
noon on 1 May 2012 if you are a CREST member, see note 4 below The deadline for receipt of proxy appointments also apphes

in relation to amended instructions, and any atternpt to amend a proxy appointment after the relevant deadlne will be disregarded
Where two or more valid proxy appointments are received in respect of the same share in respect of the same mesting, the one
which is last sent shall be treated as replacing and revoking the other or others

The nght to appoint a proxy cannct be exercised by persons who have been nominated by a member ta enjoy nformation nghts
under section 146 of the Companies Act 2006 (a Nominated Person) they can only be exercised by the member However,

a Nominated Person may have a nght under an agreement between him and the member by whom he was nominated to be
appointed as a proxy for the meeting or to have somecne else so appointed If a Nominated Person does not have such a nght

or does not wish to exercise it, he may have a nght under such an agreement to give Instructions to the member as to the exercise
of voting nghts Nominated persons should contact the registered member by whom they were nominated n respect of these
arangements

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or praxies by utilising the CREST electronic proxy appointment service may do so by
utilsing the procedures described n the CREST manual {avallable via www euroclear com/CREST) CREST personal members or
other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appomnted a voting service provider(s), should refer ta
their CREST spensor or voting service provider(s}, who will be able to take the appropriate action on therr behalf In order for a proxy
appointment made by means of CREST to be vahd, the appropnate CREST message (a CREST Proxy Instruction) must be properly
authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited's (EUI) specifications and must contamn the nformation required for
such instructions, as described in the CREST manual The message regardless of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy
or an amendment to the mstruction given to a previously appointed proxy must, in order to be valid, be transrritted so as to be
received by the issuer's agent (ID number — RA10) by the latest time(s) for recempt of proxy appointments specified In the notice of
mesting For this purpose, the ime of receipt will be taken to be the ime {as determned by the tmestamp applied to the message
by the CREST Applications Host) from which the issuer’s agent 1s able to retneve the message by enquiry to CREST in the manner
prescnbed by CREST The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out n Regulation
35(5)(a) of the Uincertificated Secunties Regulations 2001

Voting by corporate reprasantatives A member of the Company which 1s a corporation may authonse a person or persons to act
as its representative(s) at the AGM In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2008, each such representative may
exercise {on behalf of the corporation) the same powers as the corporation could exercise If it wers an indmvdual member of the
Company, provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares It 1s no longer necessary to nominate a designated
corporate representative Representatives of shareholders that are corporations will have to produce evidence of therr proper
appointment when attending the general meeting Please contact our Registrar f you need any further guidance on this

Coptes of the directors’ service contracts, the terms and conditions of appointment of the non-executive directars, together with
a copy of the Company’s Articles of Association are available for nspection at the registered office of the Company dunng usual
business hours and will also be avallable at the place of the AGM from 11 30am on the date of the meeting until the close of the
mesting

Audit statements Members satisfying the thresholds in section 527 of the Comparies Act 2006 can require the Company to publish
astatement on its website setting out any matter relating to the audit of the Company’s accounts {including the auditors’ report and
the conduct of the audrt) that are 1o be laid before the mesting, that the members propose to raise at the meetng The Company
cannot require the members requesting the publication to pay Its expenses Any statement placed on the website must also be sent
to the Company’s auditors no later than the time it makes Its statement available on the website The business which may be dealt
with at the meeting iIncludes any statement that the Company has been required to publish on its website
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Notice of Annual General Meeting continued

Notes continued

8 Members’ questions The Company must cause to be answered at the meeting any question relating to the busmness being dealt
with at the meeting which 1s put by a member attending the meeting, except where () to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparation for the mesting or involve the disclosure of confidental nformation (b) the answer has already been given on a website
in the form of an answer to a question or (¢) it 1s undesrable in the Interests of the Company or the good order of the mesting that
the guestion be answered

9 A copy of this notice, and other information required by section 311A of the Act, can be found at www james-fisher co uk
A member may not use any electronic address provided by the Company in this document or wath any proxy appaintment form or
N any website for commurnication with the Company for any purpose In relation to the meeting other than as expressly stated i it

10 Only persons entered on the register of members of the Company at 6 00pm on 1 May 2012 (or, if the meeting 1s adjoumed,
at 6 00pm on the date which 1s two days pnor to the adiourned meeting} shall be entitled to attend and vote at the meeting or
adjpumed meeting Changes to entnies on the register after this time shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of persons
to attend or vote {and the number of votes they may cast) at the meeting or adjouned mesting

11 As at 5 March 2012 {being the latest practical date before the publhication of this Notice), the Company's 1ssued share caprtal
consists of 48,825,431 Crdinary shares, carrying cne vote each, and 100,000 preference shares carrying one vote each Therefore
the total voting nghts in the Company are 50,025,431 There are no shares in treasury

12 As soon as prachcable following the AGM, the results of the voting at the mesting and the number of votes cast for and agamnst and
the number of votes withheld in respect of each resolution will be announced wia a Regulatory Information Service and also placed
on the Company’s website at www james-fisher co uk

Ordinary business explanatory notes

Resolution 3. A final dwvidend can only be pad atter it has been approved by the shareholders in general mesting and may not exceed
the amount recommended by the Board The directors recommend a final dvidend of 10 74p per Crdinary share in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2011 If the meeting approves Resolution 3, the final dvidend will ba paid on 11 May 2012 to
ordinary sharegholders who are on the register at the close of business on 13 Apnl 2011 It 1s proposed to pay the dmdend

Resolutions 4, 5 and 6. In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association Charles Rice, Maunce Storey and Michael Everard
will retire by rotation at this year's AGM Following performance reviews the Chawrman and the Board believe that each of Charles Rice,
Maunce Storey and Michael Everard continues to perform effectively and with commitment to his role  Further information about each of
Charles Rice, Maunce Storey and Michasl Everard 1s gtven on page 12 of the 2011 Annual Report and Accounts

Resolution 7. This resolution proposes the reappointment of KPMG Audit Ple as the Company's auditors and authonses the directors
to agree ther remuneration
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Special business explanatory notes

Resojution B gives authonty to the directors to allot shares in the Company and to grant rights to subscnbe for, and convert any
secunty into shares in the Company up to a total nominat amount of £4,160,452 (16,641,810 Ordinary shares) representing
approximately 33% of the nominal value of the Company's total issued Ordinary share capital as at 5 March 2012 being the latest
practical date before publication of this Notice The authonty will expire at the conclusion of the AGM to be held in 2013, or, if earlier,
on 3 August 2013 and replaces an authonty granted on 5 May 2011 which expires at the conclusion of the forthcoming AGM

The directors have no present intention to exercise this authonty
At 5 March 2012 the Company does not hold any treasury shares

Resolution 9, which will be proposed as a special resolution, seeks to renew the authonty conferred on the directors at last year's
AGM to 1ssue equity secunties of the Company for cash without first offenng them to existing shargholders in proportion to therr existing
shareholdings Other than i connection wath a nghts or other similar issue or scnp dividend (where difficulties anse in offenng shares to
certain overseas shareholders and in relation to fractional entitlements) the authonty contained in this resolution will be imited to an
aggregate nominal value of £624,067 (representing 2,496,271 Ordinary shares} which reprasents approximately 5% of the Company's
1Issued equity share capital as at 5 March 2012 (being the latest practicable date pnior to the publication of this notice) The renawed
authonty will remam in force until the date of the next AGM or 15 months after the passing of the resclution, whichever 1s the earlier

It1s a standard resolution for most UK listed companies each year

In ing with best practice, the Company has not issued more than 7 5% of s 1ssued share capital on a non-pro rata basis over the last
threa years and the directors confirm therr intention to follow the best practice set out in the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of
Pnnciples which provides that comparnies should not issue shares for cash representing more than 7 5% of the Company’s 1ssued
share capital n any roling three-year penod, other than to existing shareholders, without prior consultation with shareholders

The directors have no present intention to exercise this authonty

Resolution 10, a special resolution, gives the Company authonty to purchase in the market up to £2,496,271 of its Ordinary shares of
25p each (representing approximately 5% of the Company's total 1ssued Ordinary share capital) The mirimum and maximum prces at
which such shares can be purchased is as stated in the rasolution The authonty will expire at the conclusion of the AGM to be held n
2013, or If earlier 3 August 2013 and replaces a simifar authonty granted on 5 May 2011 which expires at the conclusion of the
farthcoming AGM

If any Ordinary shares purchased pursuant to this authonty are not held by the Company as treasury shares then such shares would
be immediately cancelled in which event the numbser of Ordinary shares in 1ssue would be reduced On 5 March 2012, being the latest
practical date before publication of this Notice, there were options over Ordinary shares in the capital of the Company representing

3 82% of the Company’s total issued shars capital If the authonty to purchase the Company’s Ordinary shares was exercised in full
and those shares were subsequently cancalled, these options would represent 4 02% of the Company's total issued share caprtal
The directors have no present iIntention to exercise this authority and in reaching therr decision to purchase Ordinary shares will take
into account, amongst other things the Company’s cash resources and capital requirements, the effect of any purchase on earmings
per share and whether it 15 i the best interests of sharehclders generally

Resolution 11. The Companies Act 2006 requires the notice penod for general meetings of the Company to be at least 21 days

The Company 1s currently able to call general meetings (other than an AGM) on 14 clear days’ notice In order to be able to preserve
this abilty, shareholders must have approved the calling of mestings on 14 days’ notice Resolution 11, which 1s proposed as a special
resolution, seeks such approval The approval will be effective until the Company’s next AGM, when it 1s intended that a similar
resolution will be proposed

The sharter notice penod would not ba used as a matter of routine for general meetings, but only where the flexibility 1s mented by
the business of the meeting and is thought to be to the advantage of sharehoclders as a whole
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Merchant bankers

E C Hambro Rabben & Partners Ltd
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11 Apnl 2012
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13 Apnl 2012
Record date

3 May 2012
Annual General Meeting

11 May 2012
Payment of 2011 final dwidend
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Designed by lummnous co uk

This Annual Report has been prepared for the members of the Company only Tha Company, its directors, employees and agents do not
accept or assume responsibility to any other person n connection with this document and any stuich responsibility or fiability 15 expressly
disclaimed This Annual Repert contams certain forward-ooking statements that are subject to future matters inciuding, armongst other matters,
the economic and business circumstances occumng from time to time n the countnes and markets N which the Group operates and the
availabiity of financing to the Group As such the forward-looking statements involve nsk and uncertainty Accordingly, whilst it 1s belleved the
expectatons reflected In these statements are reasonable at the date of publication of this Annual Report they may be affected by a wide range
of matters which could cause actual results to differ matenally from those anbicipated The forward-locking statements will not be updated
dunng the year Nothing in this Annual Report should be construed as a profit forecast
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